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OUR CORPORATE 
MISSION

To be the Premier Shipbuilder & Integrated 
Marine Structural Fabricators

And 
One-stop Quality Logistics Services Provider 

and Marine Engineering in South East Asia and 
Beyond.

Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Group

OUR VISION

To operate a Modern Integrated shipping and 
shipbuilding benchmarking for Excellence 

in providing Comprehensive, Innovative and 
efficient Quality services.

Adaptability to changes, and retain sustainable 
success and steadfast in Health, Safety, 

Environment and Quality Value.

Committed to achieving Quality Assurance 
and Management through quality planning, 

improvement and control.

Full concern for preserving the Environment, 
Health and Safety of employees, neighbouring 

communities and our valued customers.

Our business is focused on shipping and shipbuilding, 
which represent our main core revenue streams. Our 
two core businesses are synergistic as we construct the 
vessels and also used them in our shipping operations.  
In supporting our core business areas, we also 
undertake shipping agency & forwarding services, third 
party logistics transportation solutions, ship repairs, 
modifications and maintenance works. 

We are one of the few large shipping and shipbuilding 
operators that construct our own vessels. Being an 
integrated shipping and shipbuilding operator provides 
us with the competitive advantage to react quickly to 
favourable market conditions and to quickly undertake 
modification of existing vessels to meet new business 
opportunities and reinforce our fleet robustness by 
timely constructing vessels for our shipping operation 
requirements.

Our shipping operations cover both Malaysian and 
International waters; ranging from South East Asia, 
East Asia and the Far East region. Currently, we are 
supported by our own fleet of 240 vessels with a total 
Gross Registered Tonnage (GRT) of approximately 
376,500 Tonnage.

Our shipbuilding facilities are supported by three 
shipbuilding yards located in Kuala Baram, Miri 
and one in Bintulu, Sarawak with a total land area of 
approximately 280 acres and an annual capacity to 
construct 40 vessels based on a hundred meter length 
vessel. In addition, we also have one shipbuilding yard in 
Tanjung Manis, Sarawak for future business expansion 
with a total land area of approximately 214 acres.
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Financial Calendar

 FINANCIAL YEAR END				    30 JUNE 2020

 Announcement of results

 First Quarter						      29 November 2019
 Second Quarter					     27 February 2020
 Third Quarter						      29 May 2020
 Fourth Quarter					     28 August 2020

 Published Annual Report And Financial Statements

 Notice of Annual General Meeting				    30 October 2020
 15th Annual General Meeting				    8 December 2020
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5- Years Statistic Highllights
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Group Structure
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Profile of Board of Directors

TAN SRI DATUK LING CHIONG HO
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
15 September 2004 (Director)
31 March 2010 (Non-Executive Chairman)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 68 years

Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho has extensive experience and technical know-how toward new development and design 
& full construction of vessels and repair of vessels. He has been instrumental in the growth and development of the Group 
and had lead our Group to become an established shipping operator and leading shipbuilder in Malaysia. Tan Sri Datuk 
Ling is the founder and Chairman of the well diversified Shin Yang Group of Companies involving in reforestation, wood 
based downstream activities, property development, infrastructure projects and public toll concession, oil palm plantation, 
public transportation, hypermarkets and hotel businesses. He is also the Group Executive Chairman and Chairman of Group 
Management, ESOS and MRGF committee of Sarawak Oil Palms Berhad, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad.

In addition to being the current Deputy Chairman of Sarawak Timber Association, he also serves as Chairman/Deputy 
Chairman of several school boards and charitable organisations in Sarawak. 

Tan Sri Datuk Ling is the brother of Ling Chiong Sing, Ling Chiong Pin and Mdm Ling Siu Chuo, directors of the Company. 
Tan Sri Datuk Ling is deemed connected to Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company. 
He is deemed interested in various transactions between the Group and certain companies carried out in the ordinary course 
of business by virtue of his common directorship and/or shareholdings in these companies. 

Tan Sri Datuk Ling had attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been 
convicted of any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

LING CHIONG SING
Group Managing Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
15 September 2004 (Director)
13 May 2010 (Group Managing Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 64 years

Ling Chiong Sing graduated from Taiwan in Accountancy and is responsible for the overall operational and financial 
management of our Group. As one of the founding members of our Group, Mr. Ling brings with him over thirty (30) years of 
extensive and hands-on knowledge on all aspects of our business activities ranging from international and coastal shipping, 
shipbuilding and ship repairs. Mr. Ling was also pioneer to our projects planning and business development, especially the 
expansion of new shipping routes. Mr Ling is also the Non-Executive Director and a member of MRGF Committee of Sarawak 
Oil Palms Berhad, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Mr. Ling also serves as the 2nd Vice President to Miri Chinese Chamber of Commerce and act as a joint committee member 
of the Chamber. 

He is the brother of Tan Sri Datuk Ling, Ling Chiong Pin and Mdm Ling Siu Chuo who are Non Executive Chairman, Executive 
Director and Non Executive Director of the Company respectively. He is deemed connected to Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd, 
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company. He is deemed interested in various transactions between the Group and 
certain companies carried out in the ordinary course of business by virtue of his common directorship and/or shareholdings 
in these companies. 

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.
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Profile of Board of Directors
(Cont’d)

LING CHIONG PIN
Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
30 November 2009 (Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 66 years

Ling Chiong Pin had served as a Coastal Master of domestic tugboats for over ten (10) years during the 1970s. He is 
currently the Managing Director of Piasau Slipways Sdn Bhd and is responsible for all aspects of our shipbuilding and ship 
repair operations and brings with him extensive hands-on experience and knowledge in shipping and shipbuilding operations.

He is the brother of Tan Sri Datuk Ling, Ling Chiong Sing and Mdm Ling Siu Chuo, who are Non Executive Chairman, Group 
Managing Director and Non Executive Director of the Company respectively. He is deemed connected to Shin Yang Holding 
Sdn Bhd, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company. He is deemed interested in various transactions between the 
Group and certain companies carried out in the ordinary course of business by virtue of his common directorship and/or 
shareholdings in these companies. 

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.

DATUK LAWRENCE LAI YEW SON
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
30 November 2009 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 60 years

Datuk Lawrence Lai is an Advocate and Solicitor by profession. He graduated with Bachelor of Law with Honours from the 
University of Sheffield, England in 1982 and was admitted as Barrister-At-Law of the Honourable Socie¬ty of Lincoln’s Inn, 
London, England and was called to the English Bar in 1983. He was admitted as an Advocate of the High Court of Sabah and 
Sarawak and called to the Sarawak Bar in 1984 and the Sabah Bar in 1986. He is currently a Notary Public and Commissioner 
for Oaths. Datuk Lawrence Lai was the Mayor of Miri City Council, Sarawak from year 2009 to year 2016.

On 16th October 2016, Datuk Lawrence Lai was conferred the Darjah Pangkuan Seri Melaka (D.P.S.M) which carries the title 
“Datuk” by Yang Di-Pertua Negeri Melaka.

Datuk Lawrence Lai is also a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Chairman of the Joint 
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is not related to any director and /or substantial shareholders of the Company 
and does not have any conflict of interest with the Group.

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.
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Profile of Board of Directors
(Cont’d)

KOH EK CHONG
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
30 November 2009 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 59 years

Koh Ek Chong has extensive experience in financial management and audit, taxation and financial planning. He started work 
in 1983 with Hii King Hiong & Company, a public accounting and audit firm and is now one of the practicing partners. Mr 
Koh is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), a member of the Malaysian Institute 
of Accountants, associate member of the Chartered Tax Institute Malaysia and a certified member of the Financial Planning 
Association of Malaysia. 

Mr. Koh is also the Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and as a member of Joint Remuneration and 
Nomination Committees. He is not related to any director and /or substantial shareholders of the Company and does not 
have any conflict of interest with the Group. Mr. Koh is also the Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee 
Chairman of Dayang Enterprise Holdings Berhad, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.

LING SIU CHUO
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
30 November 2009 (Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 57 years

Ling Siu Chuo started her career with Shin Yang Group of Companies in the 1980s and was later promoted to be the 
Manager in charge of the administration and human resources of Shin Yang Group in 1990. She has hands-on experience 
and knowledge of the business activities of the Shin Yang Group and related business and administrative matters involving 
shipping and shipbuilding activities. Presently she serves as a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and as 
a member of the Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

She is the sister of Tan Sri Datuk Ling, Ling Chiong Sing and Ling Chiong Pin who are Non Executive Chairman, Group 
Managing Director and Executive Directors of the Company respectively. She is an appointed representative of Shin Yang 
Holding Sdn Bhd, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.  She is deemed interested in certain transactions 
between the Group and certain companies carried out in the ordinary course of business by virtue of her common directorship 
in these companies.

She has attended three out of the four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. She has not been 
convicted of any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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VINCENT LING LU YEW
Non-Independent Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
2 September 2016 (Non-Independent Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 36 years

Vincent Ling Lu Yew graduated with a Bachelor of Civil and Construction Engineering from Curtin University of Technology, 
Australia in 2006. In 2007, he joined Shin Yang Shipyard as Operation Manager and was appointed as Director of Shin 
Yang Shipyard in March 2010. Mr. Vincent Ling oversees the day-to-day operations of our Shipbuilding and ship repair & 
metal fabricant operations and actively implementing continual improvements to our shipbuilding and ship repair & metal 
fabrication operations. He is gradually overseeing the international shipping within the Group and will gradually contribute to 
the strategic planning and evaluation to the overall shipping sector.

He is the son of Ling Chiong Pin, the Executive Director and nephew of Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho and Ling Chiong 
Sing who are Non Executive Chairman and Group Managing Director of the Company respectively. He is an appointed 
representative of Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.  He is deemed interested 
in certain transactions between the Group and certain companies carried out in the ordinary course of business by virtue of 
his common deemed shareholdings in these companies.

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.

ARSHAD BIN ZAINUDDIN
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
2 September 2016 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 57 years

Arshad Bin Zainuddin has extensive experience in Quality Assurance and Health Safety and Environmental activities. He 
started work as assistant administrator for Sarawak region with Bintulu Industrial Gas Sdn Bhd in 1989. He is currently a 
HSE Manager for Sarawak Region in Citra Alti Sdn Bhd, who is in charge of HSE activities for all project sites including new 
projects in Malaysia.

He was awarded the National General Certificate in Occupational Safety and Health in July 1994 by The National Examination 
Board in Occupational Safety and Health, England. He was also awarded the Chartered Member and Chartered Advanced 
Diploma in Logistics Management by The Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport, United Kingdom in December 2006. 

Encik Arshad is also the member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Joint Remuneration and Nomination 
Committees. He is not related to any director and /or substantial shareholders of the Company and does not have any conflict 
of interest with the Group. 

He has attended all four Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been convicted of 
any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory 
bodies during the financial year.

Profile of Board of Directors
(Cont’d)
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HUDSON CHUA JAIN
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATE OF APPOINTMENT
16 March 2020 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

NATIONALITY/AGE
Malaysian, 52 years

Hudson Chua Jain is a partner of Crowe Malaysia PLT based in Kuching Sarawak. He has been involved in the accounting 
profession for over 25 years and his professional experience includes financial statement audits, tax compliance and advisory, 
internal audits, business advisory, transaction advisory including financial due diligence, corporate finance, and valuation 
services and corporate exercises such as Initial Public Offerings, debt and/or equity raising as well as corporate restructuring 
exercises.

He is a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants, Chartered Accountants Australia & New Zealand and CPA Australia. 
He is also a licensed auditor and tax agent in Malaysia.

He is the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He is not related to any director and /or substantial 
shareholders of the Company and does not have any conflict of interest with the Group. 

He has attended one out of one Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. He has not been 
convicted of any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

Profile of Board of Directors
(Cont’d)
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Key Management Profile

CAPTAIN TING HIEN LIONG 
Chief Executive Officer

NATIONALITY
Malaysian

Captain Ting is responsible for overall daily operation of our Group. Captain Ting graduated with Bachelor of Science in 
Marine Navigation and Shipping Management from Keelung, Taiwan, and also holds a Master of International Trade (Captain). 
Captain Ting joined Shiline Sdn. Bhd. as General Manager in 1997 and has over thirty (30) years of hand-on experience in 
shipping operations including Class Marine Surveyor for Bureau Veritas, Owner Representative of a shipping company, Ship 
Captain for Ocean going vessels, Docking Master and Charging Engineer for companies in Sabah and Sarawak. Master, Chief 
Officer, and Deck Cadet on board of various cargo vessels operated by Mitsui O.S.K Lines, Japan.

Captain Ting is also a Director of Sarawak Maritime Academy Sdn Bhd, a maritime higher learning institute which is a member 
of Shin Yang Holding Group.

He is not related to any director and /or substantial shareholders of the Company and does not have any conflict of interest 
with the Group. 

He has not been convicted of any offence within the past 5 years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or 
penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad (“The Board”), I am pleased to present the 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of Shin Yang 
Shipping Corporation Group (“the Group”) for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2020.

The economy effects outlined above has weighed on 
the Group’s performance for the financial year ended 
30 June 2020. The Group registered a gross revenue of 
RM596.5million, a marginal decrease of 7.5% as compared 
to year 2019. The decrease was mainly due to lower revenue 
generated from the shipping segments with a decrease of 
12.6% compared to previous year, while the shipbuilding 
segment reached RM83.9million, an increase of 40.8% as 
compared to RM59.6million achieved in year 2019.    

Accordingly, the Group registered a gross loss and net loss 
after tax of RM52.9million and RM145.9million respectively 
with a negative earnings per share of 12.49 sen per share as 
compared to negative earnings of 7.38 sen per share in the 
previous year. The losses were mainly due to the impairment 
loss on vessels of RM 30.8million, impairment loss on trade 
and other receivables of RM 23.5million and loss on disposal 
of subsidiary of RM 14.3million.

REVIEW OF RESULT PERFORMANCE

The international shipping market continued to face 
difficulties for dry bulk shipping with depressed freight rates 
for carrying commodity products. Locally, we analysed that 
the domestic and coastal shipping were the major growth 
covers for the local demand for infrastructure and resource 
based projects. However, shipbuilding for the oil and gas 
sector was at its weakest path due to minimization of their 
capital expenditures towards the oil and gas industry players 
further coup with the third wave outbreak of Covid-19 
pandemic in the country and globally. In order to sustain the 
maritime industry, it must be able to stand firm, consolidate 
its business activities and to fulfil its commitments and 
responsibilities to the stake holders.
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During the year, the Group had maintained its vessel fleet 
at 240 vessels with Gross Revenue Tonnage (GRT) of 
approximately 376,500 tonnages from 250 vessels with 
approximate GRT of 393,100 tonnages in 2019.

With the continuous improvement in terms of fleet efficiency, 
routes enhancement and plying speed of our vessel fleets, 
the Group is expected to increase its containers shipping 
by establishing strategic alliance with business partners 
to provide efficient and effective port services while the 
partners will aim to achieve economies of scale to increase 
shipping service frequency routes coverage between East 
Malaysia and West Malaysia from our existing fourteen (14) 
units of container vessels. The shipment of liquid bulk from 
the tankers and barges have showed its earnings stability.

DIVIDEND

In view of the current weak performance of the margin and our long term vision to sustain growth by substantially reinvesting 
its cash flow and taking into consideration the current completion of capital expenditures commitment, the Board has not 
proposed any dividend payment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

For the year under review, we have shipped 0.266 million cubic metres of timber products, a decrease of 25.7% from 0.358 
million cubic metres in 2019 from our eight (8) units of Twin Decker cargo vessels to the Far East regions. 

Our container vessels had transported an increase of lifting capacity by 9% in TEU as compared to in 2019 from our fourteen 
(14) operating container vessels in our fleet. 

For the shipbuilding sector, we had successfully completed and delivered five (5) vessels to the ship owners with total 
contract sum of RM72.4 million and currently three (3) vessels with contract sum of RM97.4 million are still under construction 
as work in progress to be completed within the next two years.   

Chairman’s Statement
(Cont’d)
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CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

Since the Group’s listing on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 23 June 2010, there were no major 
corporate exercises implemented for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Group believes in the maintenance of the highest standards of corporate governance practice within the group as 
a fundamental part of discharging our responsibility to protect and maximized shareholder values and in enhancing the 
continued business prosperity of the Group.  The steps implemented have been reported in the on Corporate Governance 
Overview Statement on page 34 to 42.

Chairman’s Statement
(Cont’d)
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PROSPECT

We are pleased to report that despite the global and regional economic challenges especially on third wave outbreak of 
Covid-19 pandemic faced by many shipping companies and with minimum shipbuilding orders, but our strength on the 
balanced consolidation of our business activities would continue to guide us to revenue earning and business achievements. 

The continuous infrastructure development in the State which would maintain of the main priority for development, brings 
a lot of supporting spin-off shipping business activities including the requirement for shipping for third party logistics and 
projects based plying South East Asian regions. 

In the shipbuilding sector, the emphasis is on taking aggressive steps to build valued new vessel constructions and to 
strengthen our floating dock facility, which would enable us to carry out improved vessel maintenance works and also 
effectively carry out docking essential defect works to meet the niche requirements markets.

The challenge for the Group is to further improve its efficiency and productivity in both the fleets efficiency and shipbuilding 
consolidation activities. The Group shall continue to work on achieving and realising the full use of its resources.

APPRECIATIONS

It is my great pleasure, on behalf of the Board, to extend our sincere gratitude and appreciation to our employees, customers, 
business associates, and shareholders for their continued support and confidence in the Group.

Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho
Chairman

Chairman’s Statement
(Cont’d)
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The Purpose of this review is to highlight and provide further details on financial and operating information of the Group.
	
1.	 Overview of Group’s Business and Operation:-

	 The Group’s core business are shipping, shipbuilding, ship repair as well as shipping and forwarding agency. Shipping 
sector is further classified as dry bulk, liquid bulk, containers and coastal, barges and tug and International shipping 
segments. Our shipping operations cover both Malaysian and International waters; ranging from South East Asia, 
East Asia and the Far East region. Currently, we are supported by our own fleet of 240 vessels with Gross Revenue 
Tonnage (GRT) of approximately 376,500 tonnages.

	 The ship repair sector was taking aggressive steps to move towards higher quality repair works such as docking 
essential defect works with our floating dock facilities to meet the niche requirements markets. Our shipbuilding 
facilities are supported by three shipbuilding yards located in Kuala Baram, Miri and one in Bintulu, Sarawak with a 
total land area of approximately 280 acres.

2.	 Financial Results

	 For the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (FYE 2020), the Group recorded a revenue of RM596.5 million, a marginal 
decrease of 7.5% against the previous financial year of RM645.2 million. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to 
lower revenue generated from the shipping segments with a decrease of 12.6% compared to previous year.

	 The Group incurred a loss before tax of RM154.2 million in FYE2020. The losses were mainly due to the impairment 
loss on vessels of RM30.8 million, impairment loss on trade and other receivables of RM23.5 million and loss on 
disposal of subsidiary of RM14.3 million.

(i)	 Group Income Statement:

FYE 2020
RM’million

FYE 2019
RM’million

Revenue 596.5 645.2

Gross (Loss) /Profit (52.9) 1.1

Loss after tax (145.9) (89.2)

Loss per share:

     Basic (sen) (12.49) (7.38)

     Diluted (sen) (12.49) (7.38)

(ii)	 Group Cash Flow Statement:

FYE 2020
RM’million

FYE 2019
RM’million

Cash flows for operating activities 82.1 79.2

Cash flows for investing activities 17.8 (78.0)

Cash flows for financing activities (76.0) (10.1)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 23.9 (8.9)

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of financial year 44.8 53.7

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash 
equivalent

0.0 0.0

Cash and cash equivalent at end of financial year 68.7 44.8

Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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2.	 Financial Results (continued)

(iii)	 Group Statement of Financial Position:

As at 30 June 2020
RM’000

As at 30 June 2019
RM’000

Non-current assets 1,043,388 1,197,632

Current Assets 356,390 443,723

Non- Current assets held for sale 12,875 -

Total Assets 1,412,653 1,641,355

Total equity 917,090 1,075,841

Current liabilities 378,448 434,116

Non-current liabilities 117,115 131,398

Total liabilities 495,563 565,514

Total equity and liabilities 1,412,653 1,641,355

(iv)	 Dividend

	 No dividend has been declared for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. There is no formal dividend policy and 
payment of a dividend is solely at the Board’s discretion. The Board is guided by a series of factors, including 
balancing cash flow, investment and/or expansion needs, earnings, capital commitments and future financial 
strength of the Group and would declare dividends when the above factors are satisfied for considerations by 
the Board.

3.	 Review of Operation:

(i)	 Shipping Operation

a)	 Dry Bulk

	 The Group concentrates in the transportation of loose bulk such as timber, plywood, quarry, aggregate, 
sands, cement and many more plying Miri, Bintulu, Sibu, Kuching, Kota Kinabalu, Sandakan, Tawau, Port 
Klang, Brunei, Singapore, Thailand, Vietnam and Indonesia on a regular basis

	 The Group have sufficient number of vessels for voyage or time charter. Our current major charterers are 
from oil and gas, cement and oil palm industries. The Group is actively participating in sand extraction and 
reclamation of land with its fleet of tugs and barges and managing logistic service providers.

b)	 Liquid Bulk

	 The demand for CPO shipment for East Asia regions is stable and seasonal in demand with the freight rate 
of USD17 – USD33 per metric ton.

	 During the year, the Group has renewed an two years contract of affreightment to ship methanol products 
from Labuan via vessel with parcel size below 1,500MT with Petronas Chemical Marketing (Labuan) LTD.   
The CPO cargo vessel was also constantly time charter to Shipping Company with a fixed time charter rate.

Management’s Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)
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3.	 Review of Operation: (continued)

c)	 Containers and coastal 

	 The Group is expected to stabilise its containers shipping by establishing strategic alliance with business 
partners to provide efficient and effective port services while the partners will aim to achieve economies of 
scale to increase shipping service frequency routes coverage between East Malaysia and West Malaysia 
from our existing fourteen (14) units of container vessels.

	 The lifting capacity of containers had improved by 9% in TEU for the year. After the year end, the Group had 
committed a unit of container vessel with carrying capacity of 1,200 TEU per trip to strengthen the container 
shipping activities.

d)	 International Shipping

	 With the consistent plying routes to the far east regions from our 8 cargo vessels which has shipped 
0.266million cubic meters of cargo with the freight rate of USD37 – USD 43 per cubic meter, while on 
the returning bound, it was mainly on time charter for shipments of general cargo from far regions to the 
Philippines and other Asean countries, then enroute back to home region.

	 With the foreseen unstable demand toward the International shipping in view of prolong uncertainty in term 
of freight rates and utilisation. Our emphasis is on time charter of vessels for international shipping. 

(ii)	 Shipbuilding Operation

	 Weaker sentiments toward shipbuilding from the oil and gas sector was due to minimization of their capital 
expenditures by the oil and gas industry players. During the year, it has delivered 5 vessels that were constructed 
by the yards.  In the coming year, the Group foresee mantaining shipbuilding orders from Far Wast & Middle East 
region and domestic demands.

(iii)	 Ship Repair and fabrication 

	 The ship repair sector was operating satisfactionally with the ship repairs totalling of 689 units (FYE 2019: 753) 
of vessels both minor and major vessels. With the strengthening of 160 meters in length and another unit with 80 
meter in length’s floating docks enable us to carry out improved vessel maintenance works and also effectively 
carry out docking essential defect works. 

4.	 Outlook and Prospects:

	 We foreseen that the price of crude oil price remain stable which in term contributed to our anticipated stable bunker 
fuel costs to our shipping operation and shipbuilding orders. The continuous infrastructure development in the State 
would brings a lot of supporting spin-off shipping business activities. Furthermore, with our addition unit of container 
vessel, renewal for contract of affreightment to ship methanol products from Labuan and time charter of CPO cargo 
vessels and international shipping, will lead to sustainable shipping business activities that would continue to guide 
us to revenue earning and business achievements. 

	 The challenge for the Group is to further improve its efficiency and productivity in both the fleets efficiency and 
shipbuilding consolidation activities and cost control coupled with the expected increase in freight rates, the 
performance of the Group is expected to be satisfactorily.

Management’s Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)
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We are pleased to present our Group Sustainability Report for year 2020 which is prepared in line with the Global Reporting 
Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Standard and Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

This report provides insights regarding the Group sustainability practices and initiatives undertaken by the Group spanning 
across all its operational and management activities for financial year ended 30 June 2020.

This report forms an integral part of the Group’s Annual Report for the year 2020, which would then jointly provide a more 
comprehensive description of the Group from economics, environmental and social perspectives.

SCOPE OF REPORT

REPORTING PERIOD
GRI 102-50

1st July 2019 to 30th June 2020, unless otherwise specified

DATE OF RECENT REPORT
GRI 102-51

This is second Sustainability Report prepared under the GRI Standards

REPORTING CYCLE
GRI 102-52

Annually

COVERAGE
GRI 102-46

This Sustainability Report 2020 covers the entire operations and business 
units of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad Group of Companies 
(“Group”), which comprises the parent company and her subsidiary 
companies.

GUIDELINES Principal Guidelines
•	 Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards
Additional Guidelines
•	 Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Guidelines

DISTRIBUTION OF AND FEEDBACK ON 
THE REPORT
GRI 102-53

This report is available to all stakeholders in hard copy upon request.
For further information and comments, please contact:-
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad
Contact Person: Richard Ling
Telephone: +6 085 428 399

Sustainability Report
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MESSAGE FROM 
GROUP MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

This is the Group’s Sustainability 
Report which is prepared, according 
to GRI Standards and the enhanced 
reporting requirements incorporating 
Sustainability Reporting Guide issued 
by Bursa Malaysia. It indicates another 
commitment by the Group towards 
advocating sustainability in every 
aspects of its business undertakings.

The Group’s Sustainability Report 
emphasise on the corporate 
commitment to the balanced integration 
of economic, environmental and social 
factors into its business practices 
to ensure long term success for its 
sustainable future. 

Economic

To adopt the Code of Conduct, all 
forms of corruption and bribery are 
prohibited, a manifestation of our strong 
adherence to high ethical standards 
and anti-corruption laws. In supporting 
this commitment, all employees 
must not provide, offer or accept 
bribes, kickbacks, corrupt payments, 
facilitation payments, or inappropriate 
gifts, to Government officials or any 
commercial person or entity, regardless 
of local practices or customs. A tender 
committee have also been set up for 
sustainable procurement processes.

Sustainability Report
(Cont’d)

Environmental

Environment sustainability is mainly 
about energy efficiency measures on 
land and at sea aimed at reducing energy 
consumption and therefore the impact 
on the environment.  We are also bound 
by laws and regulations especially by 
International Maritime Organization 
(“IMO”) to protect the environment and 
people’s health by imposing limits on 
atmospheric emissions, discharges 
into water and soil and setting rules for 
the treatment of hazardous waste and 
the reclamation of any polluted sites.

The Group is also implementing the 
Ballast Water Management Plan, so as 
to halt the spread of invasive aquatic 
species, which can damage the local 
ecosystems, affect biodiversity and 
lead to substantial economic loss.

Social

The Group systematically prioritise 
safety work standards in order to 
safeguard the working environment for 
employees, and also to increase the 
safety of transported goods. We believe 
our staff and crew, onshore or at sea, 
deserve a safe and healthy working 
environment not only for the individual’s 
well-being but for the interest of the 
Group as well.

Employees are fundamental in the 
long-term success of the business. We 
ensure that employees are well-trained 
and emphasise on how important it is 
that they should be equipped with the 
right skills.

With continuous commitment from 
the Board of Directors and active 
participation of all our stakeholders, we 
will work hard to ensure that the notion 
of sustainability becomes embedded 
within our working culture in a more 
prominent manner.

LING CHIONG SING
Group Managing Director

Shin Yang Shipping Corporation 
Berhad
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Sustainability Governance

(i)	 Sustainability governance structure

	 The Group has established a sustainability governance structure as below:-

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Oversight Role) 
-  Approve of sustainability policies
-  Oversee the Group’s sustainability performance
-  Approve Sustainability Report

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
- Maintaining sustainability performance across the Group
- Rising awareness among employees
- Assisting management to ensure that sustainability 
 standards are consistent across the Group

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
-  Formulating sustainability strategies, goals and 
 implementation procedures and practices
-  Deliberate sustainability issues
-  Group’s sustainability performance 
-  Stakeholders engagement

(ii)	 Sustainability policies

	 The Group currently has established four key policies as follows:-

[a]	 Environmental Policy
•	 Aims to prevent and control pollution, use energy, water and other resources efficiently.

[b]	 Safety and Health Policy
•	 To maintain prominent safety culture to create an intact business reputation; reduced medical cost, training 

and turnover costs; conductive working environment, confident customers and vendors and self-esteemed 
employees and contractors.

[c]	 Smoking Policy
•	 Aims to reduce numerous fire accidents or smoking related incidents at workplace.

[d]	 Waste Management Policy
•	 To comply with the Environmental Quality (Scheduled Wastes) Regulations 2005 of Environmental Quality Act 

1974, to minimize waste production throughout the Group

Sustainability Report
(Cont’d)
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Materiality

In year 2020, a materiality analysis exercise was conducted by taking into consideration the views and responses from all the 
Group’s stakeholders on significant environmental, economic and social aspects, impacts, risks and opportunities which are 
crucial for the success and continued growth of the Group.
 
The feedback from the stakeholders for the above mentioned exercised is analyzed and assessed. Eight (8) key material 
matters were identified as being of high concern to stakeholders and of high significance for the Group.

The Group Materiality Matrix

Economic Performance & 
Market Presence

Importance to the Group
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These 8 key material matters are categorised into three (3) main capitals as follow:-

Sustainability Report
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Economic

-	 Economic Performance 
and Market Presence

Social

-	 Occupational, Safety and 
Health

-	 Training and Education
-	 Diversity and Equality

Environmental

-	 4Rs of sustainability
-	 Effluents and waste
-	 Energy 
-	 Environmental compliance
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Material sustainability matters : Economic Performance and Market Presence

Economic sustainability is the ability of the Group to continue operating at an effective and sustainable economic level 
over a longer term. The Group is committed in increasing sustainable and responsible corporate performance, creating the 
conditions for development that ensures the needs and expectations of all stakeholders are met.

Faced with the challenging year with the third wave outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and the depressed in oil price and freight 
rates, there was a reduction in revenue for FYE2020 as compared to previous financial year. The Board continues to support 
the management through looking into business opportunities to ensure business continuity. 

The Group’s financial review and outlooks are discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual 
Report.

(a)	 Procurement practices

 	 Project sub-contractors are selected via tender and selection process. The Group has in place formalised standard 
operating procedures for tender processes, priorities for local business wherever appropriate etc satisfactory quality 
of goods and services and competitive prices. A tender committee was set up to govern the evaluation and selection 
of sub-contractors, incorporating a combination of technical, financial and pricing criteria.

(b)	 Anti - corruption

	 The Group’s Code of Conduct, contains detailed procedures on dealing with improper solicitation, bribery 
and corruption. The consequences of breaching the Code of Conduct are clearly set out and subjected to the 
requirements of applicable laws and actions will be taken against any employee for non-compliance. The Group 
also adopted Whistle-Blowing Policy with the aim of providing a structured mechanism for employees and other 
stakeholders to raise genuine and legitimate concerns on any suspected or wrongful activities or wrongdoings. The 
Whistle-Blowing Policy is implemented to emphasize the Group’s commitment to the highest standards of quality, 
honesty, openness and accountability, in ensuring that discrepancies are reported and dealt promptly to ensure 
ethical business practices, and to protect the employees.

Material sustainability matters : Environmental

The Group is aware of its industry’s impact on the environment which includes generating of industrial wastes, water and air 
pollution and depletion of natural resource, such as energy and water.

In awareness of the key environmental issues, the Group is committed in operating in a manner that does not compromise 
the health of ecosystems in which it operates in the long term. The Group continuously improve on its resource management 
and environmental management to ensure that the natural resources are conserved for the next generations.

(a)	 4Rs of sustainability

	 REDUCE	 REUSE	 RECYCLE	 RECOVER

	 The Group is committed to the 4Rs principles (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Recover) to reduce wastage. 

	 For onshore office, staff have been instilled with culture towards computer data storage whenever possible to reduce 
paper consumption.

	 The shipbuilding and ship repairing operations such as welding and cutting generate solid wastes, especially scrap 
metal. Such scraps, which have economic value are recycled and reused for other sub projects. This helps to 
increase our resource efficiency for materials consumption.

Sustainability Report
(Cont’d)
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Material sustainability matters : Environmental (continued)

(a)	 4Rs of sustainability (continued)

	 Waste management plans are implemented on all of our vessels. Waste separation is carried out on board and 
recyclable items such as plastic, paper and glass are sent to shore recycling facilities. Other types of waste are 
collected for treatment, recovery or disposal at shore, while waste which are permitted for on-board incineration 
are disposed of in the shipboard incinerator. The only waste that is allowed to disposed at sea is food waste, 
which without packaging or container. This disposal is carried out in compliance with MARPOL (The International 
Convention for Prevention of Marine Pollution For Ships).

(b)	 Effluent and waste

	 Waste management and pollution implemented on-board vessels are governed by the Marine Pollution (“MARPOL”) 
with the objective to minimise pollution of the oceans and seas, including dumping, oil and air pollution.

	 We take pro-active initiatives in the management of our environment including emission mitigation. The Group 
embarked on IMO’s Data Collection System (DCS) that are developed in the context of reduction of greenhouse 
gases (GHG)/carbon dioxide emissions and with the target to measure and potentially reduce the CO2 emissions in 
the maritime industry.

	 Preventive actions are identified and controls are established to prevent any pollution and environmental hazards. All 
garbage accumulated is compressed to its possible minimum size prior disposal to shore facilities. 

	 All our ships engaged in international trade carry a ballast water record book and an International Ballast Water 
Management Certificate. The Group manage the ballast water and sediments, according to a ship-specific ballast 
water management plan to avoid the introduction of alien species into coastal areas, including the exchange of the 
ballast water or treating it using an approved ballast water management system.

(c)	 Energy

	 Water & Electricity

	 The Group encourage to switch off any equipment or lights that are not in use for energy conservation. 

	 The Group embrace water saving behaviour, such as collecting rainwater for cleaning our prime movers, cranes and 
shovel.

	 In FYE2020, the Group water & electricity consumption decreased by 8.3%, RM2.958million (FYE2019: 
RM3.228million).

	 Fuel management

	 Fuel is our prime resource. The Group continuously monitor and control its fuel consumption to ensure optimal use 
on its operations.

	 IMO 2020 mandates a maximum sulphur content of 0.5% in marine fuels globally. As of last quarter of 2019, the 
Group has complied with the new emission standards with instituted low sulphur Marine Gas Oil (“MGO”) with a 
sulphur content of 0.1% or less instead of using the high sulphur MGO. This subsequently reduce the air pollution 
created in the shipping industry by reducing the sulphur content of the fuels that ships use. 

(d)	 Environmental Compliance

	 The Group endeavour to comply with all applicable laws, regulations and statutory obligations relating to 
environmental issues. In FYE2020, the Group had not been penalised for any significant environmental laws and 
regulations violations, neither as the Group imposed with any fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance 
with environmental violations by the Department of Environment (FYE 2019:NIL)

Sustainability Report
(Cont’d)
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Material sustainability matters : Environmental (continued)

(d)	 Environmental Compliance (continued)

	 The Group has complied with all the relevant Laws and Standards including:-
 

Material sustainability matters : Social

(a)	 Occupational Health & Safety

	 Safety at work is a condition for the performance of work without exposure to the risk of accidents or occupational 
disease. Historically the Group has dedicated significant effort to the protection of health and safety; over the years 
it has promoted a profound change in safety culture, as a first step towards further development. The key element is 
personnel training as a tool for risk prevention.

	 The Group is committed to constantly developing an active role in the field of occupational health and safety through 
the following actions:

•	 always acting in full compliance with mandatory laws and reference standards;
•	 managing the hazards and risks identified in relation to activities and duties, constantly updating knowledge on 

the subject in order to prevent accidents and injuries;
•	 periodically reviewing the Health & Safety policy and targets;
•	 raising the skills and awareness of all people involved in its activities by means of adequate information and 

training, in the belief that more knowledge brings more safety and ensures the cultural change necessary to 
improve results;

•	 cooperating with stakeholders on policy and continuous improvement, so as to create alignment between the 
Company's top management and all employees.

	 With the recent pandemic outbreak of Covid-19, the Group monitored closely the Ministry of International Trade 
and Industry (“MITI”)’s Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP”) and Ministry of Health (“MOH”) guidelines to take 
appropriate steps constantly to ensure maximum protection of employees and business especially in areas reporting 
Covid-19.

Sustainability Report
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Labour

Marine

Safety, Health and 
Environment

•	 Employment Act 1955
•	 Personal Data Protection Act 2010
•	 Workmen Compensation Act 1952
•	 Employees’ Social Security Act 1969
•	 Employees Provident Fund Act 1991
•	 Income Tax Act 1967

•	 International Safety Management Code (“ISM Code”)
•	 Ship Management System (“SMS”)
•	 Marine TransportRegulations Act
•	 CLASS marine

•	 Occupational Safety & Health Act, 1994
•	 Fire Service Act, 1988
•	 Environmental Quality Act, 1974
•	 Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP”) in relation of managing Covid-19 by 

Ministry of International Trade and Industry (“MITI”)
•	 Guidelines COVID-19 management in Malaysia No.5/2020 by Ministry of Health 

(“MOH”)
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

(a)	 Occupational Health & Safety (continued)

	 INCIDENT REPORT

						                                               	Total Reported / Cases
	 Category						     Jul'19 - Jun'20	 Jul'18 - Jun'19

	 Unsafe Act				     	 2	 5
	 Unsafe Conditions				    123	 106
	 Near Miss					     0	 0
	 Environmental Spillage 				    0	 0
	 Fire Outbreak					     3	 2
	 Property Damage				    1	 1
	 First Aid						      16	 18
	 Medical Treatment				    500	 602
	 Restricted Work				    2	 0
	 Lost Time Injury (LTI) Frequency rate				    0	 19.3
	 Fatality						      0	 0

	 IN HOUSE TRAINING

	 No.	 Training					     Date

	 1.	 Effective Fire Fighting Team in Shipyard - Fire Management		  1st - 2nd October 2019
	 2.	 Evacuation Controller Training - Fire Management			   21st October 2019
	 3.	 Implementing Fire Watcher at Workplace - PTW Implementation		  12th July 2019
	 4.	 First Aid in Workplace				    18th October 2019
	 5.	 Schedule Waste Handling				    3rd October 2019
	 6.	 Fire Drill (Floating Dock)				    29th November 2019
	 7.	 Effective Search & Rescue				    1st - 2nd October 2019
	 8.	 Fire Drill (SYSC HQ)				    11th February 2020
	 9.	 Fire Drill(SYSY2 Office)				    14th February 2020

	 ENFORCEMENT 

	 No.	 Training					     Date

	 1.	 Hygiene Inspection (Wooden Quarters)			   17th February 2020
	 2.	 Hygiene Inspection (Scabies Outbreak)			   2nd November 2019
	 3.	 Random Urine Drug Test (with AADK)			   4th August 2020

	 WASTE MANAGEMENT

	 No.	 Waste Code	 Waste Name	 Type of Disposal	 Collector

	 1	 SW 305	 Spent Lubricant Oil	 Incineration	 TLM Tiasa Hijau
	 2	 SW 306	 Spent Hydraulic Oil	 Incineration	 TLM Tiasa Hijau
	 3	 SW 409	 Used Paint Container 	 Incineration	 TLM Tiasa Hijau
	 4	 SW 102	 Used lead Batteries	 Incineration	 E - Concern

Sustainability Report
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

(a)	 Occupational Health & Safety (continued)

	 Evacuation Controller Training

	 Fire FighterTraining
 

	 Search and Rescue Training 	
	

Sustainability Report
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

(a)	 Occupational Health & Safety (continued)

	 First Aid Training

	 Schedule Waste Management

	 Fire Drill Exercise	 Drug Test 

 

Sustainability Report
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

(b)	 Training and education

	 We offer our employees training programme and opportunities to attend seminars, workshops and conferences 
covering a wide range of economic, environmental, financial and social matters that are integral to the successful 
running of the Group’s operations and for the career development of employees

(c)	 Diversity and equality

	 Employee diversity is of significant importance to the Group, as we believe a diverse workforce promotes a culture 
that is open-minded, and encourages new ways of thinking and thriving, that is especially significant for a global 
minded corporation. The diversity of our employees is evidenced by the profile of our 1,212 employees working for the 
Group, from over fifteen nationalities across regions. This number encompasses permanent and contract employees. 
We practice a non-discriminatory hiring policy and all our employees are hired based on capability and expertise. 

	 Below is the Group’s Employee Demographic Highlights FYE 2020:-

Sustainability Report
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	 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES	 NO

	 PERMANENT	 Female	 272
 			   Male	 458

	 CONTRACT	 Female	 7
 			   Male	 475

				    1,212

	 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES	
	 BY AGE GROUP		  NO

	 30, and under	 Female	 118
 			   Male	 273

	 31-40	 Female	 114
 			   Male	 262

	 41-50	 Female	 34
 			   Male	 245

	 51 and above	 Female	 13
 			   Male	 153

				    1,212

	 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
	 BY NATIONALITY		  NO

	 Malaysian		  781
	 Non- Malaysian		  431

				    1,212

	 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
	 BY EMPLOYMENT LEVELS		  NO

	 MANAGEMENT	 Female	 1
 			   Male	 27

	 EXECUTIVE	 Female	 42
 			   Male	 163

	 NON- EXECUTIVE	 Female	 235
 			   Male	 160

	 GENERAL WORKER	 Female	 6
 			   Male	 578

				    1,212
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

Across the Group, the male outnumbered female employee considering the business nature and models of logistics and 
marine working environment. Male employees accounted for 77%, while remaining 23% for female.

Female

Percentage of employee by Gender

Male

77%

23%

The Group encourages diversity, approximately 64% of our employee are Malaysian, and the remaining 36% were from other 
ethnic group and foreigners. Whenever possible, the Group hire local employees at our operations.
 

IN MALAYSIA Non-Malaysian

Percentage of employee by nationality

IN MALAYSIA  Malaysian

36%

64%

The Group has a young employee profile where almost 32% of the employees are under 30 years old, while 31% of the 
employees are between the age band of 31-40 years old, 23% of the employees are between the age band of 41 -50. The 
remaining 14% of employees aged above 50, which comprise of the senior employees who share their experience focusing 
their roles in providing guidance and mentorship to our young employees. The Group continues to engage effectively with 
our employees and employing more graduates and trainees to be part of our workforce through nurturing career development 
prospects.

30 and under 51 and under31 - 40 41 - 50
0%
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Percentage of Employee by Age

32% 31%

23%
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Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

(d)	 Employee welfare

	 We understand that our employee need meaningful career development and skills improvement as well as competitive 
compensation and benefits to cope with rising cost of living. 

	 The Group complies with the local statutory requirements on wages and benefits such as minimum wages order, 
employees’ provident fund, social security protection, bonus payment in line with performance indicators and annual 
leave provision. 

Stakeholders engagement

The Group recognised that stakeholders engagement and their feedback are an integral part of its sustainability strategy and 
initiatives.

Employees

CustomersCommunities

Suppliers
Shareholders / 

Investors

Government and 
regulators

The stakeholders engagement process involved booth formal and informal approaches. The followings provide an overview 
of the efforts involved in the Group’s focus on stakeholders’ engagement.

Stakeholder Group Modes of engagement Key areas of interest Outcomes

Employees -	 Management meetings
-	 Internal communications 

such as newsletters, 
intranet and updates

-	 Events and functions 
Meetings & training

-	 recreational and team 
competition sessions

-	 Occupational safety & 
health, sustainability 
updates, environmental 
compliance, update of 
Group’s performance & 
areas for improvement

-	 improves employees’ 
understanding on 
sustainability policies 
& practices, vision and 
direction, culture & 
values of the Group

-	 build cordial employer - 
employee relationship, 
and strong team spirit 
for workplace

Customers -	 one-to-one meetings
-	 engagement survey
-	 appreciation dinner

-	 product quality, price 
competitiveness, 
development and 
improvement of 
sustainable supply chain 
direct materials

-	 better awareness of the 
company’s commitment 
to sustainability, 
better understanding 
of Group’s policies, 
cultures & values

Sustainability Report
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Sustainability Report
(Cont’d)

Material sustainability matters : Social (continued)

Stakeholders engagement (continued)

Stakeholder Group Modes of engagement Key areas of interest Outcomes

Suppliers -	 one-to-one meetings
-	 engagement survey
-	 appreciation dinner
-	 contract bidding & 

tendering meeting

-	 group procurement 
policies, ethical business 
practices, safety at 
workplace, pollution and 
sustainable development

-	 better understanding of 
the Group’s business 
ethical values & culture; 
awareness of the 
Group’s sustainability 
commitments

Government and 
Regulators

-	 official visits & dialogue
-	 events and seminars
-	 regular reporting

-	 compliance of relevant 
regulatory requirements, 
plight of severe foreign 
workers shortage & 
foreign workers’ policy

-	 awareness of latest 
updates on regulatory 
requirements & 
compliance thereof

Shareholders / 
Investors

-	 Annual General Meeting
	 Annual report 

and quarterly 
announcements of 
financial results

-	 Company’s website

-	 return on investment
-	 business prospects

-	 better understanding 
of the Group’s 
sustainability progress

Communities -	 internship opportunities 
for students and study 
tours

-	 official launches and 
corporate events

-	 career in shipping / 
shipbuilding / ship repair

-	 Group’s activities 
on corporate social 
responsibility

-	 create awareness on 
working life, career 
development

-	 better understanding 
of the Group as a 
responsible corporate 
citizen amongst local 
communities at large

Investor Relations

The Company recognizes the importance of granting investors and general investing community access to quality and timely 
information on the company’s business and operations, performance, processes and developments.

The Company engagement with investors primarily via its investor relationship team who regularly delivers presentations to 
analysts and dialogue sessions.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting also provides a forum to facilitate the exchange of shareholders’ view and offers 
opportunities for shareholders to ask questions. The Board of Directors and key members of management team are available 
to answer questions raised.

Announcements, disclosures and reports are made available to the public at large via the Company website and Bursa 
Malaysia page
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The Board is committed to ensure that high standards of corporate governance are practiced throughout the Group in 
discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’ value. 

The Board believes that good corporate governance adds value to the business of the Group and will ensure that this practice 
continues. The Board of Directors believes in playing an active role in guiding the Management through its oversight review 
while at the same time steer the Group’s business directions and strategies.

The statement outlines how the Group has applied the principles of corporate governance and the extent of compliance with 
the principles, recommendations and best practices set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG”) 
and is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance Report (CG Report) which is available on the Group’s website.

The three (3) principles of corporate governance as set out in MCCG are:-

Principle A:	 Board leadership and effectiveness;
Principle B:	 Effective audit and risk management; and
Principle C:	 Integrity in corporate reporting and meaningful relationship with stakeholders

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

Roles and responsibilities

The Board has the overall stewardship responsibilities of providing strategic leadership, overseeing the business conduct, 
identification and management of principal risks, ensuring the adequacy and integrity of internal control systems, establishing 
a succession plan and developing and implementing an investor relation programs.

The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to two (2) committees, namely, the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
and the Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee, both of which discharge the duties and responsibilities within their 
respective terms of reference. The final decision is the responsibility of the Board after considering the recommendations of 
the respective committees.

Clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by two different individuals. Tan Sri Datuk Ling is the 
Chairman whereas Captain Ting Hien Liong is the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. 

The district and separate roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, with a clear division of responsibilities, ensure 
a balance of power and authority, such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making. The chairman is 
responsible for leadership, orderly conduct and working of the Board, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for 
the management of the Group’s business.

Board composition and balance

The Group is led and managed by a competent Board which set the policies to enable them to lead and guide the Group to 
achieve its goals. The Board currently has nine (9) board members comprising three (3) Executive Directors and six (6) Non-
Executive Directors, of which four (4) of them are independent. This has met the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main 
Market Listing Requirements which requires nearest of one third of the Board to be Independent Directors. 

The profile of each director is presented on page 7 to page 11 in the Annual Report.

Together, the Directors bring with them a broad range of hands on extensive experience and expertise in the areas such 
as finance, corporate affairs, marine law, business acumen, logistic management and shipping and shipbuilding technical 
operations, which are vital to the success of the Group.

The Board believe that appointment of board members, regardless of gender, should be based on experience, character, 
integrity and competence as these are the essential criteria for an effective Board.

None of the Board members holds more than five (5) directorships in public listed companies to ensure they devote sufficient 
time to carry out their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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Time Commitment 

Directors are expected to give sufficient time to carry out their duties and responsibilities. In line with paragraph 15.06 of the 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad in relation to the restriction on directorship in listed companies, all 
Directors of the Company complied with the limits on directorships held in the public listed companies.

Board Charter

The roles and functions of the Board are delineated in the Board Charter, which is available on the Company’s website.

The charter shall be reviewed periodically as stipulated to ensure its relevance in assisting the Board to execute its duties with 
changes in corporate laws and regulations that may arise from time to time.

Board Committee

The Board has delegated certain functions to the committees to assist in the execution of its responsibilities:

•	 Audit and Risk Management Committee   

	 The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises four (4) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non- 
Independent Non-Executive Director. The composition, responsibilities, detailed terms of reference and the activities 
of the Committee during the financial year are set out separately in the Audit and Risk Management Committee Report 
on page 47 to 50 of the Annual Report.

•	 Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee

	 The Committee is responsible for recommending the remuneration framework for Directors as well as the remuneration 
packages of Executive Directors to the Board for approval and also recommending the right candidates with the 
necessary skills, knowledge, expertise and experience including his/her professionalism and integrity to fill in the 
Board. The Committee is also responsible to assess the effectiveness of the Board, its Committee and the performance 
of individual Director annually. The members of the Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee are as follow:

Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son – Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Koh Ek Chong - Independent Non-Executive Director

Ling Siu Chuo – Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.

Arshad Bin Zainuddin - Independent Non-Executive Director 

	 The Committee meets as and when necessary. For the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Committee held one 
meeting.

The respective Committees operate under clearly defined terms of reference and the Chairman of the respective Committees 
report to the Board on the outcome of the Committee Meetings.

Supply and Access of Information

All Directors have full access to information concerning the Company and the Group. The Directors are provided with the 
relevant agenda and a set of Board papers in sufficient time prior to every Board meeting to enable them to understand the 
matter and seek further explanation, where necessary in order to be properly informed before the meeting. The Board papers 
circulated include quarterly and annual financial statements, minutes of meeting of all Committees of the Board, report on 
recurrent related party transactions, internal audit reports and reports on the Group’s financial, operational and corporate 
developments. All matters requiring Board approvals have been duly circulated prior to the Board Meeting. All proceedings 
of the Board Meeting are minuted and signed as correct record by the Chairman of the Meeting.

At all times, Directors have direct access to the advice and the services of the Company Secretary, Key Senior Management 
Staff as well as independent professional advisers including the external auditors. All Directors are encouraged to visit the 
Group’s operating locations to familiarize themselves with the various operations of the Group.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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Board Meeting

Board meetings are scheduled in advance to enable all directors to plan ahead. The Board meets at least four times a year 
with additional meetings to be convened as and when the Board’s approval and guidance is required.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Board met a total of four times.
Details of the attendance are as follows:

No	 Directors	 Status of Directorship	 Attendance at meetings

1	 Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho	 Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman	 4 out of 4 (100%)
2	 Ling Chiong Sing	 Group Managing Director	 4 out of 4 (100%)
3	 Ling Chiong Pin	 Executive Director 	 4 out of 4 (100%)
4	 Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son	 Independent Non-Executive Director	 4 out of 4 (100%)
5	 Koh Ek Chong	 Independent Non-Executive Director	 4 out of 4 (100%)
6	 Ling Siu Chuo	 Non-Independent Non-Executive Director	 3 out of 4   (75%)
7	 Vincent Ling Lu Yew	 Executive Director 	 4 out of 4 (100%)
8	 Arshad Bin Zainuddin	 Independent Non-Executive Director 	 4 out of 4 (100%)
9	 Hudson Chua Jain	 Independent Non-Executive Director	 1 out of 1* (100%)
			   *Appointed on 
			   16 March 2020

At the Board Meeting, strategies and performance of the Group are being reviewed and evaluated in the light of any changing 
circumstances whether economic, social or political. Although all the Directors have an equal responsibility for the Group’s 
operation and performance, the role played by the Independent Non-Executive Directors are vital to ensure that strategies 
formulated or transactions proposed by the management are amply discussed in an unbiased and independent manner, 
taking into account the interest not only of the Group but also the shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, business 
associates, environment and community at large.

Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Board is committed to maintain a corporate culture with good ethical conduct. This is formalised through the Company’s 
Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct which set out in the Company’s Employment Letters. The Letter covers matters in 
relation to conflict of interest, entertainment and gifts, misuse of position, insider trading and misconduct. The directors and 
employees of the Group are expected to adhere to the standard of ethics and conduct set out therein.

Appointment and Retirement of Directors

The appointment of any additional directors is made as and when it is deemed necessary by the Board of Directors with 
due consideration given to a good mix of knowledge, skills and experiences required for the Board to discharge its duties 
effectively. The appointment of new Director by the Board is dependent upon recommendation from the Joint Remuneration 
and Nomination Committee. Any proposal to appoint new directors will be discussed among the Board members and 
appointment to the Board will be documented in the Board resolutions.

The Company Constitution provides that one third of the Board shall retire from office and be eligible for re-election at every 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). The Directors to retire in each year are the Directors who have been longest in office since 
their last appointment or re-appointment. A retiring Director is eligible for re-appointment. These provide an opportunity for 
the shareholders to renew their mandates. The election of each Director is voted on separately.

Tenure of Independent Directors

The Board complied with the recommendation of the MCCG 2017 that the tenure of an independent Director should not 
exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years. However, if an independent director whose service is required beyond nine (9) 
years but less than twelve (12) years, shareholders’ approval is sought in the AGM. For an independent director whose 
service is required beyond a cumulative term twelve (12) years, shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting process 
would be sought in the Annual General Meeting. The Board noted that Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son and Mr. Koh Ek Chong, 
the independent Non-Executive Directors have served on the Board for more than nine (9) years but less that twelve (12) 
years. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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The Joint Remuneration and Nominee Committee had reviewed the performance of Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son and Mr. 
Koh Ek Chong and was of the view that the independence of a Director is measured by his conduct and his state of mind, his 
appearance as well as his ability to exercise independent judgment and act in the best interest of the Company. The length 
of time is not the sole determinant of his credibility as an Independent Director. 

Annual Assessment of Independence of Independent Director

The Board, through the Joint Remuneration and Nominee Committee, assesses the independence of Independent Directors 
annually. The criteria for assessing the independence of an Independent Director include the relationship between the 
Independent Director and the Company and his involvement in any significant transaction with the Company.

Based on the assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors conducted by the Joint 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee on 27 August 2020, the Board is satisfied that all Independent Non-Executive 
Directors are able to provide check and balance to the Board’s decision making process and bring independent and objective 
judgement to board deliberations.

The Board composition has met the Main Market Listing Requirements and the MCCG 2017 for a balanced board which is 
fulfilled with Independent Directors constituting one-third of the Board.

Shareholders’ approval for the Continuance in Office as Independent Directors

The Board would seek shareholders’ approval at the AGM if an Independent Director who has served in that capacity for 
more than nine (9) years shall remain as an Independent Director. For the forthcoming 15th Annual General Meeting (“15th 
AGM”), the two (2) Directors namely, Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son and Mr. Koh Ek Chong will seek shareholders’ approval to 
continue to act as Independent Directors. 

The Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee will assess the independence of the Independent Director based on 
the assessment criteria developed by the Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee, and recommended to the Board 
for recommendation to shareholders for approval. Justification for the Board’s recommendation would be provided to 
shareholders, where applicable. 

Directors’ Training 

All the Directors have attended and completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) prescribed by the Bursa 
Malaysia Training Sdn Bhd. The Directors are also encouraged to attend the Continuing Education Programme (“CEP”) 
organized by accredited organisations as and when necessary to keep abreast with the latest development that are relevant 
to the Group.

The Directors having during the financial year ended 30 June 2020, attended the trainings covered a range of topics which 
provided the Directors with updates on business trends and management, risk management, corporate governance, financial 
and audit. These trainings are regarded as appropriate in providing the Directors with continuous education and enhancement 
of their knowledge and skill in discharging of their responsibilities as directors of the Company

Directors’ Remuneration

The Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the annual salaries, incentive programmes, service arrangements 
and other employment conditions for the Executive Directors. They shall ensure that the Company’s Directors are fairly 
rewarded for their individual contributions to the Company’s overall performance and the levels of remuneration shall be 
sufficient to attract and retain Directors to run the Company and Group successfully. Where applicable, the Board who 
takes into consideration information sourced by independent consultant or survey information on comparable companies in 
determining the remuneration package.

The Group pays its Non-Executive Directors annual fees, which are approved annually by the shareholders. The Directors 
are also reimbursed reasonable expenses incurred by them in the course of carrying out their duties on behalf of the Group.

The determination of remuneration packages of Directors are determined by the Board as a whole and individuals are required 
to abstain from discussion of their own remuneration.
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The aggregate and range of Directors’ remuneration for the directors of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 
2020 are as follows:

Aggregate of remuneration Company Subsidiaries Group

Fees
Salaries 

and Bonus Others
Company 

Total
Salaries 

and Bonus Others Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

EXECUTIVE - 845 35 880 504 51 1,435

NON-EXECUTIVE 104 - 176 280 60 3 343

Total 104 845 211 1,160 564 54 1,778

		  	 Number of Directors
Range of remuneration	 Executive	 Non-Executive

Below RM50,000	 -	 5
RM200,001 to RM250,000	 -	 1
RM250,001 to RM300,000	 1	 -
RM400,001 to RM450,000	 1	 -
RM750,001 to RM800,000	 1	 -

PRINCIPLES B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control which provides reasonable 
assurance of effective and efficient operations, and compliance with regulations as well as with internal procedures and 
guidelines.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is set out on page 43 to 46 of the annual report.
The Internal Audit function reports directly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The activities carried out by the 
Internal Audit Department for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 are set out in the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Report presented on page 50 of this Annual Report.

Relationship with Auditors

Through the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the Group maintained a formal and transparent professional relationship 
with the internal and external auditors in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with the accounting standards 
in Malaysia. The Audit and Risk Management Committee meets with the external auditors at least once a year to review 
audit plans and to facilitate exchange of view on issues requiring attention. Key features of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee’s term of reference are set out on page 47 to 50 of the Annual Report.     

PRINCIPLES C – INTERGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Financial Reporting

The Board aims to present a balanced, meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial position and prospects primarily 
through its annual report and quarterly interim financial results. In the process of preparing these financial statements, the 
Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, reviewed the accounting policies and practices to ensure that they are 
consistently applied throughout the financial year. In cases where judgment and estimates were made, they were based on 
reasonableness and prudence. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the applicable approved 
accounting standards.

The Statement by Directors pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 is set out on page 59 of this Report.
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Ensure timely and high quality disclosure

The Board recognises the importance of timely dissemination of accurate information pertaining to the Group’s business 
activities and financial performance to its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The Group’s financial results, announcements, annual report and circulars can be accessed from the Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad’s website at www.bursamalaysia.com. In addition, shareholders and investors may also access other information 
about the Group via the Company’s corporate website at www.syshippingcorp.com.my. 

Strengthen relationship between company and shareholders

The Group recognized the importance of effective and timely communication with shareholders and investors to keep them 
informed on the Group’s latest business and corporate developments. Such information is disseminated via the Company’s 
quarterly financial results, the various announcements, annual reports, circulars to shareholders made from time to time and 
notices of general meeting. The policy of the Group is to maintain an active dialogue with its shareholders with the intention 
of giving shareholders at clear and precise picture of the Group’s performance and position.

The Group Managing Director and Financial Controller cum Company Secretary hold dialogues with the institutional investors 
and presentations to analysts to keep them updated on the Group’s performance, business expansion plans and other 
matters related to shareholders’ interest.

The Group’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is the principal avenue for dialogue and interaction with the shareholders. 
At the AGM, the shareholders are encouraged to ask questions both about the resolutions being proposed and about the 
Group’s operations in general. Where it is not possible to provide immediate answers, the Chairman will undertake to furnish 
the necessary shareholders with a written answer after the AGM. The Chairman of the Board also addresses the shareholders 
on the review of the Group’s operation for the financial year and outlines the prospect of the Group for the subsequent 
financial year in the Chairman’s statement on page 13 to 16. Resolutions tabled and passed at the AGM are released to Bursa 
Malaysia on the same day to enable the public to be informed of the outcome.

The Group’s website, www.syshippingcorp.com.my allows all the shareholders and investors to gain access to the information 
about the Group.

At all times, investors and shareholders may contact the Company Secretary for information of the Group.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

i)	 Shares Buy-back

	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Company bought back 2,680,000 shares from the open market as 
follows:

	 Month of Purchase	 Total	 Total
					     number	 Purchase	 Highest	 Lowest	 Average 
					     Of Shares	 Consideration	 Price	 Price	 Price 
					     Purchased	 (RM)	 Paid (RM)	 Paid (RM)	 Paid (RM)

	 July 2019			  63,000	 18,318.01	 0.300	 0.275	 0.291
	 August 2019		  25,000	 7,025.00	 0.285	 0.280	 0.281
	 September 2019	 21,000	 5,680.08	 0.280	 0.270	 0.281
	 March 2020		  1,845,900	 292,439.99	 0.200	 0.120	 0.158
	 April 2020		  350,000	 54,862.81	 0.180	 0.135	 0.157
	 May 2020		  75,000	 14,500.05	 0.200	 0.190	 0.193
	 June 2020		  300,100	 55,218.33	 0.200	 0.180	 0.184

	 TOTAL			   2,680,000	 448,044.27	 0.300	 0.120	 0.167

	 All the shares purchased by the Company were retained as treasury shares. There were no treasury shares resold or 
cancelled during the financial year. As at 30 June 2020, a total of 31,421,400 shares were held as treasury shares.
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ii)	 Imposition of Sanction and / or Penalties

	 There were no sanctions and/or penalties on the Company or its subsidiaries, directors or management by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

iii)	 Non-Audit Fees

	 The amount of non-audit fees paid to the external auditor, Messer Ernst & Young, by the Company and its subsidiaries 
during the financial year ended 30 June 2020 amounted to RM50,500 for the professional services rendered as 
follows:

	 Company				    Review of 
							      Internal Control 
							       System (RM)	 Tax Fee (RM)	 Total (RM)

	 Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad			   5,000	 4,000	 9,000
	 Its subsidiaries			   -	 41,500	 41,500

	 Total (RM)				    5,000	 45,500	 50,500

iv)	 Variation of Results 

	 There were no material variances between the audited results of the financial year ended 30 June 2020 and the 
announced unaudited results.

v)	 Profit Guarantee 

	 There were no profit guarantees given by the Company and its subsidiaries.

vi)	 Revaluation Policy

	 The Group does not adopt a policy of regular revaluation.

vii)	 Share Options Offered to Non-Executive Directors

	 There were no share options granted during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

viii)	 Utilisation of Rights Issue Proceeds

	 There were no rights issue proceeds during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.
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ix)	 Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (“RRPT”)

	 The RRPT entered into by the Group during the financial year ended 30 June 2020 were as follows:

Name of 
Related Parties

Nature of 
transaction 
with the 
Related Parties

Business Activities of Related 
Parties

Manner of relationship in 
the Related Parties

Financial 
Year Ended 

30 June 
2020 

Actual
(RM’000)Director

Major 
Shareholder

Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd and Companies related to Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd

1. Shin Yang 
Holding 
Group(1) 

Provision 
of shipping 
services by the 
Group

Hypermarket and departmental 
store, hotel business, wood-
based products manufacturing, 
reforestation and oil palm 
operations, quarry operation, 
construction and engineering, 
transportation services and 
logistics, parts & hardware 
supplies, agriculture, glue 
manufacturing, industrial gas 
manufacturing, sales of marine 
equipment and electrical 
engineering

Yes Yes 83,440

2. Shin Yang 
Holding 
Group(1) 

Provision of 
fabrication 
services by the 
Group

Reforestation and wood-based 
products manufacturing, quarry 
operation, construction and 
engineering, transportation 
services and logistics, and parts 
& hardware supplies.

Yes Yes 883

3. Shin Yang 
Holding 
Group(1) 

Purchase of 
marine hardware 
supplies and 
spare parts by 
the Group

Trading house and transportation 
and haulage service

Yes Yes 13,858

4. Shin Yang 
Holding 
Group(1) 

Rental of 
properties by 
the Group

Investment and properties 
holding and construction & 
engineering

Yes Yes 353

5. Shin Yang 
Holding 
Group(1) 

Purchase of 
transportation 
services 
and hotel 
accommodation 
by the Group

Investment holding, 
transportation and haulage 
services, provision of bus 
services, ticketing agents and 
provision of hotel accommodation

Yes Yes 14,110

6. Piasau 
Gas Sdn 
Bhd and 
Shin Yang 
Services 
Sdn Bhd(2) 

Purchase of 
industrial gas, 
diesel and 
bunker by the 
Group

Industrial gas manufacturing and 
trading house

Yes Yes 8,387
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Name of 
Related Parties

Nature of 
transaction 
with the 
Related Parties

Business Activities of Related 
Parties

Manner of relationship in 
the Related Parties

Financial 
Year Ended 

30 June 
2020 

Actual
(RM’000)Director

Major 
Shareholder

Companies connected to the Directors or Person Connected to the Directors

7. Ling 
Family 
Group(3)

Provision 
of shipping 
services by the 
Group

Equipment and machinery 
supplies, tyre retreading, oil 
palm planting, wet market 
supply in hypermarket, hydraulic 
hose supplies and barrage 
management

Yes Yes 3,221

8. Ling 
Family 
Group(3)

Provision of 
fabrication 
services by the 
Group

Equipment and machinery 
supplies,  scrap metal dealer , 
and barrage management

Yes Yes 505

9. Ling 
Family 
Group(3)

Purchase of 
marine hardware 
supplies and 
spare parts by 
the Group

Ration supplier and trading house Yes Yes 2,338

10. Ling 
Family 
Group(3)

Rental of 
property by the 
Group

Provision of berthing facilities and 
letting of properties

Yes Yes 48

11. Ling 
Family 
Group(3)

Purchase of 
transportation 
services and 
accommodation 
services by the 
Group

Public transportation 
and provision of hotel 
accommodation.

Yes Yes 8

Notes:-

(1)	 Subsidiary companies of Shin Yang Holding Sdn Bhd, which Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho, Ling Chiong Sing 
and Ling Chiong Pin who are the Directors and Major Shareholders. Shin Yang Holding Sdn. Bhd. Is the holding 
company of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad.

(2)	 Associated companies of Shin Yang Holding Group

(3)	 Companies in which Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho, Ling Chiong Sing, Ling Chiong Pin, Ling Siu Chuo and 
Vincent Ling Lu Yew have substantial interests and / or directorships. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
(Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 43

The Board affirms its commitment to maintain sound risk management practices and internal control system in the Group 
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements, the Board is pleased to provide the following 
statement on risk management and internal control, which outlines the nature and scope of internal controls of the Group 
during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY 

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities is fully committed to maintaining a sound risk management practices and internal 
control environment to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and Group’s assets. The Board has an overall responsibility for 
the Group’s system of risk management and internal control and its effectiveness, as well as reviewing its adequacy and 
integrity. The Group’s risk management process and system of internal control consists of financial controls, operational and 
compliance controls and risk management procedures of the Group.

In view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of risk management and  internal control, our system is designed to 
manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives. The Board continuously evaluates appropriate 
measures to strengthen the transparency and efficiency of its operations taking into account the requirements for sound and 
appropriate internal control and management information system of the Group.

The Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director that the Group’s risk management 
and internal control system is operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk management 
practices and internal control system of the Group.

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control system in place for the year under review and up to the 
date of issuance of the financial statements is adequate and effective to safeguard the shareholders’ investment, the interests 
of customers, regulators, employees and the Group’s assets.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

The management assist the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risk and control by 
identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting risk and internal control, as well as taking proper actions to address risks. 
The Management has further assured the Board that the Group’s risk management and internal control system are operating 
adequately and effectively in all material aspects.  

KEY COMPONENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Risk Management

The Board has made risk assessment an on-going exercise to effectively identify, evaluate, manage and review any changes 
in the risks faced by the businesses in the Group. The risk management process involves all business and functional units 
of the Group identifying significant risks which impact the achievement of business objectives of the Group. The Group has 
established procedures for reporting and monitoring of risks and controls. Regular reviews are conducted with additional 
procedures to be carried out as and when required.

The Audit Committee has been delegated to oversee the risk management activities and approve appropriate risk 
management procedures and measurement methodologies for the Group.
 

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
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The Group’s risk management framework is set out in the diagram below:-

Risk Management Process

 

A summary of the risk management procedures undertaken under the structure of the Group’s Risk Management Framework 
as outline below:-

i)	 Risk Identification Process

-	 Process of identifying all risks , threats and opportunities that might help or prevent the Group in achieving its 
objective

-	 Carried out under the responsibility of all level of management team of the Group in relation to existing and 
proposed activities, systems and procedures.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)

- Oversee the overall risk management and internal control framework
- Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the  system

- Assessment and consolidation of department risk registry prior to 
  update Group’s Risk Register.
-Monitoring risk profile and risk tolerance of the Group 
- Developing appropriate strategies and plans to mitigate material risks

- Monitoring the discharge of roles and responsibilities of the Risk 
  Management Team 
- Evaluating the adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal 
  control framework

- Day to day risk management decisions
- Adoption of the risk and specialist risk frameworks
- Coordinate with Risk Management Team on implementation of risk 
  manageement policy and practices
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ii)	 Risk Evaluation Process

-	 Process of ranking risk based on the risk likelihood rating and risk impact rating.
-	 Risk assessment may be influenced by any divergence of opinions, biases, perceptions of risk, judgements and 

experiences, which shall be considered, documented and communicated with Risk Management team.

iii)	 Risk Treatment Process

-	 Process of select and implement options for addressing the risks identified made in accordance with the Group’s 
objectives, risk criteria and available resources.

-	 The implementation of risk mitigation actions are delegated for execution.

iv)	 Risk Monitoring and Reporting

-	 Process which involves the review of risk management process for continuous improvement as well as when new 
risks are identified, where risk management forms an integral part of the Group’s business operations to achieve 
profitability and sustainable growth.

OTHER KEY COMPONENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT  

Review of the Statement by External Auditors

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to the scope set 
out in Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3, Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report (“AAPG3”) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
(“MIA”) for inclusion in the annual report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020, and reported to the Board that nothing 
has come to their attention that cause them to believe that the statement intended to be included in the annual report of 
the Group, in all material respects: has not been prepared in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 
and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, or is factually 
inaccurate. 

AAPG3 does not require the external auditors to consider whether the Directors’ Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management 
and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Directors and management thereon. The report from 
the external auditor was made solely for, and directed solely to the Board in connection with their compliance with the listing 
requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and for no other purposes or parties. The external auditors do not assume 
responsibility to any person other than the board of directors in respect of any aspect of this report.

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least quarterly and has a formal agenda on matters for discussion and approval. Presentation of board 
papers, comprehensive explanation and feedback from the board members are the prerequisites to arriving at a decision.

Organisational structure with defined responsibility and authority

We have in place an organisational structure with defined responsibility lines and authority to facilitate response to changes 
in the business environment and accountability for operational performance. Capital and non-capital expenditures and 
acquisition and disposal of investment interests are subject to appropriate approval processes and evaluations.

Operational policies and procedures

The documented policies and procedures form an integral control system to safeguard the Group’s assets against material 
losses and ensure completeness and accuracy of financial information. The documents consist of memorandum, circulars 
and letters, which are continuously being revised and updated to meet operational needs.

We have business planning and budgetary system in place to manage performance of the business activities, which compared 
with the actual performance against set targets on a periodic basis.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 202046

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department which reports quarterly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee, reviews on the internal 
control system and the effectiveness of risk control areas of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control as well as reviewing 
issues identified by the internal auditors. The Audit Committee also ensures that there is a continuous effort by management 
to address and resolve areas where weaknesses exist.

All audit findings, recommendations and management actions are rigorously deliberated upon during Audit Committee 
meetings before reporting to the Board. Quarterly reports to the Audit Committee track the progress towards completion of 
all corrective actions taken on issues highlighted by the Group Internal Audit.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly results of the Group and if satisfied recommends adoption of such results to the 
Board.

STRENGTH IN INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board is not aware of any material losses incurred during the financial year as a result of weaknesses in internal control 
and the Board and Management continue to take measures to strengthen the control environment within the Group.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
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Audit and Risk Management Committee Report

MEMBERS	 Hudson Chua Jain
	 Chairman and Independent Non –Executive Director

	 Koh Ek Chong
	 Independent Non –Executive Director

	 Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son
	 Independent Non –Executive Director

	 Ling Siu Chuo
	 Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

	 Arshad Bin Zainuddin 
	 Independent Non –Executive Director

TERMS OF REFERENCE	 The Committee was established in 2010 and with effect from 2020, it was renamed as 
Audit and Risk Management Committee, to serve as a Committee of the Board, with the 
terms of reference as set out below:

COMPOSITION OF THE	 •	 The Committee shall comprise not less that three members.
COMMITTEE	 •	 All members of the Committee must be non-executive directors, with a majority of 

them being independent directors.
	 •	 All members of the Committee should be financially literate and at least one member 

of the Committee must be a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘MIA”)
	 •	 No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Committee
	 •	 The Chairman who shall be elected by the member of the Committee must be an 

independent non-executive director.
	 •	 Any vacancy in the Committee resulting in non-compliance of the said requirements 

must be filled within three (3) months
	 •	 No former key audit partner shall be appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee, unless he/she has observed a cooling-off period of at least 
two (2) years before for such appointment. 

	 •	 The presence of a majority of independent non-executive directors shall form a 
quorum for the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting. 

	 •	 The term of office and performance of the Committee members shall be reviewed by 
the Board at least once every three (3) years.

DUTIES AND	 •	 Provide assistance to the Board of Directors in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities 
RESPONSIBILITIES 		  relating to the corporate accounting practices for the Company and Group.
	 •	 Maintain a direct line of communication between the Board and the external and 

internal auditors.
	 •	 Review and monitor to ensure that an adequate system of risk management for the 

management to safeguard the Group’s assets and operations.
	 •	 Prepare reports, if the circumstances arise or at least once a year, to the Board 

summarising the work performed in fulfilling the Committee’s primary responsibilities.
	 •	 Any other activities, as authorised by the Board.
	 •	 Act upon the Board’s request to direct and where appropriate supervise any special 

projects or investigation considered necessary and review investigation reports on 
any major issues with regard to the management of the Group.

	 •	 Report promptly to Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad on any matter reported to 
the Board, which has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of Bursa 
Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirement.
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AUTHORITY	 •	 The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from employees, 
who are required to co-operate with any request made by the Committee. 

	 •	 The Committee shall have full and unlimited access to any information pertaining to 
the Group as well as direct communication to the internal and external auditors and 
with some senior management of the Group.

	 •	 The Committee shall have the resources that are required to perform its duties. 
The Committee can obtain at the expenses of the Group, outside legal or other 
independent professional advice it considers necessary.

	 •	 The Committee shall be able to convene meetings with external auditors, the internal 
auditors or both, excluding the attendance of other directors and employees of the 
Company, whenever deemed necessary.

PROCEEDINGS	 •	 The Secretary of the Company shall be the Secretary of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee;

	 •	 Audit and Risk Management Committee shall meet not less than four times a year. 
Prior to the meeting, the Secretary shall send notice to all Committee members at 
least seven days prior to the meeting;

	 •	 Minutes of each meeting shall be kept at the registered office of the Company and 
circulated to all members within 14 days after each meeting;

	 •	 Minutes shall be confirmed at the following meeting of the Committee;
	 •	 No Director or employee shall attend any meeting of the Committee except at the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee’s invitation, specific to the relevant meeting; 
and

	 •	 Decisions of the Committee shall as far as possible be by consensus, failing which 
the decision will be by a simple majority.

FINANCIAL PROCEDURE	 Review the quarterly results and the year end financial statements, prior to the approval of
AND FINANCIAL	 the Board, focusing particularly on:-
REPORTING	 •	 Any significant changes to accounting policies and practices;
	 •	 Significant adjustments arising from the audits;
	 •	 Compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements; and
	 •	 going concern assumption.

RELATED PARTY	 Monitor any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within 
TRANSACTIONS 	 the Group, including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises question 

on integrity of Directors and management.

AUDIT REPORTS	 •	 Prepare the annual Audit and Risk Management Committee report to the Board which 
includes the composition of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, its terms 
of reference, number of meetings held, a summary of its activities and the existence 
of an Internal Audit unit and summary of the activities of that unit for inclusion in the 
Annual Report; and

	 •	 Review the Board’s statements on compliance with the Malaysian Code of Corporate 
Governance for inclusion in the Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL	 •	 To consider annually the internal control system and risk management framework 
adopted within the Group and to be satisfied that the methodology employed allows 
identification, analysis, assessment, monitoring and communication of risks in a 
regular and timely manner that will allow the Group to minimise losses and maximize 
opportunities;

	 •	 To ensure that the system of internal control is soundly conceived and in place, 
effectively administered and regularly monitored;

	 •	 To cause reviews to be made of the extent of compliance with established internal 
policies, standards, plans and procedures;

	 •	 To obtain assurance that proper plans for control have been developed prior to the 
commencement of major areas of change within the Group; and

	 •	 To recommend to the Board steps to improve the system of internal control derived 
from the findings of the internal and external auditors and from the consultations of 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee itself.
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INTERNAL AUDIT	 •	 Review and approve the yearly internal audit plan.
	 •	 Review the adequacy of the internal audit scope, functions, and resources of the 

internal audit and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its works.
	 •	 Review the results of the internal audit and ensure that appropriate action is taken by 

the management on the recommendations of the internal audits.
	 •	 Review the performance of the internal audit to ensure that they are able to exercise 

independence in discharging their duties.
	 •	 Approve any appointment or termination of the staff members of the internal audit 

functions.

EXTERNAL AUDIT	 •	 Review with the external auditors and approve the yearly external audit plan.
	 •	 Review the objectivity of the external auditors and their services, including non-audit 

services and professional fees, so as to ensure a proper balance between objectivity 
and value for money.

	 •	 Review the external audit reports and to evaluate their findings and recommendations 
for actions to be taken.

MEETING	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, five committee meetings were held. A record 
of the attendance to these meetings is as follows:

			   No of Meeting attended
	 Hudson Chua Jain	 1/1*

	 Koh Ek Chong,	 5/5

	 Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son	 5/5

	 Ling Siu Chuo	 5/5

	 Arshad Bin Zainuddin	 5/5

	 The Committee also met with the external auditors twice in the financial year.

	 *Appointed on 16 March 2020

INTERNAL AUDIT	 Internal Audit has been set up to undertake independent regular reviews of the system 
FUNCTION 	 of internal control so as to provide reasonable assurance that such systems continue to 

operate satisfactorily and effectively. The Internal Audit reports directly to the Committee 
with an independent and objective report on the state of internal control of the various 
operating units within the Group.

	 During the year, The Internal Audit carried out a total two (2) audits and reviews covering 
the Group’s operations. 
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ACTIVITIES	 The Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms and reference during the 
year.

	 A summary of activities of the Committee during the year under review were as follows:
	 •	 Reviewed the quarterly financial results announcements before recommending for the 

Board’s approval, focusing particularly on;
		  o	 The changes in or implementation of major accounting policy;
		  o	 The significant or unusual events;
		  o	 Compliance with accounting standards;
		  o	 Disclosure and other legal requirements
	 •	 Reviewed the related party transactions entered into by the Group and conflict of 

interest situation that may arise.
	 •	 Reviewed the internal auditors’ scope of works and audit plans for the year.
	 •	 Reviewed the internal auditors’ reports, which highlighted audit issues, 

recommendations and management response.
	 •	 Reviewed the appointment of external auditors and their independence and 

effectiveness.
	 •	 Reviewed the external auditors’ scope of works and audit plans for the year.
	 •	 Reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group with external auditor prior 

submission to the Board for their consideration and approval, including issues and 
findings noted in the course of the audit of the Group’s financial statement.

	 •	 Considered and recommended to the Board for approval the audit fees payable to the 
external auditors.

CONCLUSION	 For the financial year under review and up to the date of issuance of the financial 
statements, the Board is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk 
management and internal control system. There were no material losses that have arisen 
from any inadequacy or failure of the Group’s system of internal control which required 
additional disclosure in the financial statements.

	 The improvement of the system of internal controls is an on-going process and the Board 
maintains on-going commitment to strengthen the Group’s control environment and 
processes. This statement is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors in the 
meeting dated 28 October 2020 and had been reviewed by the external auditors.

Audit and Risk Management Committee Report
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Statement On Directors’ Responsibility

The Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad requires the Directors to issue a statement 
explaining their responsibility for preparing the Financial Statements.

The Directors are required by the Company Act 2016, to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at the end of each financial year and of their results and their cash flows 
for that year then ended.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors took into consideration the following:-

•	 the Group and the Company have used appropriate accounting policies and are consistently applied;
•	 reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates were made; and
•	 all applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia, the provision of the Company Act 2016 and the Listing 

Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad have been followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Act. The Directors have general responsibilities for taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to 
safeguard the assets of the Group and the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 

1 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group 
and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and property holding. The principal 
activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.  There 
have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year. 
 
 
RESULTS 
 Group Company 
 RM RM 
 
Loss net of tax (145,910,104) (15,040,538) 
 -------------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
Loss attributable to: 
Owners of the Company (146,142,813) (15,040,538) 
Non-controlling interests 232,709 - 
 -------------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 (145,910,104) (15,040,538) 
 -------------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than 
as disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during 
the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and 
unusual nature. 
 
 
Dividends 
 
There were no dividends paid by the Company since 30 June 2019. The directors do not recommend 
any payment of final dividend in respect of the current financial year. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
DIRECTORS 
 
The names of the Directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to the 
date of this report are: 
 
Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho ** 
Ling Chiong Sing ** 
Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son 
Ling Chiong Pin ** 
Koh Ek Chong 
Ling Siu Chuo 
Vincent Ling Lu Yew ** 
Arshad Bin Zainuddin 
Hudson Chua Jain (Appointed on 16 March 2020) 
 
** These Directors are also Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries. 
 
The names of the Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in office since the beginning of the 
financial year to the date of this report (excluding the Directors listed above) are: 
 
Dennis Ling Lu Jing Gary Tan Yow Hoo (Alternate Director to Ling Lu Kuang) 
Ling Lu Kuang Ting Hien Liong 
Ling Lu Kiong Hou Su Ee (Alternate Director to Hou Siu Kee) 
Tan Yeow Cheok Hong Kwang Meng (Alternate Director to Hong King Siang) 
Tang Tiong Ing Lau Sie Ping 
Hou Siu Kee  
Hong King Siang  
 
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
 
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any 
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by 
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a 
benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and 
receivable by the Directors or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company as shown below) 
by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any Director or with a firm 
of which a Director is a member or with a company in which a Director has a substantial financial 
interest, except as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements. 
 
Details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. 
 
INDEMNITIES TO DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS 
 
No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial 
year, for any person who is a Director or Officer of the Group and of the Company. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 
According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the interests of Directors in office at the end of 
the financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were 
as follows: 
 Number of Ordinary Shares 
 At  At 
 1 July 2019 Acquired Sold 30 June 2020 
Direct interest 

Ordinary shares of the Company: 

Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho 34,802,669 - - 34,802,669 
Ling Chiong Sing 34,802,669 - - 34,802,669 
Ling Chiong Pin 34,802,668 - - 34,802,668 
Vincent Ling Lu Yew 100,000 - - 100,000 
Ling Siu Chuo 36,000,009 - - 36,000,009 
Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son 330,000 - - 330,000 
Koh Ek Chong 119,000 - - 119,000 
 
Deemed interest through holding  
 company 

Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho 660,412,796 - - 660,412,796 
Ling Chiong Sing 660,412,796 - - 660,412,796 
Ling Chiong Pin 660,412,796 - - 660,412,796 
 
Ordinary shares of the holding 
 company (Shin Yang Holding 

Sendirian Berhad): 

Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho 6,250,000 - - 6,250,000 
Ling Chiong Sing 6,250,000 - - 6,250,000 
Ling Chiong Pin 6,250,000 - - 6,250,000 
 
Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho, Ling Chiong Sing and Ling Chiong Pin, by virtue of their interests in 
the ordinary shares of the holding company, Shin Yang Holding Sendirian Berhad, are deemed to have 
an interest in the ordinary shares of all the Company’s subsidiaries and the other subsidiaries of Shin 
Yang Holding Sendirian Berhad to the extent that the holding company has an interest.  
 
The Company has been granted exemption by the Companies Commission of Malaysia from having 
to disclose the direct interests of Tan Sri Datuk Ling Chiong Ho, Ling Chiong Sing and Ling Chiong 
Pin in subsidiaries of Shin Yang Holding Sendirian Berhad other than Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries. 
 
None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the 
Company or its related corporations during the financial year. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
HOLDING COMPANY 
 
The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is Shin Yang Holding Sendirian 
Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia. 
 
 
TREASURY SHARES 
 
During the financial year, the Company repurchased a total of 2,680,000 of its issued ordinary shares 
from the open market for a total cost of RM448,045. The average cost paid for the shares 
repurchased during the year was RM0.17 per share.  
 
The shares repurchased are held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127 of the Companies 
Act 2016. Of the total 1,200,000,000 issued and fully paid ordinary shares as at 30 June 2020, 
31,421,400 are held as treasury shares by the Company. As at 30 June 2020, the number of 
outstanding ordinary shares in issue after the set-off is therefore 1,168,578,600 ordinary shares. 
 
The Directors of the Company are committed to enhancing the value of the Company to its shareholders 
and believe that the share buy-backs plan can be applied in the best interests of the Company and its 
shareholders. The repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds. 
 
 
 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 
a) Before the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statements of 

financial position of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took 
reasonable steps: 

 
 i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad 

debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all 
known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for 
doubtful debts; and 

 
 ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown 

in the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to 
an amount which they might be expected so to realise. 

 
b) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render: 
 

i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts 
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any 
substantial extent; and 

 
ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and 

of the Company misleading. 
  

Directors’ Report 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
c) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen 

which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of 
the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

 
d) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise 

dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

 

e) At the date of this report, there does not exist: 
 
 i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the 

end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 
 
 ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the 

end of the financial year. 
 

f) In the opinion of the Directors: 
 
 i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become 

enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year 
which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their 
obligations when they fall due; and 

 
iii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval 

between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to 
affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for 
the financial year in which this report is made. 

 
 
Significant and subsequent event 
 
Details of the significant event is disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.  

Directors’ Report 
(Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
AUDITORS 
 
The auditors, Ernst & Young PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office. Auditors’ 
remuneration are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements.  
 
To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young 
PLT, as part of the terms of its audit engagement against claims by third parties arising from the audit 
(for an unspecified amount).  No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young PLT during 
or since the financial year. 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 30 October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
Koh Ek Chong Ling Siu Chuo 
 
 

Directors’ Report 
(Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Koh Ek Chong and Ling Siu Chuo, being two of the Directors of Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying
financial statements set out on pages 70 to 184 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2020 and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 30 October
2020.

Koh Ek Chong Ling Siu Chuo

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Richard Ling Peng Liing, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 70 to 184 are in my opinion correct, and I 
make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of
the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above 
named Richard Ling Peng Liing at Miri in the 
State of Sarawak on 30 October 2020.

Richard Ling Peng Liing (MIA 9688)
Before me, 
Yong Swee Lien
Commissioner For Oaths (No. Q0149)
938, 2nd Floor, Jalan Pos
98000 Miri, Sarawak.
,

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad, which 
comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2020 of the Group and of the 
Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, as set out on pages 70 to 184.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2020, and of their financial 
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and other ethical responsibilities 

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on 
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-
Laws”) and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD - 200401027554 (666062-A)
(INCORPORATED IN MALAYSIA)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of  
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Key audit matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our 
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 
the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.  
 
Revenue recognition 
 
(a) Revenue from freight, lighterage, charterage and hiring charges 
 
 (Refer to Note 2.19 – Accounting policies for revenue recognition and Note 4 – Revenue) 

 
The Group’s revenue from freight, lighterage, charterage and hiring charges is derived from 
a large volume of transactions. During the financial year, the Group recognised revenue of 
approximately RM446.5million from freight, lighterage, charterage and hiring charges 
which accounted for 74.86% of the Group’s revenue. Revenue from freight, lighterage, 
charterage and hiring charges are key audit matters because the amounts recognised are 
significant to the financial statements. 
 
In addressing this area of audit focus, we obtained an understanding of the relevant internal 
controls over the process of recording of revenue. In addition, we have also performed the 
following procedures to address the risks identified: 
 
(i) used our internal data analytical tools to analyse the relationship between revenue, 

account receivable and cash; 
(ii) tested samples of revenue recognised to cash receipts in bank statements and 

invoices to customers; 
  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 202062

 

10 

 
 
 
 
Independent auditors’ report to the members of  
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Key audit matters (Cont’d) 
 
Revenue recognition (Cont’d) 
 
(a) Revenue from freight, lighterage, charterage and hiring charges (Cont’d) 
 

(iii) assessed material credit notes issued to customers subsequent to the reporting 
date;  

(iv) tested transactions around the reporting date to determine whether such revenues 
were recognised in the correct accounting period; and 

(v) tested journal entries recognised for revenue focusing on unusual or irregular 
transactions. 

 
(b) Revenue from shipbuilding, ship repairs and metal fabrication 
 
 (Refer to Note 2.19 – Accounting policies for revenue recognition, Note 3(b) – Significant 

accounting judgements and estimates on construction contracts, Note 4 – Revenue and 
Note 21 –Contract assets/(liabilities) 

 
 Revenue generated from shipbuilding, ship repairs and metal fabrication amounted to 

RM130.7million or approximately 21.91% of the Group’s revenue. Revenue from 
shipbuilding, ship repairs and metal fabrication is recognised on a percentage of completion 
basis which is calculated by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the reporting 
date bear to the total estimated cost of projects. We focused on this area as significant 
judgement is required to determine the stage of completion, due to the inherent 
uncertainties exist over the estimation of the total cost of projects.  

 
 In addressing this area of audit focus, we obtained an understanding of the relevant internal 

controls over the accuracy and timing of revenue recognised in the financial statements, 
including controls performed by the management in estimating total project costs and profit 
margins. We tested the operation of these controls to provide us a basis to plan the nature, 
timing and extent of our detailed audit procedures. 

  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of  
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Key audit matters (Cont’d) 
 
Revenue recognition (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Revenue from shipbuilding, ship repairs and metal fabrication (Cont’d) 
 
 In addition, we also performed the following: 
 

(i) read all key contracts to obtain an understanding of the specific terms and conditions; 
(ii) agreed contract revenue to the original signed customer contracts and/or approved 

change orders; 
(iii) assessed the reasonableness of the estimated total contract costs by reviewing inputs 

and assumptions used; and 
(iv) evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial statements. 

 
Impairment assessment on trade and other receivables  
 

 (Refer to Note 2.13(iii) – Accounting policies for impairment of financial assets, Note 3(a) – 
Significant accounting judgements and estimates on provision for expected credit losses of 
trade receivables and contract assets and Note 20 – Trade and other receivables) 
 

 At the reporting date, the Groups’ total trade and other receivables amounted to RM147.7 
million is stated net of allowance for impairment of approximately RM35.8 million. Trade and 
other receivables accounts for approximately 40.0% of total current assets of the Group. We 
focused on this area due to the magnitude of the amount involved and significant judgements 
are required to assess allowance for expected credit losses and forward-looking estimates. 

 We have performed the following procedures to address this area of audit focus: 

(i) assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the trade and other 
receivables’ aging data and allowance for expected credit loss calculation; 

(ii) tested samples of these debtors to ascertain if the specific impairment has been 
recognised on a timely basis. We have reviewed the subsequent receipts, settlement 
agreements, project cash flows and past collections from long overdue debtors to ensure 
impairment has been provided appropriately by management; and  

(iii) assessed the reasonableness of historical loss rate applied and understand and discussed 
the forward looking information gathered by the management in relation to the provision 
matrix and the application thereof. 

  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d)

Key audit matters (Cont’d)

Impairment assessment on the vessels

 (Refer to Note 2.11 – Accounting policies for impairment of non-financial assets, Note 3(c) –
Significant accounting judgements and estimates on impairment of vessels and Note 14 –
Property, plant and equipment)

 In view of the depressed economic conditions, the Group performed an assessment on the
recoverable amount of the vessels stated at RM662,434,980 as at 30 June 2020 which
represented 46.89% of the Group’s total assets, to determine whether the carrying value of
these vessels are recoverable.

 The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on the higher of an asset’s value in use
(“VIU”) and fair value less costs to sell (“FV”). The recoverable amount was compared to the
carrying value of each asset with identified impairment triggers. If the recoverable amount is
lower, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount and the
difference is regarded as an impairment loss.

 VIU is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. The
management has applied significant judgement in the estimates and assumptions used in the
cash flows projections to determine the VIU that form the basis of the recoverable amount for
the vessels.

 The FV represents an estimate of the amount received in the event the vessel is sold on a
willing buyer and a willing seller basis. The FV on the vessels were based on valuation by an
internal expert.

 Arising from the management’s assessment, impairment on vessels and non-current assets
held for sale of RM24,241,011 and RM6,542,364 respectively were recognised by the Group
during the year.

 The impairment assessment of the vessels is significant to our audit due to its magnitude and
the use of significant judgement in determining the recoverable amounts.

We have performed the following procedures to address this area of audit focus:

– Obtained an understanding of the relevant internal controls over the process of estimating the
recoverable amounts of the CGU; and

– Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology and approach applied;

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d)

Key audit matters (Cont’d)

Impairment assessment on the vessels (cont’d)

We have performed the following procedures to address this area of audit focus: (cont’d)

– For impairment assessment based on VIU, we have:

• Checked the basis of preparing the cash flow forecasts;
• Evaluated whether assumptions were reasonable by making comparisons to historical trends,

taking into consideration the current and expected economic outlook of the industry; and
• Assessed the discount rates adopted by management in the impairment assessments and

compared with available financial information of other similar companies taking into account
regional and industry specific risk premiums.

– For impairment assessment based on FV, to the extent that management relied on valuation
provided by internal expert, we have:

• Assessed the objectivity, independence, reputation, experience and expertise of the internal
expert;

• Obtained an understanding of the valuation model used; and
• Engaged EY valuation experts where relevant.

Impairment assessment on cost of investment in subsidiaries. (Separate financial statements of
the Company)

Refer to Note 3(d) and Note 15 to the financial statements.

In performing impairment review of the Group’s CGU relating to shipping operations,
management also assessed the recoverable amounts of the Company’s investment in those
subsidiary companies. The estimated investment’s recoverable amount was calculated by
determining the higher of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell (“FV”) for the
relevant investment.

Management determined the recoverable amount based on fair value was determined using the
adjusted net tangible assets such as vessels, which approximate the fair value less costs to sell.

In the current financial year, the Company recognised an impairment loss on investments in
subsidiaries of RM15,077,596.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued)  
(Incorporated in Malaysia)  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Key audit matters (Cont’d) 
 
Impairment assessment of cost of investment in subsidiaries. (Separate financial statements of 
the Company) (cont’d) 
 

 Given the quantum of the investment and the judgement involved in determining the 
recoverable amount, we considered this to be a key audit matter. 

  
 Our audit procedures, among others, included obtaining an understanding of the relevant 

internal controls over estimating the recoverable amount of the investment, and we have: 
 
• Discussed with management and evaluated their assessment of the indication of the 

impairment loss; 
• Evaluated the appropriateness of the impairment assessment methodology; 
• Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s computation of the fair value less  

costs of disposal; 
• Assessed the objectivity, independence, reputation, experience and expertise of the internal 

expert; 
• Obtained an understanding of the valuation model used by the internal expert; and 
• Engaged EY valuation experts where relevant. 
 
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditors’ report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditors’ report.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 
 
  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued)  
(Incorporated in Malaysia)  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon (cont’d) 
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to 
the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 
 
When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors of the Company and 
take appropriate action. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
 
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued)  
(Incorporated in Malaysia)  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 

Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial 
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
  

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of 
Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
(Continued) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d) 
 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for 
the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Company Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the 
subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial 
statements. 
 
Other matters 
 
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose.  We do not 
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ernst & Young PLT Chong Ket Vui, Dusun 
202006000003 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039 02944/01/2021 J 
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountant 
 
Miri, Malaysia 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad – 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) (Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
Revenue 4 596,495,621 645,200,545 4,480,550 4,724,607 
 
Cost of services  (649,362,354) (644,086,744) (1,861,375) (1,884,823) 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Gross (loss)/profit  (52,866,733) 1,113,801 2,619,175 2,839,784 
 
Other items of income 
Dividend income 5 - 4,440 - - 
Other income 6 9,008,027 28,149,992 5,120 1,551 
 
Other items of expense 
Administrative expenses  (28,258,016) (35,310,631) (2,722,331) (2,664,916) 
Other expenses  (67,678,588) (60,234,216) (15,077,596) - 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Operating (loss)/profit  (139,795,310) (66,276,614) (15,175,632) 176,419 
 
Finance income 7 2,087,597 1,728,940 1,235,647 1,280,238 
Finance costs 8 (16,665,102) (18,972,823) (890,473) (1,126,307) 
 
Share of results of associates  204,374 801,407 - - 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

(Loss)/Profit before tax 9 (154,168,441) (82,719,090) (14,830,458) 330,350 
 
Income tax expense 12 8,258,337 (6,439,002) (210,080) (219,849) 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

(Loss)/Profit net of tax  (145,910,104) (89,158,092) (15,040,538) 110,501 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 

Other comprehensive income 
Other comprehensive income 
  to be reclassified to profit or 
  loss in subsequent periods: 
Foreign currency translation  - 1,531,507 - - 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 
for the year  (145,910,104) (87,626,585) (15,040,538) 110,501 

  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: 
Owners of the Company  (146,142,813) (86,668,449) (15,040,538) 110,501 
Non-controlling interests  232,709 (2,489,643) - - 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

  (145,910,104) (89,158,092) (15,040,538) 110,501 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 
  attributable to: 
Owners of the Company  (146,142,813) (85,290,093) (15,040,538) 110,501 
Non-controlling interests  232,709 (2,336,492) - - 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

  (145,910,104) (87,626,585) (15,040,538) 110,501 
  ---------------------------------- ---------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

  

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group 
 Note 2020 2019 
  Sen Sen 
 
Loss per share 
 attributable to owners 

of the Company: 
 
Basic 13 (12.49) (7.38) 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial 
statements. 

Statements of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income

for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 

 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 

   RM RM RM RM 
Assets 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,036,529,638 1,193,063,382 50,616,227  51,581,523 
Investment in subsidiaries 15 - - 1,021,373,580 1,036,451,176 
Investment in associates 16 4,649,551 2,307,785 682,500  682,500 
Investment securities 17 93,600 181,200 - - 
Deferred tax assets 30 50,903 16,016 - - 
Other receivables 20 - - 101,053,675 108,167,889 
Intangible asset 18 2,063,893 2,063,893 - - 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  1,043,387,585 1,197,632,276 1,173,725,982 1,196,883,088 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Current assets 
Inventories 19 54,606,182 63,812,469 - - 
Derivative 26 130,200 - - - 
Trade and other receivables 20 147,712,786 270,728,326 722,696  2,305,287 
Other current assets 22 28,814,180 37,113,975 1,426,776  1,719,438 
Tax recoverable  3,629,396 3,308,748 - - 
Cash and bank balances  23 121,497,783 68,759,021 42,064,143  35,041,213 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  356,390,527 443,722,539 44,213,615  39,065,938 
Non-current assets classified 
 as held for sale 24 12,874,785 - - - 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 

  369,265,312 443,722,539 44,213,615  39,065,938 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 

Total assets  1,412,652,897 1,641,354,815 1,217,939,597  1,235,949,026 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 

 
 
Equity attributable to owners 
   of the Company 
Share capital 31 1,216,972,062 1,216,972,062 1,216,972,062 1,216,972,062 
Treasury shares 31 (8,852,688) (8,404,643) (8,852,688)  (8,404,643) 
Retained earnings/(Accumulated 
  losses)  1,010,213 147,153,026 (6,855,270) 8,185,268 
Other reserves 32 (297,861,069) (288,383,332) - - 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  911,268,518 1,067,337,113 1,201,264,104 1,216,752,687 
Non-controlling interests  5,821,772 8,503,583 - - 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Total equity  917,090,290 1,075,840,696 1,201,264,104 1,216,752,687 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 

 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 

   RM RM RM RM 
Current liabilities 
 
Loans and borrowings 25 236,771,387 275,671,635 6,630,587  7,634,329 
Derivative 26 - 20,766 - - 
Trade and other payables 27 139,786,184 133,613,370 1,230,145  1,116,910 
Other current liabilities 28 1,518,904 24,107,739 - - 
Tax payable  371,342 702,527 160,612  160,364 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  378,447,817 434,116,037 8,021,344  8,911,603 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Net current (liabilities)/assets  (9,182,505) 9,606,502 36,192,271 30,154,335 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

 
Non-current liabilities 
 
Loans and borrowings 25 71,848,718 76,699,805 8,654,149  10,284,736 
Deferred tax liabilities 30 45,266,072 54,698,277 - - 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  117,114,790 131,398,082 8,654,149  10,284,736 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Total liabilities  495,562,607 565,514,119 16,675,493  19,196,339 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Net assets  917,090,290 1,075,840,696 1,201,264,104 1,216,752,687 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

Total equity and liabilities  1,412,652,897 1,641,354,815 1,217,939,597 1,235,949,026 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 202074

 

22
 

SH
IN

 Y
A

N
G

 S
H

IP
PI

N
G

 C
O

R
PO

R
A

TI
O

N
 B

ER
H

A
D

 
(I

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

in
 M

al
ay

sia
) –

 2
00

40
10

27
55

4 
(6

66
06

2-
A

) 
 ST

A
TE

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
C

H
A

N
G

ES
 IN

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
FI

N
A

N
C

IA
L 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 3

0 
JU

N
E 

20
20

 
   

 
 

 
Eq

ui
ty

 
 

 
 

 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 

 
 

 
 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
 

 
 

 
N

on
- 

 
 

N
ot

e 
Eq

ui
ty

, 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
, 

Sh
ar

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 

O
th

er
 

R
et

ai
ne

d 
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 
20

20
 

 
 

to
ta

l 
to

ta
l 

ca
pi

ta
l 

sh
ar

es
 

re
se

rv
es

 
ea

rn
in

gs
 

in
te

re
st

s 
G

ro
up

  
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
 O

pe
ni

ng
 b

al
an

ce
 a

t 1
 Ju

ly
 2

01
9 

 
1,

07
5,

84
0,

69
6 

1,
06

7,
33

7,
11

3 
1,

21
6,

97
2,

06
2 

(8
,4

04
,6

43
) 

(2
88

,3
83

,3
32

) 
14

7,
15

3,
02

6 
8,

50
3,

58
3 

 Lo
ss

 n
et

 o
f t

ax
 

(1
45

,9
10

,1
04

) 
 

(1
46

,1
42

,8
13

) 
 

- 
- 

- 
(1

46
,1

42
,8

13
) 

 
23

2,
70

9 
 

 To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
lo

ss
 

 
(1

45
,9

10
,1

04
) 

 
(1

46
,1

42
,8

13
) 

 
- 

- 
- 

(1
46

,1
42

,8
13

) 
  

23
2,

70
9 

 
 Tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 o

w
ne

rs
 

D
is

po
sa

l o
f a

 su
bs

id
ia

ry
  

15
(i)

 
(1

1,
89

2,
05

9)
 

(9
,4

77
,7

37
) 

- 
- 

(9
,4

77
,7

37
) 

- 
(2

,4
14

,3
22

) 
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f t

re
as

ur
y 

sh
ar

es
  

31
 

(4
48

,0
45

) 
(4

48
,0

45
) 

- 
(4

48
,0

45
) 

- 
- 

- 
D

iv
id

en
d 

pa
id

 to
 n

on
-c

on
tro

lli
ng

  
  

in
te

re
sts

 
 

(5
00

,1
98

) 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(5
00

,1
98

) 
 

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
--

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
 

C
lo

sin
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

02
0 

91
7,

09
0,

29
0 

 
91

1,
26

8,
51

8 
 1

,2
16

,9
72

,0
62

 
(8

,8
52

,6
88

) 
(2

97
,8

61
,0

69
) 

1,
01

0,
21

3 
 

5,
82

1,
77

2 
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

 

 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 75

 

23
 

SH
IN

 Y
A

N
G

 S
H

IP
PI

N
G

 C
O

R
PO

R
A

TI
O

N
 B

ER
H

A
D

 
(I

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

in
 M

al
ay

sia
) –

 2
00

40
10

27
55

4 
(6

66
06

2-
A

) 
 ST

A
TE

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
C

H
A

N
G

ES
 IN

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
FI

N
A

N
C

IA
L 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 3

0 
JU

N
E 

20
20

 
   

 
 

 
Eq

ui
ty

 
 

 
 

 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 

 
 

 
 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
 

 
 

 
N

on
- 

 
 

N
ot

e 
Eq

ui
ty

, 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
, 

Sh
ar

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 

O
th

er
 

R
et

ai
ne

d 
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 
20

19
 

 
 

to
ta

l 
to

ta
l 

ca
pi

ta
l 

sh
ar

es
 

re
se

rv
es

 
ea

rn
in

gs
 

in
te

re
st

s 
G

ro
up

  
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
R

M
 

R
M

 
 O

pe
ni

ng
 b

al
an

ce
 a

t 1
 Ju

ly
 2

01
8 

 
1,

16
7,

38
1,

21
1 

1,
15

7,
06

5,
62

6 
1,

21
6,

97
2,

06
2 

(4
,6

78
,0

01
) 

(2
89

,7
00

,6
25

) 
23

4,
47

2,
19

0 
10

,3
15

,5
85

 
 Lo

ss
 n

et
 o

f t
ax

 
(8

9,
15

8,
09

2)
 

(8
6,

66
8,

44
9)

 
- 

- 
- 

(8
6,

66
8,

44
9)

 
(2

,4
89

,6
43

) 
O

th
er

 c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
in

co
m

e 
1,

53
1,

50
7 

1,
37

8,
35

6 
- 

- 
1,

37
8,

35
6 

- 
15

3,
15

1 
 To

ta
l c

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

lo
ss

 
 

(8
7,

62
6,

58
5)

 
(8

5,
29

0,
09

3)
 

- 
- 

1,
37

8,
35

6 
(8

6,
66

8,
44

9)
 

(2
,3

36
,4

92
) 

 Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 o
w

ne
rs

 
A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
qu

ity
  

  
in

te
re

st 
in

 a
 su

bs
id

ia
ry

 
 

- 
(6

50
,7

15
) 

- 
- 

- 
(6

50
,7

15
) 

65
0,

71
5 

D
is

po
sa

l o
f a

 su
bs

id
ia

ry
  

15
(i)

 
(6

7,
28

8)
 

(6
1,

06
3)

 
- 

- 
(6

1,
06

3)
 

- 
(6

,2
25

) 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f t
re

as
ur

y 
sh

ar
es

  
31

 
(3

,7
26

,6
42

) 
(3

,7
26

,6
42

) 
- 

(3
,7

26
,6

42
) 

- 
- 

- 
D

iv
id

en
d 

pa
id

 to
 n

on
-c

on
tro

lli
ng

  
  

in
te

re
sts

 
 

(1
20

,0
00

) 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
20

,0
00

) 
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

 

C
lo

sin
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
9 

1,
07

5,
84

0,
69

6 
1,

06
7,

33
7,

11
3 

1,
21

6,
97

2,
06

2 
(8

,4
04

,6
43

) 
(2

88
,3

83
,3

32
) 

14
7,

15
3,

02
6 

8,
50

3,
58

3 
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
 

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

 
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

 

     Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s a

nd
 e

xp
la

na
to

ry
 n

ot
es

 fo
rm

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts.
 

 

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 202076

24

SH
IN

 Y
A

N
G

 S
H

IP
PI

N
G

 C
O

R
PO

R
A

T
IO

N
 B

ER
H

A
D

(I
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
in

 M
al

ay
si

a)
 –

 2
00

40
10

27
55

4 
(6

66
06

2-
A

)

ST
A

TE
M

EN
TS

 O
F 

C
H

A
N

G
ES

 IN
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

FO
R

 T
H

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
ED

 3
0 

JU
N

E
 2

02
0

R
et

ai
ne

d
ea

rn
in

gs
/

To
ta

l
Sh

ar
e

Tr
ea

su
ry

(A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

N
ot

e
eq

ui
ty

ca
pi

ta
l

sh
ar

es
lo

ss
es

)
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
20

20
C

om
pa

ny

O
pe

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 a
t 1

 Ju
ly

 2
01

9
 

1,
21

6,
75

2,
68

7 
1,

21
6,

97
2,

06
2

(8
,4

04
,6

43
)

8,
18

5,
26

8

Lo
ss

 n
et

 o
f t

ax
, r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

to
ta

l
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

(1
5,

04
0,

53
8)

-
-

(1
5,

04
0,

53
8)

T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

 o
w

ne
rs

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f t

re
as

ur
y 

sh
ar

es
31

(4
48

,0
45

)
-

(4
48

,0
45

)
-

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

C
lo

sin
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

02
0

 
1,

20
1,

26
4,

10
4 

1,
21

6,
97

2,
06

2
(8

,8
52

,6
88

)
(6

,8
55

,2
70

)
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--

20
19

C
om

pa
ny

O
pe

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 a
t 1

 Ju
ly

 2
01

8
 

1,
22

0,
36

8,
82

8 
1,

21
6,

97
2,

06
2

(4
,6

78
,0

01
)

8,
07

4,
76

7

Pr
of

it 
ne

t o
f t

ax
, r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

to
ta

l
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

11
0,

50
1

-
-

11
0,

50
1

T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

 o
w

ne
rs

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f t

re
as

ur
y 

sh
ar

es
31

(3
,7

26
,6

42
)

-
(3

,7
26

,6
42

)
-

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

C
lo

sin
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
9

 
1,

21
6,

75
2,

68
7 

1,
21

6,
97

2,
06

2
(8

,4
04

,6
43

)
8,

18
5,

26
8

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

---
--

--
---

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
---

--
---

--
--

---
---

---
---

--
--

---
---

---
--

Th
e a

cc
om

pa
ny

in
g 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s a
nd

 e
xp

la
na

to
ry

 n
ot

es
 fo

rm
 an

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts.

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 77

 

25 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
Operating activities 

(Loss)/Profit before tax  (154,168,441) (82,719,090) (14,830,458)  330,350 
 
Adjustments for: 

Interest income 7 (2,087,597) (1,728,940) (1,235,647)  (1,280,238) 
Dividend income 4,5 - (4,440) (748,250)  (875,000) 
Interest expenses 8 16,665,102 18,972,823 890,473  1,126,307 
Depreciation of property, 
  plant and equipment 14 100,675,852 97,447,346 1,278,667  1,265,581 
Fair value loss/(gain) on  
  investment securities 9 87,600 (40,200) - - 
Fair value changes on forward  
  contracts 9 (150,966) 20,766 - - 
Provision for foreseeable loss 9 7,615,684 - - - 
Impairment loss on investment in 
  a subsidiary 9 - - 15,077,596 - 
Impairment loss on property, plant 
  and equipment 9 30,783,375 - - - 
Impairment loss on trade and other 
  receivables 9 23,486,244 55,166,439 - - 
Impairment on work-in-progress  
  inventory 9 449,500 - - - 
Gain on disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment  (4,120,844) (7,035,709) - - 
Reversal of impairment loss on 
  trade receivables  (3,246,122) (1,485,557) - - 
Reversal of impairment loss on 
  other receivables  (884,700) (2,705,086) - - 
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign 
  exchange  (239,591) 2,699,518 - - 
Property, plant and equipment 
  written off 9 6,653 10,407 - 7,040 
Loss on disposal of shares in 
  associates 9 - 6,286,524 - - 
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of shares in 
  a subsidiary 15 14,305,869 (728,051) - - 
Share of results of associates  (204,374) (801,407) - - 
 

Total adjustments  183,141,685 166,074,433 15,262,839  243,690 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Operating cash flows before 
  changes in working capital  28,973,244 83,355,343 432,381  574,040 
 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Operating activities (Continued) 
 
Changes in working capital 
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  8,756,787 (19,073,014) - - 
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and 
  other receivables  45,718,085 (4,121,411) (232,618) 314,567 
Decrease/(Increase) in other current 
  assets  8,299,795 (2,060,485) 292,662  (797,099) 
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and 
  other payables  2,528,671 5,522,729 130,492  (134,011) 
(Decrease)/Increase in other current  
  liabilities  (22,588,835) 20,667,394 - - 
Net change in related companies 
  balances  26,877,325 8,610,709 (16,988)  64,409 
Net change in holding company 
  balances  (59,502) 4,613,029 - - 
Net change in subsidiaries balances  - - 8,929,154 939,009 
 

Total changes in working capital  69,532,326 14,158,951 9,102,702 386,875 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Cash flows from operations  98,505,570 97,514,294 9,535,083 960,915 
 
Income tax paid  (1,860,588) (1,874,193) (209,832)  (293,601) 
Income tax refunded  - 789,534 - - 
Interest paid  (16,665,102) (18,972,823) (890,473)  (1,126,307) 
Interest received  2,087,597 1,728,940 1,235,647  1,280,238 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Net cash flows from operating  
  activities  82,067,477 79,185,752 9,670,425 821,245 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
Investing activities 
 
Dividend received 
  from investment securities  - 4,440 - - 
Dividend received 
  from associates  68,250 195,000 - - 
Dividend received 
  from subsidiaries  - - 748,250 875,000 
Purchase of property, plant and 
  equipment 14 (20,745,223) (99,021,287) (313,553)  (113,693) 
Acquisition of shares from  
  non-controlling interest - (1) - - 
Proceeds from disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment  36,939,429 20,624,002 182 - 
Proceeds from disposal of shares  
  in investment in subsidiaries 15 1,565,322 164,681 - - 
Proceeds from disposal of shares  
  in associates  - 34 - - 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Net cash flows from/(used in) 
  investing activities  17,827,778 (78,033,131) 434,879 761,307 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
Financing activities 
 
Acquisition of treasury shares 31 (448,045) (3,726,642) (448,045)  (3,726,642) 
Dividend paid to non-controlling 
  interests  (500,198) (120,000) - - 
Proceeds from lease liabilities  217,900 - - - 
Proceeds from finance lease  - 507,200 - - 
Repayment of principal portion 
  of lease liabilities  (5,134,148) - (84,325)  - 
Repayment of finance lease payables  - (4,844,164) - (80,550) 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings  20,950,000 60,566,000 - - 
Repayment of loans and borrowings  (33,028,180) (47,361,317) (1,550,004)  (4,550,404) 
Net movement in fixed deposits 
  with maturity dates more than 
  3 months  (27,100,000) - - - 
Net movement in trade financing  (30,972,800) (15,136,000) (1,000,000)  - 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Net cash flows used in 
  financing activities  (76,015,471) (10,114,923) (3,082,374)  (8,357,596) 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
  

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
 Group Company 
 Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
  cash equivalents  23,879,784 (8,962,302) 7,022,930  (6,775,044) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 
  1 July  44,785,625 53,745,039 35,041,213  41,816,257 
Effect of exchange rate changes  2,368 2,888 - - 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
  30 June 23 68,667,777 44,785,625 42,064,143  35,041,213 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial 
statements.  

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont’d)
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020

1. Corporate information

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of
the Company is located at Sublot 153 (Parent Lot 70), Jalan Kuala Baram, Kuala Baram 98100
Miri, Sarawak.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is Shin Yang Holding
Sendirian Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and property holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements.  There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities
during the financial year.

2. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group have reported a net loss of RM 146 million and
(2019: RM 89 million). In addition, as at 30 June 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RM 9 million. Furthermore, in 2020, the global economy faces an
unprecedented uncertainty as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic which have significantly
impacted shipping and ship building operations.

Notwithstanding the events or conditions above, the directors believe that there are no material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as the Group believe that they will continue to have the support of the bankers as they
have not defaulted in any repayment obligations and the bankers have consistently renewed all
the credit facilities that were subjected to annual review without any material modifications.
The directors also took into consideration the positive operating cash inflow generated during
the year ended, and the availability as at reporting date approved unutilised credit facilities of
the Group of RM 24million and RM 320 million respectively. Based on the above, the directors
are of the view that the going concern basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is appropriate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2020
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 
 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year except as 
discussed below: 

 
On 1 July 2019, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended MFRSs 
(collectively referred to as “pronouncements”) that have been issued by the Malaysian 
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”). 

 Effective for periods 
 beginning on 

Description or after 
 

Annual improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle: 
(i) Amendments to MFRS 3: Business Combinations  1 January 2019 
(ii) Amendments to MFRS 11: Joint Arrangements  1 January 2019 
(iii) Amendments to MFRS 112: Income Taxes 1 January 2019 
(iv) Amendments to MFRS 123: Borrowing Costs  1 January 2019 

Amendments to MFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative 
 Compensation  1 January 2019 
Amendment to MFRS 119: Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, 
 Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019 
Amendments to MFRS 128: Long-term Interests in Associates and 
 Joint Ventures 1 January 2019 
IC Interpretation 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 1 January 2019 
MFRS 16: Leases  1 January 2019 
 
Adoption of the above amendments did not have any material effect on the financial 
performance or position of the Group and the Company except as discussed below: 
 

 MFRS 16: Leases 
 

Definition of a lease 
 
On transition to MFRS 16, the Group and the Company elected to apply the practical 
expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.  They applied 
MFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not 
identified as leases under MFRS 117 Leases and IC Interpretation 4 were not reassessed. 
Therefore, the definition of a lease under MFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered 
into or changed on or after 1 July 2019. 
 
As a lessee  
 
Where the Group and the Company are lessees, the Group and the Company applied the 
requirements of MFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial application as 
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 July 2019. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 
 
 MFRS 16 Leases (continued) 
 

As a lessee (continued) 
 

At 1 July 2019, for leases that were classified as operating lease under MFRS 117, lease 
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at 
the Group’s and the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. The weighted-
average rate applied is 7.57%. Right-of-use assets are measured at either:  
 
• their carrying amount as if MFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, 

discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019; or  
• an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued 

lease payments. 
 
The Group and the Company used the following practical expedients when applying MFRS 
16 to leases previously classified as operating lease under MFRS 117:  
 
• applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;  
• applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with 

less than 12 months of lease term as at 1 July 2019;  
• excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 

application; and 
• used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend 

or terminate the lease. 
 
For leases that were classified as finance lease under MFRS 117, the carrying amounts of the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 were determined to be the same as the carrying 
amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities under MFRS 117 immediately before that date. 
 
The Group and the Company have applied commercial judgement to determine the lease term for 
those leases with renewal options and this in turn will impact on the amount of right-to-use assets 
and lease liabilities recognised. The Group and the Company have elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low value assets and short-term leases. The lease payments for 
these leases are expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
The adoption of MFRS 16 has not had a material impact on the financial statements of the Company 
as at 1 July 2019. 
 
The adoption of MFRS 16 has not had a material impact on the total comprehensive income and 
the cash flow of the Group. Hence, no reconciliation of equity, total comprehensive income and 
statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2019 were prepared for the Group.  
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 
 

MFRS 16 Leases (continued) 
 

As a lessee (continued) 
 

The following table provides the impact of changes to the statements of financial position of the 
Group resulting from the adoption of MFRS 16 as at 1 July 2019: 

 
 
    Effect of 
  At adoption of At 
  30 June 2019 MFRS 16 1 July 2019 
  RM RM RM 
 
 Group 
 
 Non-current assets 
 Property, plant and equipment 1,193,063,382 2,043,083 1,195,106,465 
   -------------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------------- 

    
 Non-current liabilities 
 Loans and borrowings 76,699,805 1,298,975 77,998,780 
  
 Current liabilities 
 Loans and borrowings 275,671,635 744,108 276,415,743 
   -------------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------------- 

 Total loans and borrowings 352,371,440 2,043,083 354,414,523 
   -------------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.3 Pronouncements issued but not yet effective 
 

The Standards and Interpretations (collectively referred to as “pronouncements”) that are 
issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s and the Company’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these 
pronouncements, if applicable, when they become effective. 

 
  Effective for annual 
  periods beginning 
Description on or after 
 
Amendments to MFRS 3: Definition of a Business 1 January 2020 
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7:  
 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020 
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4  

and MFRS 16: 
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform- Phase 2     1 January 2021  

Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108: Definition 
 of Material 1 January 2020 
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1 January 2020 
Amendments to MFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent 
 Concessions 1 June 2020 
Annual improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle: 

(i) Amendments to MFRS 1: First-time Adoption of  
  Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards  1 January 2022 
(ii) Amendments to MFRS 9: Financial Instruments  1 January 2022 
(iii) Amendments to MFRS 16: Illustrative Example 13,  
  Leases 1 January 2022 
(iv) Amendments to MFRS 141: Agriculture  1 January 2022 

Amendments to MFRS 3: Business Combinations 
 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022 
Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment  
 - Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022 
Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts  
 - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022 
MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts  1 January 2023 
Amendments to MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 
Amendments to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities  
 as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023 
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or  
 Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
 Associate or Joint Venture Deferred 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.3 Pronouncements issued but not yet effective (Continued) 
 

(a) Amendments to MFRS 3: Definition of a Business 
 
 The definition of a business in MFRS 3 Business Combinations was amended to help 

entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. 
They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of 
whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add 
guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow 
the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value 
concentration test. 

 
 Minimum requirements to be a business 
 
 The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities 

and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that 
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. They also clarify that 
a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create 
outputs. That is, the inputs and processes applied to those inputs must have ‘the ability 
to contribute to the creation of outputs’ rather than ‘the ability to create outputs’. An 
acquired process must be considered substantive only if: 

 
- it is critical to the ability to develop or convert acquired inputs into outputs; and 
- the inputs acquired include both an organised workforce with the necessary 

skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process, and other inputs that 
the organised workforce could develop or convert into outputs. 

 
(b) Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108: Definition of Material 
 
 The amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and MFRS 108 

align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and clarify certain aspects of the 
definition. The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting, 
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that 
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those 
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting 
entity. 

 
 The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of 

information, or both. An entity will need to assess whether the information, either 
individually or in combination with other information, is material in the context of 
the financial statements. 

 
 Material information may, for instance, be obscured if information regarding a 

material item, transaction or other event is scattered throughout the financial 
statements or disclosed using a language that is vague or unclear. Material 
information can also be obscured if dissimilar items, transactions or other events are 
inappropriately aggregated, or conversely, if similar items are inappropriately 
disaggregated. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.3 Pronouncements issued but not yet effective (Continued) 

 
(c) Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
 
 On 30 April 2018, MASB issued a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial 

Reporting. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is, amongst others, to help 
preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in 
place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards. 

 
 The Conceptual Framework includes some new concepts, provides updated definitions 

and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts. 
The main changes in the Conceptual Framework are as follows: 

 
• Reintroduces the concept of stewardship and the information needed to assess 

management’s stewardship 
• Reintroduces the concept of prudence 
• Defines the concept of measurement uncertainty 
• Reinstates an explicit reference to the need to “faithfully represent the substance 

of the phenomena that it purports to represent” 
• Made changes to the definitions of an asset and a liability 

 
The amendments clarify:  

 
• What is meant by a right to defer settlement;  
• That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 
• That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its 

deferral right; and  
• That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity 

instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. 
 
 The Group and the Company do not expect the clarifications of the above would result 

in any material changes when determining whether a liability is current or non-current. 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation 
 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and 
its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in 
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting 
date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and 
events in similar circumstances.  

 
The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following: 
 
(i) Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the 

relevant activities of the investee); 
(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and  
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.  
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 
 

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company 
considers the following in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an 
investee are sufficient to give it power over the investee: 

(i) The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion 
of holdings of the other vote holders;  

(ii) Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; 
(iii) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and  

(iv) Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does 
not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions 
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings. 

 
Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income 
and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are 
eliminated in full. 

 
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results 
in a deficit balance. 

 
 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group 

losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying 
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the 
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting difference is recognised 
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company. 

 
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference 
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of 
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary’s 
cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, transferred 
directly to retained earnings. The fair value of any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary at the date control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of the 
investment. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 
 

Business combinations 
 
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an 
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at 
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. 
The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the 
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in 
administrative expenses.  
 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed 
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, 
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the 
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 
 
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value 
at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and 
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified 
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of MFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in 
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with MFRS 9. Other 
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of MFRS 9 is measured at fair value at 
each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the 
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the 
acquisition date through profit or loss. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 
 

Business combinations involving entities under common control 
 

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for by 
applying the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities 
are reflected at their carrying amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements of 
the controlling holding company. Any difference between the consideration paid and the 
share capital of the “acquired” entity is reflected within equity as merger reserve. The 
statement of comprehensive income reflects the results of the combining entities for the full 
year, irrespective of when the combination takes place. Comparatives are presented as if the 
entities have always been combined since the date the entities had come under common 
control. 

 
2.5 Transactions with non-controlling interests 
 

Non-controlling interests represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or 
indirectly, to owners of the Company, and is presented separately in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of 
financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the Company. 

 
 Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss 

of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts 
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their 
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is 
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company. 

 
2.6 Subsidiaries 
 
 A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following: 

 
(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the 

relevant activities of the investee); 
(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and  
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.  
 

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted 
for at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between 
net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.7 Investment in associates 
 

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence 
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but 
is not control or joint control over those policies.  

 
On acquisition of an investment in associate, any excess of the cost of investment over the 
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is 
recognised as goodwill and included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of 
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee 
over the cost of investment is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is 
instead included as income in the determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit 
or loss for the period in which the investment is acquired. 

 
An associate is equity accounted for from the date on which the investee becomes an 
associate.  

 
Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised 
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Group's share of 
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate after the date of 
acquisition.  When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equal or exceeds its interest 
in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.  
 
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group 
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of 
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.  
 
The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same reporting date as the 
Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line 
with those of the Group. 
 
After application of the equity method, the Group applies MFRS 9 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any 
additional impairment loss with respect to its net investment in the associate. When 
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in 
accordance with MFRS 136 Impairment of Assets as a single asset, by comparing its 
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying 
amount. Any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Reversal of an impairment loss 
is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently 
increases.  
 
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for 
at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net 
disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.8 Intangible assets 
 
 Goodwill 
 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses.  
 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition 
date, to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination. 

 
The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment 
annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired, 
by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated 
goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is 
recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed 
in subsequent periods. 

 
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that 
cash-generating unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on 
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on 
the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating 
unit retained. 

 
2.9 Foreign currency 
 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 
 

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using 
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the 
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit 
Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.9 Foreign currency (Continued) 
 

(b) Foreign currency transactions  
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional 
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition 
in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the 
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated 
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 

 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating 
monetary items at the reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except for 
exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net 
investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve 
in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit 
or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign operation. 

 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair 
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on 
the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are 
recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary 
items are also recognised directly in equity. 

 
(c) Foreign operations 

 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the reporting date and income and expenses are translated at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on 
the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a 
foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity under foreign currency translation reserve relating to that 
particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss. 

 
  Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations 

are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the 
functional currency of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the 
reporting date. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.10 Property, plant and equipment 
 
 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. 

 
 Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of 
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises 
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  

 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis, less estimated residual value over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 
Wharf  20 years 
Buildings, jetty, and slipways 20 - 50 years 
Dry docking expenses 2.5 - 5 years 
Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years 
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 5 - 10 years 
Shipping equipment and machinery 3 - 20 years 
Plant and machinery 10 years 
Vessels 8 - 20 years 

 
Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as 
these assets are not yet available for use. 

 
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

 
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of 
the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets  

 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for 
an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  

 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels 
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)). 

 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs 
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or 
groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or 
groups of units on a pro-rata basis.   

 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously 
revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the 
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any 
previous revaluation.  
 
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such 
reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in 
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss on goodwill is not 
reversed in a subsequent period. 
 

2.12 Inventories 
 

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 

Cost is determined on a first-in-first-out basis. The cost of raw materials comprises costs of 
purchase.  The costs of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise costs of raw 
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate proportions of manufacturing 
overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. In arriving 
at the net realisable value, due allowance is made for all damaged, obsolete and slow moving 
items. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.13 Financial instruments 
 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Financial assets 
 
(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), and fair 
value through profit or loss.   

 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial 
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s 
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do 
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group and the 
Company have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the Company initially 
measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not 
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group and the Company 
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined 
under MFRS 15. 
 
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair 
value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment 
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 
 
The Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers 
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business 
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash 
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 
 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time 
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way 
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group and the Company 
commit to purchase or sell the asset. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group and the Company measure financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Group and the Company measure debt instruments at fair value through
OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss. At the reporting date, the
Group and the Company do not have debt instruments at fair value through
OCI.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.13 Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

Financial assets (Continued) 
 
(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (Continued)  

 
(c) Financial assets at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) 

 
Upon initial recognition, the Group and the Company can elect to classify 
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair 
value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under MFRS 132 
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The 
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 
 
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. 
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss 
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group and 
the Company benefit from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of 
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity 
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to 
impairment assessment. At the reporting date, the Group and the Company 
do not have financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity 
instruments). 
 

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets 
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair 
value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be 
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if 
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. 
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as 
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and 
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
irrespective of the business model. 
 
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised 
cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may 
be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing 
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.13 Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

Financial assets (Continued) 
 
(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (Continued)  

 
(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued) 

 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement 
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss. 
 
This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments 
which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value 
through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as 
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has 
been established. 
 
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-
financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate 
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to 
the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded 
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract 
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are 
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the 
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be 
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through 
profit or loss category. A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract 
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial 
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified 
in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.13 Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

Financial assets (Continued) 
 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 
 

An allowance is recognized for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt 
instruments carried at amortised cost and fair value through OCI, contract assets and 
lease receivables. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash 
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows expected to be 
received, discounted at the original effective interest rate (“EIR”). The expected cash 
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collaterals held or other credit 
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

 
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for 
credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required 
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the 
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 
 
For trade receivables, a simplified approach is applied in calculating ECLs. 
Therefore, credit risk is not tracked, but instead recognise a loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. A provision matrix is established that is based 
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific 
to the debtors and the economic environment. 
 
The Group and the Company consider a financial asset in default when contractual 
payments are 365 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group and the 
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 
external information indicates that the Group and the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Group and the Company. A financial asset is written off 
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.13 Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

Financial assets (Continued) 
 

(iv) Derecognition 
 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group 
of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

 
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

 
- the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 
either (a) the Group and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and the Company has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to 
what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Company continues to recognise 
the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Group and the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset 
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Group and the Company has retained. 

 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset 
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be 
required to repay. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii) Categories and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in MFRS 9 are satisfied.

(b)  Amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank
overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.15 Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be reliably estimated, contract revenue
and contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by using the stage of
completion method. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue
is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.15 Construction contracts (Continued) 
 

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and 
variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable 
that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured. 

 
When the total of costs incurred on construction contracts plus recognised profits (less 
recognised losses) exceeds progress billings, the balance is classified as amount due from 
customers on contracts. When progress billings exceed costs incurred plus, recognised 
profits (less recognised losses), the balance is classified as amount due to customers on 
contracts.  

 
2.16 Leases 
 
 Current financial year 
 
 The Group and the Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a 

lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.  

 
 As a lessee  
 
 The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement approach for all 

leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group and the Company 
recognise lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 
to use the underlying assets.  

 
(a) Right-of-use assets  
 
 The Group and the Company recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement date 

of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets 
are classified within the same line item as the corresponding underlying assets would 
be presented if they were owned. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount 
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made 
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and 
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:  
 

 Leasehold land 43 to 94 years 
 Leasehold and buildings 1.25 to 5 years 
 Motor vehicles  5 years 
 Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years 

Vessels 2.3 years 
  
 If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group and the Company at the end of 

the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is 
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.  



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 105

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2020 (Cont’d)

 

53 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.16 Leases (Continued) 
 
 Current financial year (Continued) 

 
(b) Lease liabilities  
 
 At the commencement date of the lease, the Group and the Company recognise lease 

liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease 
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend 
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value 
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and by the Company and payments 
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group and the 
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not 
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to 
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the 
payment occurs. 

 
 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the Company use 

their incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest 
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, 
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and 
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease 
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change 
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an 
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment 
of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets  
 
 The Group and the Company apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to 

their short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less 
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). They also apply 
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to 
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
 

As a lessor  
 
Leases in which the Group or the Company do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is 
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the 
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are 
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.16 Leases (Continued) 

 
Previous financial year 
 

 The determination of whether an arrangement was (or contains) a lease was based on the 
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement was, or contained, 
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) 
and the arrangement conveyed a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset was (or those 
assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
 

 As a lessee  
 
 A lease was classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group or the 
Company was classified as a finance lease. 

 
 Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value 

of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments were apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges 
were recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

 
 A leased asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there was no 

reasonable certainty that the Group or the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and 
the lease term. 

 
 An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments were 

recognised as an operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

 
 As a lessor 
 
 Leases in which the Group did not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of an asset were classified as operating leases. Rental income arising was accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and was included in revenue in the statement of profit or 
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 
operating lease were added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents were recognised as revenue in 
the period in which they were earned. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.17 Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of 
borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale 
are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are 
capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale.  

 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. 

 
2.18 Provisions 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required 
to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required 
to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 
2.19 Revenue 
 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers 
 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
The Group generates its revenue from three principal services: 1) shipping and marine 
services, 2) chartering and leasing income and 3) ship building, repairs works and 
metal fabrication. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its 
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods and services before 
transferring them to customers, including for those ancillary services like custom 
clearance, export and import documentation, and other logistic arrangements, that are 
incidental to the principal services. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.19 Revenue (Continued) 
 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) 
 

The Group also acted as an agent for certain freight forwarding services which the 
Group is not primarily responsible in fulfilling the promises nor has the control over 
the services. The fees or commission are recognised as net amount of the consideration 
that the Group retains after paying other party the consideration received in exchange 
for the goods or services to be provided by that party. 

 
(i) Revenue from freight and lighterage services – sea transports 

 
Freight services for sea transports are considered as one performance 
obligations satisfied over time. The customer is able to benefit from the 
Group's performance as it occurs and the other entity would not need to 
substantially reperform the Group's performance (e.g. distance travelled) to 
date. The Group has selected the output measure (days travelled) which can 
most appropriately depicts the transfer of control of the service to the customer. 

 
(ii) Revenue from freight forwarding services 

 
These revenues comprise mainly agency commission, custom clearance, import 
and export documentation, port related services and etc. These services are 
considered to represent one single performance obligation satisfied at a point in 
time. 

 
(iii) Ship building, repairs works and metal fabrication 

 
Revenue from ship building, repair works and metal fabrication is accounted 
for using the input measure as referred in Note 2.15. 
 

 (iv) Sales of goods and services 
 
Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognised at the point in time when 
control of the assets is transferred to the customers, generally on delivery of the 
goods and services. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.19 Revenue (Continued) 
 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) 
 

Contract balances 
 
(i) Trade receivables 
 
 A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is 

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the 
consideration is due). 

 
(ii) Contract assets 
 
 A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services 

transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or 
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment 
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. 

 
 (iii) Contract liabilities 

 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer 
for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration 
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group 
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised 
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract 
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.  

 
(b) Revenue from other sources 

 
 Revenue from other sources are recognised as follows: 

 
(i) Dividend income 

 
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is 
established. 

 
(ii) Hire of equipment, vessel charter fee and rental income 

 
The Group enters as a lessor into lease agreements that fall within the scope of 
MFRS 16. Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the statement 
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. 



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020110

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2020 (Cont’d)

 

58 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.20 Taxes 
 

(a) Current tax 
 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  

 
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to 
items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. 

 
(b) Deferred tax 

 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the 
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes. 

 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except: 

 
- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an 

asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of 
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

 
- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 

subsidiaries and assocates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

 
- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises 

from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit 
nor taxable profit or loss; and 

 
- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in 

subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be 
utilised. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.20 Taxes (Continued) 
 

(b) Deferred tax (Continued) 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets 
to be utilised. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax 
arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right 
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
 

(c) Sales and Services Tax (“SST”) and Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) 
 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except: 
 

- Where the SST and GST incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not 
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the SST and GST is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 
item as applicable; and 
 

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of SST and GST 
included. 

 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
included as part of receivables or payables in the statements of financial position. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.21 Employee benefits 
 

(a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense 
in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.  Short term 
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when 
services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future 
compensated absences.  Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as 
sick leave are recognised when the absences occur. 
 

(b) Defined contribution plans 
 

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the 
countries in which it has operations. The Malaysian companies in the Group make 
contributions to the Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution 
pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.  

 
2.22 Derivative financial instruments  
 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge 
its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. 

 
Any gain or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for 
hedge accounting are taken directly to profit or loss. 

 
The fair value of forward contracts is determined by reference to current forward prices for 
contracts with similar maturity profiles. Where the quoted market prices are not available, 
the fair values are based on management’s best estimate and are arrived at by reference to 
the market prices if another contract that is substantially similar. 

 
2.23 Share capital and share issuance expenses 
 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Group and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity 
instruments. 

 
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental 
transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are 
recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.24 Segment reporting 
 

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their 
products and services which are independently managed by the respective segment managers 
responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge. The segment 
managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly review the segment 
results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segment performance. 
Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 39, including the factors 
used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information. 

 
2.25 Treasury shares 
 

When shares of the Company, that have not been cancelled, recognised as equity are 
reacquired, the amount of consideration paid is recognised in equity. Reacquired shares are 
classified as treasury shares and presented as a deduction from total equity.  No gain or loss 
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares. 
When treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sales consideration 
and the carrying amount is recognised in equity. 

 
2.26 Contingencies 
 

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events 
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group.  

 
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of 
the Group. 

 
2.27 Financial guarantee contracts 
 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make 
payment when due. 
 
Financial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
Subsequently, they are measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance; and the 
amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 
recognized in accordance with MFRS 15. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
2.28 Fair value measurements 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 
 
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group and the 
Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair values are measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements as a whole: 

 
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 
 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement is unobservable 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group and the Company determine whether transfers have occurred between Levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have determined 
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of nature, characteristics and risks of the assets 
or liabilities and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
 
2.29 Current versus non-current classification  
 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is: 
 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 
A liability is current when: 
 
• It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 
 
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
 

2.30 Non-current assets held for sale  
 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is 
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate 
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary. 

 
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets 
is brought up-to-date in accordance with applicable MFRSs. Then, on initial classification as 
held for sale, non-current assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. Any differences are included in the profit or loss. 
 
While a non-current asset is classified as held for sale or while it is part of a disposal group 
classified as held for sale it should not be depreciated or amortised. Interest and other expenses 
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale should continue to 
be recognised.  
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3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates 
 

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

 
a) Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets 

 
The Group uses the simplified approach to estimate a lifetime expected credit loss 
allowance for trade receivables. The Group develops the expected loss rates based on 
the payment profiles of past sales and the corresponding historical credit losses, and 
adjusts for qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking 
information. 
 
The Group and the Company also assess the credit risk of receivables and contract 
assets at each reporting date on an individual basis, to determine whether or not there 
have been significant increases in credit risk since the initial recognition of these 
assets. To determine whether there is a significant increase in credit risks, the Group 
and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant 
financial difficulties of the debtors and default or significant delay in payments. 
Where there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group and the Company 
determine the lifetime expected credit loss by considering the loss given default and 
the probability of default assigned to each counterparty customer. The financial assets 
are written off either partially or in full when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 
This is generally the case when the Group and the Company determine that the debtor 
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amount subject to the write-offs.  

 
The provision of ECL is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default 
rates. The Group will calibrate the ECL to adjust the historical credit loss experience 
with forward-looking information including the effects of Covid-19. At every 
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the 
forward-looking estimates are analysed.  

 
 The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast 
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive 
to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical 
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative 
of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the 
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 20 and 21 respectively.  
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (Continued) 
 
 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) 
 

b) Construction contracts  
 

Revenue for construction contracts is recognised on a percentage of completion basis. 
The percentage of completion is assessed by reference to the stage of completion of 
the project based on the proportion of contract costs incurred bear to the estimated 
costs to complete. Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of 
completion as inherent uncertainties exist over the estimation of the total costs of 
individual projects. 

 
c) Impairment of vessels 

 
Impairment exists when the carrying amount of an assets or cash generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of vessel is determined 
based on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, whereas the 
recoverable amount of right-of-use asset is based on its value in use. When value in 
use calculation is undertaken, management estimates the expected future cash flows 
from the asset or cash generating unit (“CGU”) by applying a suitable discount rate 
to calculated the present value of those cash flow. When fair value less costs to sell 
is used, management engages its internal expert or services of professional valuers to 
determine the air values using valuation techniques which involve the use of 
estimates and assumptions which are reflective of current market conditions. The 
carrying amounts of the Group’s vessels is disclosed in Note 14. 

 
d) Investments in subsidiaries 

 
 The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries of the Company as at 30 

June 2020 was RM1,021,373,580 (2019: RM1,036,451,176). The Company assesses 
whether there are any indicators of impairment for its investments in subsidiaries at 
each reporting date. In assessing whether there is any indication that its investments 
in subsidiaries may be impaired, the Company considers the external and internal 
sources of information. The Company estimated the recoverable amount of the 
investments in the subsidiaries based on the higher of the fair value less costs to sell 
and the value in use. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
4. Revenue 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Revenue from contracts with 
  customers 542,864,494 580,075,574 - - 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Revenue from other source: 
- Charterage and hiring charges 35,656,819 47,529,745 - - 
- Leasing income 16,603,135 16,603,125 - - 
- Dividend income from:  
  - subsidiaries - - 680,000 680,000 
  - associates - - 68,250 195,000 
- Hiring income 567,883 504,094 - - 
- Rental income 803,300 488,007 3,732,300 3,849,607 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 53,631,137 65,124,971 4,480,550 4,724,607 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 596,495,621 645,200,545 4,480,550 4,724,607 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
(a) Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers 

 
  Group 
 2020 2019 
    RM RM 
 

Freight and lighterage charges   405,463,343 459,610,540 
Shipbuilding   83,310,833 59,567,546 
Ship repairs and metal fabrication   47,408,771 49,444,383 
Freight forwarding charges   5,415,358 6,429,743 
Sales of goods and services   1,266,189 5,023,362 

   ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 542,864,494 580,075,574 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Timing of revenue 
  recognition: 
- At a point in time   6,681,547 11,453,105 
- Over time   536,182,947 568,622,469 

   ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

   542,864,494 580,075,574 
    ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
4. Revenue (Continued) 
 

(b) Transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligation 
 

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related 
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the reporting 
date. 

  Group 
 2020 2019 
 RM RM 

Within one year 
- Freight and lighterage charges 1,057,332 2,675,485 
- Shipbuilding 42,480,896 110,005,145 
- Ship repairs - 7,054,536 

   ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 43,538,228 119,735,166 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
(c) Contract balances 

 
The following provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract 
liabilities from contracts with customers. 

 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Trade receivables, current 
  (Note 20) 135,357,997 191,585,038 360  42,120 
Contract assets (Note 21) 16,685,975 21,280,819 - - 
Contract liabilities 
   (Note 21) (1,518,904) (24,107,739) - - 
 ---------------------------------- --------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work 
completed but not billed at the reporting date on construction contracts. The contract 
assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This 
usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the customer. 

 
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from 
customers for construction contracts, for which revenue is recognised over time. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
5. Dividend income 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 Dividend income from 

  investment securities - 4,440 - - 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
 
6. Other income 
 

The other income consists of gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, gain on 
disposal of subsidiaries, gain on foreign exchange, reversal of impairment loss on trade and 
other receivables and miscellaneous income. 

 
 
7. Finance income 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Interest income from: 
- Short term deposits 1,996,743 1,473,169 1,222,465  1,268,623 
- Current account  90,460 98,121 13,182  11,615 
- Others  394 157,650 - - 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 2,087,597 1,728,940 1,235,647  1,280,238 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
 
8. Finance costs 
 
 Interest expenses on: 

- Bank overdrafts 1,835,182 1,846,681 25,156  26,487 
- Bankers acceptances  6,229,867 6,926,583 - - 
- Obligations under finance leases -  646,777 -  9,282 
- Term loans 4,427,944 6,125,392 560,735  778,524 
- Revolving credits 3,475,511 3,349,705 299,075  312,014 
- Trust receipts - 77,685 - - 
- Lease liabilities (Note 25) 696,598 - 5,507 - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 16,665,102 18,972,823 890,473  1,126,307 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
9. (Loss)/Profit before tax 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
 The following items have been  
  included in arriving at (loss)/ 
  profit before tax: 
 

Employee benefits expense 
  (Note 10) 108,449,778 89,912,810 2,157,058  2,033,277 
Non-executive directors’  
  remuneration (Note 11) 343,196 343,041 280,353  274,173 
Auditors’ remunerations 
- Current year 218,300 212,058 85,000  75,275 
- Under /(Over)provision in  
  previous years 33,000 (17,600) (10,000) 5,000 
Depreciation of property, plant 
  and equipment (Note 14) 100,675,852 97,447,346 1,278,667  1,265,581 
Impairment loss on 
  investment in a subsidiary - - 15,077,596 - 
Impairment loss on property, 
  plant and equipment 30,783,375 - - - 
Impairment loss on other 
  receivables (Note 37) 15,497,988 53,119,665 - - 
Impairment loss on trade 
  receivables (Note 37) 7,988,256 2,046,774 - - 
Fair value loss/(gain) on 
  investment securities 87,600 (40,200) - - 
Fair value (gain)/loss on  
  forward contracts (150,966) 20,766 - - 
Provision for foreseeable loss 7,615,684 - - - 
Impairment on work-in-progress 
  inventory 449,500 - - - 
Loss on disposal of shares 
  in associates - 6,286,524 - - 
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of shares 
  in a subsidiary 14,305,869 (728,051) - - 
Hiring charges 4,726,354 4,519,460 - - 
Property, plant and equipment 
  written off 6,653 10,407 - 7,040 
Loss on foreign exchange 118,998 2,699,518 - - 
Rental expenses 1,186,051 696,261 497  - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
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(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
10. Employee benefits expense 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Salaries and wages  103,352,592 84,825,497 2,025,904  1,903,945 
Social security contributions 673,501 576,365 7,154  5,265 
Contributions to defined 
  contribution plan 4,423,685 4,510,948 124,000  124,067 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 108,449,778 89,912,810 2,157,058  2,033,277 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
 

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are Executive 
Directors’ remuneration amounting to RM1,434,515 (2019: RM1,530,274) and RM879,836 
(2019: RM888,936) respectively as further disclosed in Note 11. 

 
 
11. Directors’ remuneration 
 

Directors of the Company  
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Executive: 
Salaries and other emoluments 1,286,995 1,327,444 781,036  781,036 
Bonus 65,000 105,500 65,000 65,000 
Defined contribution plan 82,520 97,330 33,800 42,900 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 Total executive directors’ 
   remuneration (Note 10) 1,434,515 1,530,274 879,836 888,936 
 

Non-Executive: 
Other emoluments 217,036 217,036 156,593 156,593 
Bonus 13,000 18,000 13,000 13,000 
Defined contribution plan 9,160 12,005 6,760 8,580 
Fees 104,000 96,000 104,000 96,000 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

Total Non-executive 
 directors’ remuneration 
 (Note 9) 343,196 343,041 280,353 274,173 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 1,777,711 1,873,315 1,160,189 1,163,109 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
 

Directors of subsidiaries  
 

Salaries and other emoluments 833,829 1,370,146 - - 
Bonus 207,750 277,000 - - 
Defined contribution plan 190,200 203,051 - - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 1,231,779 1,850,197 - - 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

Total directors’ remuneration 3,009,490 3,723,512 1,160,189 1,163,109 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

  



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 123

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2020 (Cont’d)

 

71 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
11. Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 
 

The number of Directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the year fell within 
the following bands is analysed below: 
 Number of Directors 
 2020 2019 
Executive Directors: 
RM250,001 – RM300,000 1 1 
RM400,001 – RM450,000 1 - 
RM500,001 – RM550,000 - 1 
RM750,001 – RM800,000 1 1 

 
Non-Executive Directors: 
Below RM50,000 5 4 
RM200,001 - RM250,000 1 1 

 
 
12. Income tax expense 
 

Major components of income tax expense 
 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are: 
 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Statements of profit or loss 
  and other comprehensive income: 

 
Current income tax: 

Malaysian income tax 1,121,153 1,514,927 207,647 207,400 
Underprovision in prior years 87,602 15,642 2,433 12,449 
Withholding tax - 1,868 - - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 1,208,755 1,532,437 210,080 219,849 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
Deferred income tax (Note 30): 

Reversal or origination of  
  temporary differences (8,851,001) 5,119,931 - - 
Overprovision in 
  previous years (616,091) (213,366) - - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 (9,467,092) 4,906,565 - - 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

Income tax expense 
  recognised in profit or loss (8,258,337) 6,439,002 210,080  219,849 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
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(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
12. Income tax expense (Continued) 
 
 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit 
 

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting (loss)/profit multiplied 
by the applicable corporate tax rate for the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

(Loss)/Profit before tax (154,168,441) (82,719,090) (14,830,458) 330,350 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
Tax at Malaysian statutory 
  tax rate of 24% (2019: 24%) (37,000,426) (19,852,582) (3,559,310)  79,284 
Adjustments: 
Income not subject to tax (6,890,181) (4,652,160) (179,580)  (210,000) 
Non-deductible expenses 26,760,999 22,647,389 3,885,693  278,818 
Deferred tax assets not recognised 
  during the year 9,399,760 8,649,277 60,844  59,298 
Reversal of deferred tax assets  
  not recognised in previous years - (203,684) - - 
Underprovision of tax expenses 
  in prior years 87,602 15,642 2,433  12,449 
Overprovision of  
  deferred tax in previous years (616,091) (213,366) - - 
Effect of share of results of  
  associate - 46,618 - - 
Withholding tax - 1,868 - - 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

Income tax expense 
  recognised in profit or loss (8,258,337) 6,439,002 210,080  219,849 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
Current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2019: 24%) of the estimated 
assessable (loss)/profit for the year.  
 
Certain subsidiaries enjoy tax exempt profits arising from its operations of seagoing vessels, 
under Section 54A of the Income Tax Act, 1967. 
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13. Loss per share 
 

Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing loss for the year, net of tax, 
attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 
issue during the financial year, excluding treasury shares held by the Company.  

 
The following reflect the loss and share data used in the computation of basic loss per share 
for the years ended 30 June: 

 
 2020 2019 
 RM RM 
 

Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders  
  of the Company (146,142,813) (86,668,449) 

 ------------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 

 2020 2019 
 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  1,170,414,875 1,174,423,717 
 ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 

 2020 2019 
 

Basic loss per share (Sen) (12.49) (7.38) 
 ------------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
The diluted loss per share for the Group is not presented as there were no potential dilutive 
ordinary shares outstanding at the reporting date. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
   Office 
   Equipment, Capital  
Company * Land and Motor Furniture work-in-  
 Buildings Vehicle and Fittings progress Total 
 RM RM RM RM RM 
Cost: 
 
At 1 July 2018 53,328,923 282,011 5,386,792 - 58,997,726 
Additions - - 37,693 76,000 113,693 
Written off (7,040) - - - (7,040) 
Reclassifications 76,000 - - (76,000) - 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2019 
  and 1 July 2019 53,397,883 282,011 5,424,485 - 59,104,379 
Additions 3,861 - 169,042 140,650 313,553 
Disposal - - (520) - (520) 
Reclassifications 140,650 - - (140,650) - 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2020 53,542,394 282,011 5,593,007 - 59,417,412 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
Accumulated  
  depreciation: 
 
At 1 July 2018 3,005,618 14,101 3,237,556 - 6,257,275 
Charge for the year  
  (Note 9) 741,431  56,402 467,748  - 1,265,581 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2019 
  and 1 July 2019 3,747,049 70,503 3,705,304 - 7,522,856 
Charge for the year  
  (Note 9) 746,088 56,402 476,177 - 1,278,667 
Disposal - - (338) - (338) 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2020 4,493,137 126,905 4,181,143 - 8,801,185 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
 
Net carrying amount: 
 
At 30 June 2019 49,650,834 211,508 1,719,181 - 51,581,523 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------- 

 
At 30 June 2020 49,049,257 155,106 1,411,864 - 50,616,227 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 * Land and Buildings 
  Long Term  
  Long Term Leasehold    
Company Leasehold Land and  Wharf and  
 Land Buildings Buildings Jetty Total 
 RM RM RM RM RM 
Cost: 
 
At 1 July 2018 2,164,309 35,237,644 15,926,970 - 53,328,923 
Written off - (7,040) - - (7,040) 
Reclassifications - 76,000 - - 76,000 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2019 
  and 1 July 2019 2,164,309 35,306,604 15,926,970 - 53,397,883 
Additions - - - 3,861 3,861 
Reclassifications - - - 140,650 140,650 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2020 2,164,309 35,306,604 15,926,970 144,511 53,542,394 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
Accumulated  
  depreciation: 
 
At 1 July 2018 - 1,666,462 1,339,156 - 3,005,618 
Charge for the year - 502,527 238,904 - 741,431 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2019 
  and 1 July 2019 - 2,168,989 1,578,060 - 3,747,049 
Charge for the year - 503,667 238,905 3,516 746,088 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

At 30 June 2020 - 2,672,656 1,816,965 3,516 4,493,137 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
 
Net carrying amount: 
 
At 30 June 2019 2,164,309 33,137,615 14,348,910 - 49,650,834 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------- 

 
At 30 June 2020 2,164,309 32,633,948 14,110,005 140,995 49,049,257 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
 Titles of the certain leasehold land of the Group and of the Company with the carrying value 

of RM59,198,623 (2019: RM59,746,150) and RM8,841,227 (2019: RM9,047,615) 
respectively have yet to be issued by the authority. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 Assets held under finance leases 
 
 During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate 

cost of RM416,200 (2019: RM4,906,500) by means of finance leases. The cash outflows on 
acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to RM20,745,223 (2019: 
RM99,021,287). 

 
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases at the 
reporting date were as follows: 

 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
 Motor vehicles  1,524,167 1,362,997 154,000 210,000 
 Plant and machinery  13,652,816 15,744,424 - - 
   ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

   15,176,983 17,107,421 154,000 210,000 
   ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
Assets pledged as security 

 
In addition to assets held under finance leases, the net carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment pledged for borrowings as referred in Note 25 are as follows: 

 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
 Land and buildings  91,293,087 93,248,009 36,425,463 36,930,613 
 Plant and machinery  48,833,333 52,083,000 - - 
 Vessels  222,590,438 210,546,911 - - 
   ------------------------------ --------------------------------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
   363,716,858 355,877,920 36,425,463 36,930,613 
   ------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Depreciation for the year is allocated as follows: 

 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
 Profit or loss (Note 9)  100,675,852 97,447,346 1,278,667 1,265,581 
 Capital work-in-progress  - 91,183 - - 
   ------------------------------ --------------------------------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
   100,675,852 97,538,529 1,278,667 1,265,581 
   ------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020

14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

The Group groups their vessels by type of similar category/size vessels as separate cash
generating unit (“CGU”).

The estimated recoverable amount was determined based on the higher of an asset’s value
in use (“VIU”) and fair value less costs to sell (“FV”). The recoverable amount was
compared to the carrying value of each asset with identified impairment triggers. If the
recoverable amount was lower, the carrying value of the asset was reduced to its estimated
recoverable amount and the difference regarded as an impairment loss.

The recoverable amount under VIU was determined based on the expected cash flows
estimated to generated by the identified CGU over its remaining useful life. The main inputs
used were estimated charter rate, estimated operating cost and dry docking expenses
considering historical performance of the CGU. The pre-tax discount of 10% was used in
the computation.

The recoverable amount under FV was derived from the valuations performed by an internal
expert. The FV represents an estimate of the amount to be received in the event that the
vessel is sold, on a willing buyer and willing seller basis.

During the financial year, the Group carried out an assessment of the recoverable amount of
its vessels and non-current assets held for sale due to depressed market condition. As a result
of the assessment, the Group recognised impairment loss of RM24,241,011 (2019: Nil) and
RM6,542,364 (2019: Nil) respectively for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 Right-of-use assets 
 
 Included in the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets 

as follows: 
 Leasehold 
  land and Leasehold Plant and Motor 
  buildings land Vessels machinery vehicles Total 
Group RM RM RM RM RM RM 

  
Cost 
 
 At 1 July 2019 - - - - - - 

 Effect of adoption  
   of MFRS 16  
   leases 

- Reclassification 
  land - 28,922,204 - - - 28,922,204 
- Reclassification 
  of assets previously 
  acquired under  
  hire purchase - - - 18,278,327 2,023,559 20,301,886 
- Recognition  
  (Note 2.2) 335,613 - 1,707,470 - - 2,043,083 
Additions - - - - 518,925 518,925 
Disposal - - - - (230,000) (230,000) 
   ---------------------------- --------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020 335,613 28,922,204 1,707,470 18,278,327 2,312,484 51,556,098 
   ---------------------------- --------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 Right-of-use assets (Continued) 
 
 Included in the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets 

as follows: 
 
 Leasehold 
  land and Leasehold Plant and Motor 
  buildings land Vessels machinery vehicles Total 
Group RM RM RM RM RM RM 

  
Accumulated 
  depreciation 
 
At 1 July 2019 - - - - - - 

 Effect of adoption  
   of MFRS 16  
   leases 

- Reclassification 
  land - 6,611,962 - - - 6,611,962 
- Reclassification 
  of assets previously 
  acquired under  
  hire purchase - - - 2,533,903 319,571 2,853,474 
Depreciation for the 
  financial year 105,922 543,257 745,751 1,827,833 317,542 3,540,305 
Disposal - - - - (42,167) (42,167) 
   ---------------------------- --------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020 105,922 7,155,219 745,751 4,361,736 594,946 12,963,574 
   ---------------------------- --------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------- 

 
Net carrying amount 
 
At 30 June 2020 229,691 21,766,985 961,719 13,916,591 1,717,538 38,592,524 
  ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 
 Right-of-use assets (Continued) 
 
 Included in the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets 

as follows: 
 
      Motor 
      vehicles Total 

 Company     RM RM 
 
 At 1 July 2019     - - 

 Effect of adoption of MFRS 16 leases: 
- Reclassification of assets previously acquired 
  under hire purchase    282,011 282,011 

  ------------------------- ------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020    282,011 282,011 
  ------------------------- ------------------------- 

 
Accumulated depreciation 

 
At 1 July 2019     - - 

 Effect of adoption of MFRS 16 leases: 
- Reclassification of assets previously acquired 
  under hire purchase    70,503 70,503 
Depreciation for the financial year    56,402 56,402 

  ------------------------- ------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020    126,905 126,905 
  ------------------------- ------------------------- 

 
Net carrying amount 

 
At 30 June 2020     155,106 155,106 

  ------------------------- ------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
 Right-of-use assets (Continued) 
 

The Group has lease contracts for land, buildings, containers, plant and machineries and motor 
vehicles used in its operations.  

 
There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options 
are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and 
align with the Group’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in 
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be 
exercised. 

 
 The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use 

assets recognised on the statements of financial position: 
 
     Leasehold 
     land and  Plant and Motor 
    buildings Vessels machinery vehicles 
    RM RM RM RM 

Group 
 

No. of right-of- 
  use assets leased  8 1 8 14 

   ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ 

 
Company 

 
No. of right-of- 
  use assets leased  - - - 1 

   ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ 

 
 
15. Investment in subsidiaries 
  Company 
   2020 2019 
    RM RM 
 

Unquoted shares, at cost 1,036,451,176 1,036,451,176 
Less: impairment loss (15,077,596) - 

 ------------------------------------- --------------------------------- 

 1,021,373,580 1,036,451,176 
 ------------------------------------- --------------------------------- 

 
At the reporting date, the Company conducted an impairment review of two of its investment 
in subsidiary companies, principally based on the Company’s share of net assets in the 
subsidiary company, which represents the directors’ estimation of fair value less costs to sell 
of these subsidiary company. The review gave rise to the recognition of an impairment loss 
of investment in subsidiary company of RM15,077,596 based on recoverable amounts of 
RM260,813,016. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
15. Investment in subsidiaries (Continued) 
 
 (i) Disposal of subsidiaries 
 

2020 
Shin Yang FZC 

 
During the year, Shin Yang Shipping Sdn. Bhd. disposed of 49% equity interest in 
Shin Yang FZC for a cash consideration of AED1,640,000. Accordingly, Shin Yang 
FZC had ceased to be the subsidiary of Shin Yang Shipping Sdn. Bhd. and became 
an associate (Note 16). 
 
2019 
PT Shinline 

 
In 2019, Shin Yang Shipping Sdn. Bhd. disposed of 50.5% equity interest in PT 
Shinline for a cash consideration of USD126,250. PT Shinline had ceased to be the 
subsidiary of Shin Yang Shipping Sdn. Bhd. and became an associate (Note 16). 

 
The disposals had the following effects on the financial position of the Group as at the 
end of the year: 

    Shin Yang FZC PT Shinline 
    2020 2019 
    RM RM 
 

Property, plant and equipment 2,579,000 18,592 
Trade and other receivables 34,743,298 384,771 
Other current assets 32,278 - 
Cash and bank balances 85,420 358,625 
Trade and other payables (7,385,683) (899,445) 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Net identifiable assets/liabilities 30,054,313 (137,457) 
Less: Foreign exchange reserve (9,477,737) (61,063) 
Less: Non-controlling interest (2,414,322) (6,225) 
Transfer to associate (2,205,643) - 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Net assets/(liabilities) disposed 15,956,611 (204,745) 
Total disposal proceeds (1,650,742) (523,306) 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Loss/(Gain) on disposal to the Group (Note 9) 14,305,869 (728,051) 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
Disposal proceeds settled by: 
Cash 1,650,742 523,306 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
15. Investment in subsidiaries (Continued) 
 
 (i) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 
 
  The disposal had the following effects on the financial position of the Group as at the 

end of the year: (Continued) 
 
    Shin Yang FZC PT Shinline 
    2020 2019 
    RM RM 

Cash inflows arising on disposal: 
Cash consideration 1,650,742 523,306 
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed (85,420) (358,625) 
 ------------------------------ ----------------------------- 

Net cash inflows on disposal 1,565,322 164,681 
 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
(ii) Non-controlling interests 

 
 None of the subsidiaries with non-controlling interests are material to the Group. 

Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other 
Entities, are not presented. 

 
 
16. Investment in associates 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Unquoted shares, at cost 3,544,946 1,339,304 682,500 682,500 
Share of post acquisition 
 reserves 1,104,605 968,481 - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 

  4,649,551 2,307,785 682,500 682,500 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
16. Investment in associates (Continued) 
 

Details of the associates are as follows: 
 

 Country of Principal  Percentage of 
Name of Company Incorporation Activities  equity held 

    by the 
    Group 
   2020 2019 
    % % 
 
 Melinau Shipping Sdn. Malaysia Shipping and forwarding 39 39 
   Bhd.*  agency 
 
 PT Shinline.* Indonesia Investment holding 49 49 
 
 Shin Yang FZC# United Arab Investment holding 49 - 
  Emirates 
 
 Associate of PT Shinline 
 
 PT. Baruna Adiprasetya* Indonesia International shipping  24 24 
    and shipping 
    agency 
 

* Audited by a firm other than Ernst & Young PLT. 
# Refer to Note 15 

 
The Group has not recognised losses relating to PT Shinline where its share of losses exceeds 
the Group’s interest in these associates. The Group’s cumulative share of unrecognised losses 
at the reporting date was RM1,140,665 (2019: RM1,086,804) of which RM53,861 (2019: 
RM320,544) was the share of the current year’s loss. The Group has no obligation in respect of 
these losses. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
16. Investment in associates (Continued) 
 

(b) Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material associates is set 
out below. The summarised financial information represents the amount in the MFRS 
financial statements of the associates and not the Group's share of those amounts. 

 
(i) Summarised statements of financial information 

 
   Melinau  
   Shipping Shin Yang  
   Sdn Bhd FZC Total 
   RM RM RM 

 2020 
 
 Assets and 
  liabilities 
 
 Current assets  15,114,848 32,169,118 47,283,966 
 Non-current assets  617,039 3,242,547 3,859,586 
   ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Total assets  15,731,887 35,411,665 51,143,552 
   ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
 Current liabilities  3,007,263 3,642,327 6,649,590 
 Non-current liabilities  177,069 - 177,069 
   ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Total liabilities  3,184,332 3,642,327 6,826,659 
   ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Net assets  12,547,555 31,769,338 44,316,893 
   ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
16. Investment in associates (Continued) 
 

(b) Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material associates is set 
out below. The summarised financial information represents the amount in the MFRS 
financial statements of the associates and not the Group's share of those amounts. 
(Continued) 

 
(i) Summarised statements of financial information (Continued) 

 
  Melinau Deena 
  Shipping Shipping 
  Sdn Bhd L.L.C. Total 
  RM RM RM 

 2019 
 

 Assets and 
  liabilities 

 
 Current assets 14,349,707 17,071,760 31,421,467 
 Non-current assets 399,529 394,538 794,067 
  ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Total assets 14,749,236 17,466,298 32,215,534 
  ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
 Current liabilities 2,481,835 64,517,595 66,999,430 
 Non-current liabilities 49,838 - 49,838 
  ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Total liabilities 2,531,673 64,517,595 67,049,268 
  ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 Net assets/(liabilities) 12,217,563 (47,051,297) (34,833,734) 
  ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- 

 
(ii) Summarised statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

 
   Melinau   
   Shipping Shin Yang  
   Sdn Bhd FZC Total 
   RM RM RM 

 2020 
 

 Revenue  4,420,798 - 4,420,798 
 

 Profit for the year, 
representing total 
comprehensive income  504,992 15,414 520,406 

   -------------------------- ------------------------ -------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020

16. Investment in associates (Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material associates is set
out below. The summarised financial information represents the amount in the MFRS
financial statements of the associates and not the Group's share of those amounts.
(Continued)

(ii) Summarised statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(Continued)

Melinau Deena
Shipping Shipping
Sdn Bhd L.L.C. Total

RM RM RM
2019

Revenue 4,506,263 2,540,037 7,046,300

Profit/(Loss) for the year,
 representing total
 comprehensive income 644,340 (8,898,609) (8,254,269)

-------------------------- ------------------------ --------------------------

(iii) Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented above to
the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in associates

Melinau Shin
Shipping Yang
Sdn Bhd FZC Total

RM RM RM
2020

Group’s share of net
  assets 2,436,593 2,212,958 4,649,551

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------

Carrying value of
 Group’ s interest
  in associates 2,436,593 2,212,958 4,649,551

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------

2019

Group’s share of net
  assets 2,307,785 - 2,307,785

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------

Carrying value of
 Group’s interest
  in associates 2,307,785 - 2,307,785

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
17. Investment securities 

  Group 
 2020 2019 

  RM RM 
 
 Equity instruments 
   (quoted in Malaysia), at fair value 93,600 181,200 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 Market value of quoted shares in Malaysia 93,600 181,200 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 
18. Intangible asset 

  Group 
 2020 2019 

  RM RM 
Goodwill 
Cost: 

 
 At 30 June 2020/2019 2,063,893 2,063,893 

 ----------------------------- --------------------------- 

 
Carrying amount of goodwill on business acquisition is related to the acquisition of a 
shipping agency in prior years. The Group performed its annual impairment test in June 2020 
and 2019. 

 
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on value in use 
calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management. 
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections and the forecasted growth rates 
used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five-year period are 10.0% - 12.0% 
(2019: 10.0% - 12.0%) and 2.0% (2019: 2.0%) respectively.  

 
Management determined budgeted profit margin based on past performance and its 
expectations of the market conditions. The pre-tax discount rates used reflected specific risks 
relating to the shipping industry. The forecasted growth rates were based on management’s 
estimate which did not exceed the long term average growth rate for the industry. 

 
 
19. Inventories 

  Group 
 2020 2019 

  RM RM 
 
Consumables 51,125,217 59,124,735 
Petrol, oil and lubricants on board 3,153,398 3,693,959 
Work-in-progress 327,567 993,775 
 ----------------------------------- --------------------------- 

 54,606,182 63,812,469 
 ----------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
20. Trade and other receivables 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 Current 
 Trade receivables 

Third parties 102,662,139 134,829,484 360 42,120 
Due from related companies 46,348,169 67,216,478 - - 
Due from associates 1,205,263 8,940,306 - - 

  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 150,215,571 210,986,268 360 42,120 
 Less: Allowance for impairment 

- third parties (14,440,709) (18,989,228) - - 
- associates (412,002) (412,002) - - 
- related companies (4,863) - - - 

  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 (14,857,574) (19,401,230) 360 42,120 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Trade receivables, net 135,357,997 191,585,038 360 42,120 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
 Other receivables 

Refundable deposits     
- Third parties 1,837,589 15,611,944 94,530 94,530 
- Due from related companies - 500 - - 
Other receivables 16,502,454 31,831,286 122,446 115,320 
Due from related companies 1,259 1,031 - 269 
Due from subsidiaries - - - 1,814,940 
Due from associates 14,910,832 45,099,426 505,360 238,108 

  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 33,252,134 92,544,187 722,336 2,263,167 
Less: Allowance for impairment 

- third parties (10,587,476) (12,142,641) - - 
- associates (10,309,869) (1,258,258) - - 

  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 (20,897,345) (13,400,899) - - 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Other receivables, net 12,354,789 79,143,288 722,336 2,263,167 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 147,712,786 270,728,326 722,696 2,305,287 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 
 Non-current 
 Other receivables 

Due from subsidiaries - - 101,053,675 108,167,889 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

Total trade and other  
  receivables 147,712,786 270,728,326 101,776,371 110,473,176 

  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
20. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 
 

Related companies are companies within Shin Yang Holding Sendirian Berhad Group. 
 

(a) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 90 day (2019: 7 
to 90 day) terms. 

 
Included in trade receivables of the Group is an amount of RM4,685,824 (2019: 
RM5,897,335) due from companies in which certain Directors have substantial 
financial interests. 

 
(b) Amounts due from related companies and subsidiaries 

 
 These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are receivable on demand. 

 
(c) Other receivables 

 
 These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are receivable on demand. 

 
 
21. Contract assets/(liabilities) 
 

 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

At 1 July (2,826,920) 21,993,600 - - 
Revenue recognised  
  during the year 159,267,843 143,574,983 - - 
Progress billings 
   during the year (141,273,852) (168,395,503) - - 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

At 30 June 15,167,071 (2,826,920) - - 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 

Analysed as follows: 
Contract assets  
  (Note 4(c) and Note 22) 16,685,975 21,280,819 - - 
Contract liabilities  
  (Note 4(c) and Note 28) (1,518,904) (24,107,739) - - 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 

The costs incurred to date on construction contracts include the following charges made 
during the financial year: 

 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Hiring of plant and machinery 2,569,814 3,256,844 - - 
Depreciation of property, plant  
  and equipment 9,413,254 9,638,119 - - 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
22. Other current assets 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Prepaid operating expenses 10,700,283 14,112,549 - - 
GST refundable 1,427,922 1,720,607 1,426,776 1,719,438 
Contracts assets (Note 21) 16,685,975 21,280,819 - - 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

 28,814,180 37,113,975 1,426,776 1,719,438 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

 
 
23. Cash and bank balances 
 

Cash at banks and on hand 41,097,783 25,559,021 864,143 841,213 
Short term deposits 
  with licensed banks 80,400,000 43,200,000 41,200,000 34,200,000 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

Cash and bank balances 121,497,783 68,759,021 42,064,143 35,041,213 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- --------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

 
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 
following as at the reporting date: 
 

 Group Company 
 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

 

Cash and bank balances 121,497,783 68,759,021 42,064,143 35,041,213 
Bank overdrafts (Note 25) (25,730,006) (23,973,396) - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

  95,767,777 44,785,625 42,064,143 35,041,213 
Less: Fixed deposits with  
  maturity more than 3 months (27,100,000) - - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

Cash and cash equivalents  68,667,777 44,785,625 42,064,143 35,041,213 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------------- 

 
 
24. Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
 

Non-current assets held for sale comprise of vessels which the Group expects to sell within the 
next 12 months from the reporting date. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
25. Loans and borrowings 
 Group Company 
 Maturity 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 Current 

 
Secured: 
Bank overdrafts On demand 10,978,837 11,656,132 - - 
Revolving credits 2021 20,000,000 21,500,000 5,000,000 6,000,000 
Bankers acceptances 2021 13,222,000 18,380,000 - - 
Term loans 2021 21,601,757 31,980,679 1,550,004 1,550,004 
Obligations under  
  finance leases  - 4,238,560 - 84,325 
Lease liabilities 2021 4,095,117 - 80,583 - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 69,897,711 87,755,371 6,630,587 7,634,329 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Unsecured: 
Bank overdrafts On demand 14,751,169 12,317,264 - - 
Revolving credits 2021 53,985,200 40,136,000 - - 
Bankers acceptances 2021 97,299,000 135,463,000 - - 
Lease liabilities 2021 838,307 - - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 166,873,676 187,916,264 - - 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 236,771,387 275,671,635 6,630,587 7,634,329 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Non-current 
 
Secured: 
Term loans 2022 - 2028 65,925,499 67,624,757 8,654,149 10,204,153 
Obligations under 
  finance leases  - 9,075,048 - 80,583 
Lease liabilities 2022 - 2023 5,462,552 - - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 71,388,051 76,699,805 8,654,149 10,284,736 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Unsecured: 
Lease liabilities 2022 - 2025 460,667 - - - 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

  71,848,718 76,699,805 8,654,149 10,284,736 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
Total loans and borrowings 308,620,105 352,371,440 15,284,736 17,919,065 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
25. Loans and borrowings (Continued) 
 
 The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings as at the reporting date are as follows: 
 
 Group Company 
 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

On demand or within one year   236,771,387 275,671,635 6,630,587 7,634,329 
Later than 1 year but not 
  later than 2 years  22,576,602 21,318,671 1,550,004 1,630,587 
Later than 2 years but not 
  later than 5 years  33,818,037 34,377,043 4,650,012 4,650,012 
Later than 5 years 15,454,079 21,004,091 2,454,133 4,004,137 

  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 308,620,105 352,371,440 15,284,736 17,919,065 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 Bank overdrafts 

The bank overdrafts are secured by charges over leasehold land and buildings of the Group 
as stated in Note 14 and guaranteed by certain Directors of the Company. 

 
 Lease liabilities 

These obligations are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 14). 
 

Revolving credits 

Revolving credits are secured by charges over leasehold land and buildings of the Company 
and of the Group as stated in Note 14 and guaranteed by certain Directors of the Company. 

 
Bankers’ acceptances 

Bankers’ acceptances are secured by charges over leasehold land and buildings of the Group 
as stated in Note 14 and guaranteed by certain Directors of the Company. 

 
Term loans 

These loans are secured by legal charges over certain vessels and leasehold land and buildings 
of the Company as stated in Note 14 and guaranteed by certain Directors of the Company. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
25. Loans and borrowings (Continued) 
 

The ranges of interest rates for loans and borrowings are as follows: 
 
 Group Company 
 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  % % % % 

 
Bank overdrafts  6.20 - 7.35 7.45 - 8.60 - - 
Fixed rates - loans  - 5.25 - 5.61 - - 
Floating rates - loans  3.49 - 5.62 4.77 - 6.09 4.65 - 5.42 4.68 - 5.53 
Revolving credits  3.83 - 4.99 4.95 - 5.74 4.07 4.95 
Bankers acceptances  3.37 - 5.19 4.28 - 5.55 - - 
Obligations under finance leases  - 3.66 - 5.37 - 4.41 
Lease liabilities  3.66 - 10.00 - 4.41 - 

 
Lease liabilities  

 
The movement of lease liabilities during the financial year is as follows: 

 
    2020 
    RM 
Group 
 
At 1 July  13,313,608 
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16: 
- Recognition (Note 2.2) 2,043,083 
Additions 634,100 
Interest charged (Note 8) 696,598 
Payment of: 
- Principal (5,134,148) 
- Interest (696,598) 
  ---------------------------- 

At 30 June  10,856,643 
  ----------------------------- 
 

The expenses relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are 
as follows: 

 
    2020 
    RM 
Group 

 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14)  3,540,305 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 8)  696,598 

  ----------------------------- 

 
The Group had total cash outflows for leases amounting to RM5,830,746 in 2020.  

 
There were no leases with residual value guarantee or leases which have yet to commence of 
which the Group have committed.  
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
25. Loans and borrowings (Continued) 
 

The operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 is reconciled to arrive at the lease liabilities 
as at 1 July 2019 as follows: 
    2020 
    RM 
Group 

 
Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019  2,161,808 
  ---------------------------- 

 
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 9.40% 

 
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the 

date of initial application  2,043,083 
  ---------------------------- 

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019  2,043,083 
  ----------------------------- 
 

Obligations under finance leases 
 

These obligations are secured by charges over the lease assets (Note 14). The effective 
interest rate as at reporting date ranged from 6.00% to 10.00% (2019: 6.00% to 10.00%) per 
annum. These obligations are denominated in RM. 

 
 
26. Derivatives 
 Notional  Notional  
 Amount 2020 Amount 2019 
 RM RM RM RM 

Assets 
Non-hedging  
   derivatives: 

 
Forward currency 
   contracts  7,708,500 130,200 - - 
   ----------------------------------  -------------------------------- 

 
Liabilities 
Non-hedging  
   derivatives: 

 
Forward currency 
   contracts  - - 7,743,727 20,766 
   ----------------------------------  -------------------------------- 

 
The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some of the transaction exposure. These 
contracts are not designated as cash flow or fair value hedges and are entered into for periods 
consistent with currency transaction exposure. Such derivatives do not qualify for hedge 
accounting.  

 
Forward currency contracts are mainly used to hedge the Group’s sales and purchases 
denominated in USD for which firm commitments existed at the reporting date. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
27. Trade and other payables 
 Group Company 
 2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

Trade payables 
 Third parties 81,695,435 87,641,050 - - 
 Due to associates 10,553,263 9,978,407 - - 
 Due to related companies 15,796,774 10,775,282 - -    ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 108,045,472 108,394,739 - -   ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 Other payables 
Accrued operating expenses 18,150,932 10,641,150 272,091  148,813 

 Deposits 
 - Related companies - - 431,500  431,500 
 - Others 4,216,038 4,582,344 137,680  117,360 

Other payables 7,816,830 8,239,335 302,045  315,151 
 Due to directors - 551,411 - - 
 Due to related companies 1,539,616 1,127,593 86,829  104,086 
  Due to holding company 17,296 76,798 - - 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 31,740,712 25,218,631 1,230,145 1,116,910 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 Total trade and other payables 139,786,184 133,613,370 1,230,145  1,116,910 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
 

(a) Trade payables 
 

 These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled on 30 to 
90 day (2019: 30 to 90 day) terms. Included in trade payables of the Group is an amount 
of RM4,994,495 (2019: RM5,740,405) due to companies in which certain Directors of 
the Company have substantial financial interests. 

 
(b) Other payables 

 
 Included in other payables of the Group is an amount of RM254,160 (2019: 

RM1,084,414) due to companies in which certain Directors of the Company have 
substantial financial interests. These amounts are non-interest bearing and are repayable 
on demand. 

 
(c) Amounts due to Directors, related companies, subsidiaries and holding 

company 
 

 These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
28. Other current liabilities 
 
 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 

Contract liabilities (Note 21) 1,518,904 24,107,739 - - 
 ------------------------------ --------------------------- --------------------------- --------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
29. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Continued) 
 
 Obligation 
 under 
 finance  Revolving 
 leases Term loans credits Total 
  RM RM RM RM 
 Company 
 

At 1 July 2019 164,908 11,754,157 6,000,000 17,919,065 
Cash flows (84,325)  (1,550,004)  (1,000,000)  (2,634,329)  

  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020 80,583 10,204,153  5,000,000  15,284,736 
 ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
At 1 July 2018 245,458 16,304,561 6,000,000 22,550,019 
Cash flows (80,550) (4,550,404) - (4,630,954) 

  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

At 30 June 2019 164,908 11,754,157 6,000,000 17,919,065 
 ------------------------------------ ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020

30. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continued)

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM RM RM RM

Analysed as:
Deferred tax assets 50,903 16,016 - -
Deferred tax liabilities (45,266,072) (54,698,277) - -

------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------

 (45,215,169) (54,682,261) - -
------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------

Deferred tax assets have not
  been recognised in respect
  of the following items:

Unabsorbed capital allowances 4,428,033 3,836,678 2,477,850 2,222,525
Unrecognised reinvestment
   allowances 14,978,421 9,375,380 - -
Unutilised tax losses 84,387,745 57,318,538 1,035,413 1,035,413
Other deductible temporary
   differences 12,459,754 5,818,000 - -

------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------

 116,253,953 76,348,596 3,513,263 3,257,938
------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------

Pursuant to Section 44(5F) of the Income Tax Act, 1967, the unutilised tax losses can only
be carried forward until the following years of assessment:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM RM RM RM

Unutilised tax losses to be carried
  forward until:

- Year of assessment 2025 69,147,267 69,147,267 1,035,413 1,035,413
- Year of assessment 2026 45,090,648 - - -

------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------

 114,237,915 69,147,267 1,035,413 1,035,413
------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------------
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
31. Share capital and treasury shares 
 
 Number of Ordinary Share Amount 
  Share Treasury Share Treasury 
  capital  shares capital shares 
    RM RM 

Issued and fully paid 
 

Group and Company 
 

At 1 July 2018  1,200,000,000 (17,494,600) 1,216,972,062 (4,678,001) 
 

Purchase of treasury shares  - (11,246,800) - (3,726,642) 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

At 30 June 2019 and  
  1 July 2019  1,200,000,000 (28,741,400)  1,216,972,062 (8,404,643) 

 
Purchase of treasury shares  - (2,680,000) - (448,045) 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020  1,200,000,000 (31,421,400) 1,216,972,062 (8,852,688) 
  ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

 
(a) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared 

by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and 
rank equally with regard to the Company residual assets. 

 
(b) Treasury shares 

 
Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the Company. 
The amount consists of the acquisition costs of treasury shares net of the proceeds 
received on their subsequent sale or issuance. 

 
The Company acquired 2,680,000 (2019: 11,246,800) shares in the Company through 
purchases on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad during the financial year. The total 
amount paid to acquire the shares was RM448,045 and this was presented as a component 
within shareholders’ equity. The average cost paid for the shares repurchased during the 
financial year was RM0.17 per share.  

 
Of the total 1,200,000,000 (2019: 1,200,000,000) issued and fully paid ordinary shares 
as at 30 June 2020, 31,421,400 (2019: 28,741,400) are held as treasury shares by the 
Company. As at 30 June 2020, the number of outstanding ordinary shares in issue after 
the set-off is therefore 1,168,578,600 (2019: 1,171,258,600) ordinary shares. 

 
The Directors of the Company are committed to enhancing the value of the Company 
for its shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best 
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The repurchase transactions were 
financed by internally generated funds. The shares repurchased are held as treasury 
shares in accordance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
31. Share capital and treasury shares (Continued) 
 
  Movements on share buy-backs 
 
    Number  Average price 
    of shares Total cost per share 
       RM RM 
 

At 1 July 2018 17,494,600 4,678,001 0.27 
 

Repurchased during the year  
ended 30 June 2019 11,246,800  3,726,642 0.33 

 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
At 30 June 2019 28,741,400 8,404,643 0.29 
Repurchase during the year  
  ended 30 June 2020 2,680,000 448,045 0.17 
 ------------------------------ ------------------------------- 
At 30 June 2020 31,421,400 8,852,688 0.28 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 
32. Other reserves 
   Foreign 
   Currency 
  Merger Translation 

 Deficits Reserve Total 
  RM RM RM 
 Group 
 At 1 July 2018 (298,506,891) 8,806,266 (289,700,625) 

Other comprehensive income: 
 Exchange differences on translation of the 
   financial statements of foreign entities - 1,531,507 1,531,507 
 Less: Non-controlling interests - (153,151) (153,151) 
 Less: Disposal of subsidiary - (61,063) (61,063) 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

  - 1,317,293 1,317,293 

 At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019 (298,506,891) 10,123,559 (288,383,332) 

Other comprehensive income: 
 Less: Disposal of subsidiary - (9,477,737) (9,477,737) 
 Reclassification 645,822 (645,822) - 
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 

 At 30 June 2020 (297,861,069)  - (297,861,069)  
  -------------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------------- 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
32. Other reserves (Continued) 
 
 Merger deficits 

The merger deficits reserve represents the difference between the value of the considerations 
paid and the reserves of the two “acquired” entities, Shin Yang Shipping Sdn. Bhd. and 
Danum Shipping Sdn. Bhd. as a consequent of applying the pooling of interest method. 

 
 Foreign currency translation reserve 

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are 
different from that of the Group’s presentation currency. 

 
 
33. Commitments 

 
Capital commitments 
 
Capital expenditure as at the reporting date is as follows: 
 
   Group 
     2020 2019 
     RM RM 
Capital expenditure 
Approved and not contracted for: 
Property, plant and equipment   177,510 -      ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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34. Related party transactions 
 

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services 
 

 In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial 
statements, the following significant transactions between the Group and the 
Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the parties during 
the financial year: 

  Company 
  2020 2019 
  RM RM 
 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
 - Subsidiaries - 840 
 - Related companies 305,386 5,720 
 
 Sales of property, plant and equipment 
 - Related companies (182) - 
 
 Purchase of goods and services from  
 - Subsidiaries - 49,130 
 - Related companies 141,492 58,808 
 
 Rental income from 
 - Subsidiaries (2,929,000) (3,361,600) 
 - Related companies (8,000) (11,500) 
 - Associates (312,000) (300,000) 
 - Associate of holding company - (18,000) 
  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
   Group 
     2020 2019 
     RM RM 
 Sale of goods and services to 
 - Related companies  (72,707,425) (106,075,184) 
 - Associates   (181,451) - 
 Purchase of goods and services from  
 - Related companies   18,653,329 22,915,662 
 - Holding company   - 15,600 
 Sale of property, plant and equipment 
 - Related companies   (22,900) (1,063,500) 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
 - Related companies   4,641,729 1,837,284 
 - Associates   - 40,249,944 
 Rental income 
 - Related companies   (325,286) (407,986) 
 - Associates   (312,000) (300,000) 
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34. Related party transactions (Continued) 
 

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services (Continued) 
  Group 
    2020 2019 
    RM RM 

 Rental expenses charged by: 
 - Related companies 350,789 301,261 
 - Associates - 9,438 
 Management fee received 
 - Associates - (3,344,887) 
     ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 Transactions with companies in which certain 
  Directors have substantial financial interests: 
 Sales of goods and services   (9,097,383) (13,063,240) 
 Purchase of goods and services   10,896,005 13,937,229 
 Sales of property, plant and equipment  (117,960) (112,450) 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  309,993 860,221 
 Rental income   (16,620) (24,030) 
 Rental expenses   48,000 42,000 
     ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
 Related companies: 
 
 Related companies are companies within Shin Yang Holding Sendirian Berhad Group.  
 
 Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as 

at 30 June 2020 is disclosed in Note 20 and Note 27. 
 
(b) Remuneration of key management personnel 
 
 The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year 

was as follows: 
 Group Company 
 2020 2019 2020 2019 
 RM RM RM RM 

 
 Short-term employee benefits 3,440,402 4,151,090 1,558,829 1,545,552 
 Defined contribution plan 332,753 366,566 84,673 97,080 
  -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- 

  3,773,155 4,517,656 1,643,502 1,642,632 
   -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- 
 
 Included in the total key 
  management personnel are: 
 Directors’ remuneration 

(Note 11) 3,009,490 3,723,512 1,160,189 1,163,109 
   -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- 
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35. Categories of financial instruments 

 
35.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
 The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments, categories as follows: 
 

(a) Loans and receivables (“LR”) 
(b) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 
(c) Amortised cost (“AC”) 

 
 Group Company 

 Note AC FVTPL AC FVTPL 
  RM RM RM RM 

 2020 
 
 Financial assets 
 
 Trade and other 
  receivables 20 147,712,786 - 101,776,371  - 
 Investment securities 17 - 93,600  - - 
 Cash and bank balances 23 121,497,783 - 42,064,143  - 
 Derivative 26 - 130,200 - -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
   269,210,569 223,800 143,840,514 -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 

 Financial liabilities  
 
 Loans and borrowings 25 308,620,105 - 15,284,736  - 
 Trade and other payables 27 139,786,184 - 1,230,145  -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
   448,406,289 - 16,514,881  -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
  
 2019 
  
 Financial assets  
 
 Trade and other 
  receivables 20 270,728,326 - 110,473,176 - 
 Investment securities 17 - 181,200 - - 
 Cash and bank balances 23 68,759,021 - 35,041,213 -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
   339,487,347 181,200 145,514,389 -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 

 Financial liabilities 
 
 Loans and borrowings 25 352,371,440 - 17,919,065 - 
 Trade and other payables 27 133,613,370 - 1,116,910 - 
 Derivative 26 - 20,766 - -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
   485,984,810 20,766 19,035,975 -    ------------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------- 
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35. Categories of financial instruments (Continued) 
 

35.2 Fair value 
 

(a) Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value 
 

 Set out below, is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the 
Group’s and of the Company’s financial instruments, by class, other than those 
with carrying amounts which are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

 
 Carrying amount Fair value 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 

 
 Group 

 
 Financial liabilities: 
 Interest-bearing loans and 
   borrowings – Non-current 
 - Obligations under 
  finance leases 5,462,552 9,075,048 5,450,919 9,057,275 
   -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- 

 
 Company 

 
 Financial liabilities: 
 Interest-bearing loans and 
   borrowings – Non-current 
 - Obligations under 
  finance leases - 80,583 - 80,015 
   -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------- 
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35. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued) 
 

35.2 Fair value (Continued) 
 

(a) Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value (Continued) 
 

 The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the financial 
instruments not carried at fair value are as follows: 

 
 Loans, advances and financing 
 
 The fair values of fixed rate loans/financing with remaining maturity of less 

than one year and variable rate loans/financing are estimated to approximate 
their carrying amounts. For fixed rate loans/financing with remaining maturity 
of more than one year, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash 
flows using prevailing market rates of loans/financing of similar credit risks 
and maturity. The fair values of impaired loans/financing are represented by 
their carrying amounts, net of any collective and individual assessment 
allowances, being the expected recoverable amount. 

 
(b) Determination of fair value 
 
 The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value 

and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair values: 
 
  Note 
 
 Trade and other receivables 20 
 Trade and other payables 27 
 Loans and borrowings (current and non-current, 
  except non-current fixed rates loans and 
  borrowings and obligations under finance leases) 25 

 
 
36. Fair value measurement 
 

Fair value hierarchy 
 

The Group classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

 
Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 
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36. Fair value measurement (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and of the
Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 30 June are
as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group RM RM RM RM

30 June 2020

Asset for:
Other investments - Equity
  investments quoted in Malaysia 93,600 - - 93,600
Derivatives
- Forward currency contracts - 130,200 - 130,200

--------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------

Liabilities for:
Interest-bearing loans
  and borrowings
- Non-current obligations under
    finance leases - 5,450,919 - 5,450,919
Derivatives
- Forward currency contracts - 20,766 - 20,766

--------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------

30 June 2019

Asset for:
Other investments - Equity
  investments quoted in Malaysia 181,200 - - 181,200

--------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------

Liabilities for:
Interest-bearing loans
  and borrowings
- Non-current obligations under
    finance leases - 9,057,275 - 9,057,275
Derivatives
- Forward currency contracts - 20,766 - 20,766

--------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------
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36. Fair value measurement (Continued) 
 
 Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 
 

   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Company RM RM RM RM 

 
30 June 2020 

 
Liabilities for: 
Interest-bearing loans  
  and borrowings 
- Non-current obligations under 
    finance leases - - - - 

    --------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------ 
 

30 June 2019 
 

Liabilities for: 
Interest-bearing loans  
  and borrowings 
- Non-current obligations under 
    finance leases - 80,015 - 80,015 

    --------------------------- -------------------------------- -------------------------- ------------------------------ 
 
 
37. Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and 
the use of financial instruments. The Group’s overall financial risk management strategy seeks 
to minimise potential adverse effects of financial performance of the Group. The key financial 
risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 

 
Financial risk management policies are periodically reviewed and approved by the Board of 
Directors and executed by the management.  The audit committee of Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad provides independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management 
process. 

 
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to 
the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the 
management of these risks. 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial 
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to 
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign 
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.  
 
For trade and other receivables, the Group controls these risks by the application of 
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. The Group also minimises its 
exposure through analysing the counterparties’ financial condition prior to entering 
into any services/contracts where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. Trade 
receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via Group’s management reporting 
procedures. For other financial assets (deposits, cash and bank balances with financial 
institutions) the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with counterparties of high 
credibility (i.e. banks and financial institutions). 
 
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix 
to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for 
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by 
geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the 
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at 
the reporting date about past events and current and forecasted industries’ conditions. 
Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than one year and are 
not subject to enforcement activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in 
below. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. 

 
Exposure to credit risk 

 
At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk is represented by: 

 
- the carrying amount of each financial assets in the statement of financial 

position after deducting any impairment allowance; and 
 

- a nominal amount of RM228,957,080 (2019: RM230,874,390) relating to 
corporate guarantee provided by the Company to banks on the subsidiaries’ 
borrowings.  
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Credit risk (Continued) 
 

Credit risk concentration profile 
 

The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the trade and other 
receivables on an ongoing basis. 

 
(i) Exposure to credit risk for trade receivables  

 
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss under MFRS 9 

 
The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and 
expected credit loss for trade receivables of the Group as at 30 June 2020: 

 
 Gross carrying Expected 
 amount credit loss Net balances 
 RM RM RM 

 
Group 
Current (not past due) 34,952,018 (248,835)  34,703,183  
Past due: 

1-30 days  19,679,469 (153,628) 19,525,841  
31-60 days  14,589,183 (149,506) 14,439,677  
61-90 days  10,480,244 (168,155) 10,312,089  
91-120 days  5,153,803 (212,122) 4,941,681  
More than 121 days 9,359,216 (3,824,894) 5,534,322  
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

  94,213,933  (4,757,140) 89,456,793  
Credit impaired 56,001,638 (10,100,434) 45,901,204  
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

  150,215,571 (14,857,574) 135,357,997  
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

 
The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and 
expected credit loss for trade receivables of the Group as at 30 June 2019: 

 
 Gross carrying Expected 
 amount credit loss Net balances 
 RM RM RM 

 
Group 
Current (not past due)   40,205,529 (236,897)  39,968,632 
Past due: 

1-30 days  28,860,993 (286,188) 28,574,805 
31-60 days  18,359,931 (217,417) 18,142,514 
61-90 days  17,195,697 (161,563) 17,034,134 
91-120 days  5,815,827 (86,388) 5,729,439 
More than 121 days 11,596,310 (3,099,446) 8,496,864 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

  122,034,287  (4,087,899) 117,946,388 
Credit impaired 88,951,981 (15,313,331) 73,638,650 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 

  210,986,268 (19,401,230)  191,585,038 
 ------------------------------- ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Credit risk (Continued) 
 

(i) Exposure to credit risk for trade receivables (Continued) 
 

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss under MFRS 9 
(Continued) 

 
The movement in allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) during the year 
for the Group are shown below: 

 
 Credit 
 impaired ECL Total 
 RM RM RM 

 
Group 
Balance as at 1 July 2019 14,190,278 5,643,348 19,833,626 

 
Charge for the year 2,560,972 - 2,560,972 
Reversal of impairment losses  (444,306) (1,555,449) (1,999,755) 

 
Charge for the year, net 2,116,666 (1,555,449) 561,217 

 
Effect of foreign exchange 56,958 - 56,958 
Written off (1,050,571) - (1,050,571) 
 --------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 

Balance as at 30 June 2019 15,313,331 4,087,899 19,401,230 
 

Charge for the year 7,319,015 669,241 7,988,256 
Reversal of impairment losses  (3,246,122) - (3,246,122) 

 
Charge for the year, net 4,072,893 669,241 4,742,134 

 
Disposal of subsidiary (2,452,494) - (2,452,494) 
Written off (6,833,296) - (6,833,296) 
 --------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 

Balance as at 30 June 2020 10,100,434 4,757,140 14,857,574 
 --------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 

 
  2020 2019 
  RM RM 

 
As per statements of cash flows: 
Reversal of impairment losses  (3,246,122) (1,485,557) 
Allowance for impairment (Note 9)  7,988,256 2,046,774 
  ------------------------- ------------------------- 

  4,742,134 561,217 
  ------------------------- ------------------------- 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Credit risk (Continued) 
 

(ii) Other receivables that are impaired 
Movement in allowance accounts: 

  Group 
   RM RM 

 
At 1 July 2019/2018   45,318,401 39,710,797 
Effect on MFRS 9 adoption   - 5,607,604 
Charge for the year (Note 9)   53,119,665 - 
Reversal of impairment loss   (2,705,086) - 
Written off   (82,332,081) - 
   ----------------------------- ---------------------------- 

At 1 July 2019/2018 (Restated)   13,400,899 45,318,401 
Charge for the year (Note 9)   15,497,988 53,119,665 
Reversal of impairment loss   (884,700) (2,705,086) 
Written off   (7,116,842) (82,332,081) 
   ----------------------------- ---------------------------- 

At 30 June 2020/2019   20,897,345 13,400,899 
   ----------------------------- ---------------------------- 

 
(b) Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in 
meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the 
Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the 
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group adopts a prudent approach to 
managing its liquidity risk.  The Group always maintains sufficient cash and cash 
equivalents, and has available funding through a diverse source of committed and 
uncommitted credit facilities from various banks. 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) 
 

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities 
 

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s 
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. 

 
 On demand 
 or within Two to Over 
 one year five years five years Total 
   RM RM RM RM 
  Group 
 
  At 30 June 2020 
 
  Financial liabilities: 
  Trade and  
    other payables 139,786,184  - - 139,786,184 
  Loans and borrowings 243,646,034 65,522,417 16,723,341 325,891,792  
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 

  Total undiscounted 
    financial liabilities 383,432,218   65,522,417  16,723,341   465,677,976  
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 

  At 30 June 2019 
 
  Financial liabilities: 
  Trade and  
    other payables 133,613,370 - - 133,613,370 
  Loans and borrowings 277,254,672 67,961,222 23,254,208 368,470,102 
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 

  Total undiscounted 
    financial liabilities 410,868,042   67,961,222  23,254,208   502,083,472  
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 
 On demand 
 or within Two to Over 
 one year five years five years Total 
   RM RM RM RM 
  Company 
 
  At 30 June 2020 
 
  Financial liabilities: 
  Trade and other payables 1,230,145  - - 1,230,145  
  Loans and borrowings 7,232,766  7,314,816  2,555,573  17,103,155 
  Financial guarantee  
    contracts* 228,957,080 -  - 228,957,080   
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 

  Total undiscounted 
    financial liabilities 237,419,991 7,314,816 2,555,573 247,290,380 
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 

 
  At 30 June 2019 
 
  Financial liabilities: 
  Trade and other payables 1,116,910 - - 1,116,910 
  Loans and borrowings 8,229,976 7,704,663 4,268,952 20,203,591 
  Financial guarantee  
    contracts* 230,874,390 - - 230,874,390

 -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 

  Total undiscounted 
    financial liabilities 240,221,276  7,704,663 4,268,952 252,194,891  
   -------------------------------- -------------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------------- 
 

* Based on the maximum amount that can be called under the financial guarantee 
contracts. 

 
(c) Interest rate risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and 
the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 

 
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates 
arise primarily from their loans and borrowings. 

 
Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk 

 
At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 10 basis points lower/higher, with all 
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit net of tax would have been 
RM127,207 (2019: RM140,763) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of 
lower/higher interest expense on floating rate loans and borrowings. The assumed 
movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment. 
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 
 

(d) Foreign currency risk 
 

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales and purchases 
that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of 
Group entities, primarily Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and United Arab Emirates Dirham 
(AED). The foreign currencies in which these transactions are denominated are 
mainly United Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) and United States Dollars (USD). 
Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional 
currencies of the operating entities are kept to an acceptable level. 

 
The Group does not enter into forward contracts to hedge foreign currency risk. 

 
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk 

 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s (loss)/profit net of tax 
to a reasonably possible change in the USD and AED against RM exchange rate, with 
all other variables held constant. 

 Group 
 Profit net of tax 

 2020 2019 
 RM RM 
 
USD/RM - strengthen by 5%  (177,602) 388,160 
USD/RM - weaken by 5%  177,602 (388,160) 
  ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
 
AED/RM - strengthen by 5%  (498) (1,857) 
AED/RM - weaken by 5%  498 1,857 
  ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
USD/AED - strengthen by 5%  - 76,062 
USD/AED - weaken by 5%  - (76,062) 
  ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 

 
RM/AED - strengthen by 5%  - (120,149) 
RM/AED - weaken by 5%  - 120,149 
  ------------------------------ ------------------------------ 
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38. Capital management 
 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholders 
value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, obtain new financing facilities or dispose 
assets to reduce borrowings. 
 
Management monitors capital based on the Group’s and the Company’s gearing ratio. The 
Group’s and the Company’s strategies are to maintain gearing ratio of not exceeding 100%. 

 
The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity capital plus net debt. Net debt is 
calculated as total borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and bank balances. Capital is 
equivalent to capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company. 
 

 Group Company 
  2020 2019 2020 2019 
 Note RM RM RM RM 

 
Loans and borrowings 25 308,620,105 352,371,440 15,284,736  17,919,065 
Trade and other 
  payables 27 139,786,184 133,613,370 1,230,145  1,116,910 
Less: 
Cash and bank  
  balances  23 (121,497,783) (68,759,021) (42,064,143)  (35,041,213) 
  ------------------------------------- ------------------------------------- ------------------------------------- ------------------------------------- 

Net debt/(Cash)  326,908,506 417,225,789 (25,549,262) (16,005,238) 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 
Equity attributable to 
  the owners of the 
  Company  911,268,518 1,067,337,113 1,201,264,104  1,216,752,687 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 
Capital and net debt  1,238,177,024 1,484,562,902 1,175,714,842  1,200,747,449 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 
Gearing ratio  26.40% 28.10% N/A N/A 
  ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
39. Segment information 
 

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products 
and services, and has three reportable operating segments as follows:  

 
I. Shipbuilding, ship repair and fabrication of metal structures. 

 
II. Domestic and regional shipping segment which carries out shipping business in coastal 

and regional routes within Malaysia and ASEAN region. 
 

III. International shipping segment which carries out shipping business in United Arab 
Emirates and international routes to Japan, Korea, China, Philippines and ASEAN 
region. 

 
IV. Others consist of the business of shipping agency.  

 
Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above 
reportable operating segments. 

 
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of 
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment 
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which, in certain respects as 
explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the 
consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes 
are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. 

 
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar 
to transactions with third parties. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
39. Segment information (Continued) 
 

A Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidated. 
 

B Other material non-cash expenses consist of the following items as presented in the 
respective notes to the financial statements: 

 
 2020 2019 
 Note RM RM 

 
Fair value changes on forward contracts 9 (150,966) 20,766 
Property, plant and equipment written off 9 6,653 10,407 
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 9 23,486,244 55,166,439 
Impairment on work-in-progress inventory 9 449,500 - 
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange  (239,591) 2,699,518 

 ---------------------------- ---------------------------- 

  23,551,840 57,897,130 
 ---------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 

C The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment profit to arrive at “Profit 
before tax” presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income: 
 2020 2019 
  RM RM 

 
Share of results of associates  204,374 801,407 
Dividend from subsidiaries  (680,000) (680,000) 
Dividend from associates  (68,250) (195,000) 
Profit from inter-segment sales  998,403 240,599 
Depreciation  (3,082,602) 64,927 

 ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  (2,628,075) 231,933 
 ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 
 

D Additions to non-current assets consist of:  
 

Property, plant and equipment  21,161,423 104,018,970 
 ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 
 

E The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment assets to arrive at total assets 
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position: 

 
 2020 2019 
  RM RM 

 
Property, plant and equipment  (36,157,150)  (22,365,810) 
Investment in associates  1,104,605  417,070 
Intangible assets  2,063,893 2,063,893 
Inter-segment assets  (373,438,853)  (466,338,056) 

 ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  (406,427,505)  (486,222,903) 
 ----------------------------------- ----------------------------------- 

  



SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2020 183

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2020 (Cont’d)

 

 

132 

SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A) 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020 
 
 
39. Segment information (Continued) 
 

F The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment liabilities to arrive at total 
liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial position: 

 
 2020 2019 
  RM RM 

 
Cumulative preference shares  (100,000) (100,000) 
Inter-segment liabilities  (390,899,850)  (421,137,693) 

 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- 

  (390,999,850)  (421,237,693) 
 --------------------------------- --------------------------------- 

 
Geographical information 

 
Revenue and non-current assets information based on the geographical location of customers 
and assets respectively are as follows: 

 
 Revenue Non-current assets 

  2020 2019 2020 2019 
  RM RM RM RM 
 
 Malaysia 547,243,279 580,287,239 1,036,529,638 1,190,484,382 
 United Arab Emirates - - - 2,579,000 
 Singapore 44,283,888 64,583,879 - - 
  Japan 32,797 329,427 - - 
 Netherlands 3,178,709 - - - 
 Taiwan 1,756,948 - - - 
   ------------------------------------ --------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

   596,495,621 645,200,545 1,036,529,638 1,193,063,382 
   ------------------------------------ --------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 
 Non-current assets information presented above consist of the following items as presented in 

the consolidated statement of financial position: 
 

 2020 2019 
  RM RM 

 
Property, plant and equipment 1,036,529,638 1,193,063,382 

 ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ 

 
 
40. Dividend 
 
 There were no dividends paid in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019. 
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) – 200401027554 (666062-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 30 JUNE 2020

41. Significant event

The novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic has significantly disrupted many businesses
and the Malaysian economy as a whole. The Movement Control Order implemented by the
government required the closure of all government and private premises except for those
involved in provision of essential services.  The Group’s principal activities mainly comprise
the provision for sea transport, freight forwarding services and shipbuilding. The threats posed
by the COVID-19 continue to spiral and many businesses have been crippled by the loss in
earnings and disruption in the supply chains.

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic occurred before 30 June 2020 and its impact is considered
an event that existed as at the reporting date. The impact of COVID-19 on the Group is mainly the
loss of revenue due to lower volume of cargo handled during the last quarter of the financial year
due to restrictions in major markets across the world. On the financial statements level, the COVID-
19 affected the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and expected credit losses
on financial assets. In arriving at the recoverable amounts and the probabilities of default as well as
appropriate forward looking information, the effects of COVID-19 have been taken into
consideration. The Group will continue to assess the appropriateness of its assumptions and
estimates adopted, and adjust accordingly from time to time in the next financial year ending 30
June 2021.

Given the unpredictability of the future development of COVID-19, the Group is unable to
reasonably quantify the complete financial impact of the COVID-19 for the financial year ending
30 June 2021 to be disclosed in the financial statements. The Group will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions that will affect the Group.

42. Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Directors on 30 October 2020.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 19 OCTOBER 2020

ANALYSIS BY SIZE SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 19 October 2020

						      No. of		  No. of
Size of Shareholdings		  Holders	 %	 Securities	 %

Less than 100				    7 	  0.28 	  292 	  0.00 
100  -  1,000	  			   197 	  7.81 	  143,800 	  0.01 
1,001  -  10,000			    990 	  39.27 	  6,182,308 	  0.53 
10,001  -  100,000	  		  1,043 	  41.37 	  40,224,800 	  3.44 
100,001 - 59,999,999 (*)		   283 	  11.23 	  461,549,704 	  39.50 
60,000,000 and above (**)		   1 	  0.04 	  660,412,796 	  56.52 

Total					      2,521 	  100.00 	 1,168,513,700 	  100.00 

All information of shareholdings disclosed excludes 31,486,300 treasury shares held by the Company		
		
Total Holders				     2,521 
Total Paid Up	  			   1,168,513,700 
 

Notes:			 
*   - Less than 5% of issued holdings			 
** - 5% and above of issued holdings			 

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS 	
As at 19 October 2020

						      No. of	 No. of
						      Shares	 Shares
						      held through	 held through	 Total
No	 Name of Director		  Nominees	 own name	 Shareholdings	 %

1	 TAN SRI DATUK LING CHIONG HO		   -   	  34,802,669 	  34,802,669 	  2.98 
2	 LING CHIONG SING		   -   	  34,802,669 	  34,802,669 	  2.98 
3	 LING CHIONG PIN		   -   	  34,802,668 	  34,802,668 	  2.98 
4	 LAWRENCE LAI YEW SON		   -   	  330,000 	  330,000 	  0.03 
5	 KOH EK CHONG 119,000 shares held through		   119,000 	  -   	  119,000 	  0.01
	 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 
6	 LING SIU CHUO		   -   	  36,000,009 	  36,000,009 	  3.08 
7	 VINCENT LING LU YEW		   -   	  100,000 	  100,000 	  0.01 

	 TOTAL	  			   119,000 	  140,838,015 	  140,957,015 	  12.06 

1.	 Total Paid-Up Capital as at 19 October 2020		  1,168,513,700 	
2.	 All information of shareholdings disclosed excludes 31,486,300 treasury shares held by the Company

INFORMATION ON SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 
As at 19 October 2020

No.	 Names					      NRIC /  	 Total	
			    				   Registration No. 	Shareholdings	 %

 1 	 SHIN YANG HOLDING SENDIRIAN BERHAD 	  		  184468H 	  660,412,796 	  56.52 

				    TOTAL				     660,412,796 	  56.52 

1.	 Total Paid-Up Capital as at 19 October 2020	  	 1,168,513,700 		
2.	 All information of shareholdings disclosed excludes 31,486,300 treasury shares held by the Company		
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LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
As At 19 October 2020 					   

Names							       Shareholding	 %

1	 SHIN YANG HOLDING SENDIRIAN BERHAD	  660,412,796 	 56.52
2	 CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.	  46,284,000 	 3.96
	 EXEMPT AN FOR DBS BANK LTD (SFS-PB) 	
3	 LING SIU CHUO	  36,000,009 	 3.08
4	 LING CHIONG HO	  34,802,669 	 2.98
5	 LING CHIONG SING	  34,802,669 	 2.98
6	 LING CHIONG PIN	  34,802,668 	 2.98
7	 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  33,591,500 	 2.87
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR BUMIMAS WANGI SDN. BHD.	
8	 LING SIEW TING	  24,000,006 	 2.05
9	 LING CHIONG SIENG	  22,176,868 	 1.90
10	 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  18,665,600 	 1.60
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CAHAYA SURIAMAJU SDN. BHD.			 
11	 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  18,603,700 	 1.59
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR S.K. UNIMAS SDN. BHD.		
12	 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  16,841,100 	 1.44
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MAJU BUMIRAYA SDN. BHD.
13	 KONG EIK MING	  12,461,800 	 1.07
14	 CAHAYA SURIAMAJU SDN. BHD.	  7,500,000 	 0.64
15	 ADINAMAJU SDN BHD	  6,290,400 	 0.54
16	 WONG TIING SONG	  4,496,800 	 0.38
17	 SHINLINE CORPORATION SDN. BHD.	  3,290,515 	 0.28
18	 CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  3,000,000 	 0.26
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEH SHIOU CHERNG (J D B TUNGGAL BR-CL)			 
19	 UOBM NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD	  2,800,000 	 0.24
	 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PTE) LTD FOR PERRA GROUP LIMITED			 
20	 LING CHING HUONG	  2,780,000 	 0.24
21	 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  2,771,000 	 0.24
	 CIMB FOR WONG TIING SONG (PB)			 
22	 HLIB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  2,350,000 	 0.20
	 HONG LEONG BANK BHD FOR TEH SHIOU CHERNG			 
23	 UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  2,080,000 	 0.18
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TING LEONG HUA			 
24	 CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.	  2,059,700 	 0.18
	 EXEMPT AN FOR DBS BANK LTD (SFS)			 
25	 TAN HOCK KIEN	  2,037,900 	 0.17
26	 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD	  2,000,000 	 0.17
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAY SOON HWA (E-TSA)			 
27	 TIE TECK HUAT	  1,773,200 	 0.15
28	 TIE TEK TIONG @ TIE TECK TIONG	  1,727,000 	 0.15
29	 JULIAN JAMES ARMSTRONG	  1,601,000 	 0.14
30	 YAW CHOONG YEW	  1,520,000 	 0.13

	 Total						       1,043,522,900 	 89.30

	 * Paid-up Capital as at 19 October 2020	  1,168,513,700 
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PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Name of Registered Owner 
and Postal Address/Title 
Identification

Piasau Slipways Sdn Bhd
Plot 91 - 93 all under Lot 
No. 659, Block 12, Buan 
Land District, Tanjung Manis, 
Sarawak

Shin Yang Shipyard Sdn Bhd
Plot 94 - 100 all under Lot 
No. 659, Block 12, Buan 
Land District, Tanjung Manis, 
Sarawak

Piasau Slipways Sdn Bhd
Lot No. 1098, Block 37, 
Kemena Land District, Sarawak

Shin Yang Shipyard Sdn Bhd
Lot 263, Block 1, Kuala Baram 
Land District, Miri, Sarawak 

(formerly known as Lot 211, 
Block 1, Kuala Baram Land 
District, Miri, Sarawak)

Piasau Slipways Sdn Bhd
Lot 208, Block 1 and Lot 523, 
Kuala Baram Land District, Miri, 
Sarawak

Shin Yang Shipyard Sdn Bhd
Plot 1 to Plot 13 all under Lot 
70, Block 3, Kuala Baram Land 
District, Miri, Sarawak

Shin Yang Shipyard Sdn Bhd
Sublot 153 under Lot 70, Block 
3, Kuala Baram Land District, 
Miri, Sarawak

Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad
Lot No.25, Kota Kinabalu 
Industrial Park, Off Jalan 
Sepangar Bay, Kota Kinabalu 
, Sabah 

Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad
KM10.9, Jalan Batu Sapi-Lintas 
Sibuga Sandakan , Sabah

Shin Yang Shipping 
Corporation Berhad
Lot 31, Lebuh Sultan 
Mohamed 1,
Kawasan Perusahaan Bandar 
Sultan Suleiman,
42000 Port Klang, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan., 

Description and
existing Use

Vacant sand filled industrial 
land.

Vacant sand filled industrial 
land.

Industrial land erected with 
the warehouses, winch & 
slipways used as shipping 
fabrication yard and 
dockyard.

Industrial land erected with 
the workshops cum office 
buildings, winch house, 
warehouse & slipways, 
buildings used as shipping 
fabrication yard & dockyard.

Two contiguous parcels of 
industrial lands erected with 
the double storey office 
cum stores,  workshops, 
winch house, 4-rail slipways, 
shipyard buildings used as 
shipping fabrication yard, 
dockyard and office.

A collective parcel of thirteen 
industrial land erected with 
the double storey offices, 
4 shipyard buildings, 
workshops, & launching 
ways buildings used as 
shipping fabrication yard, 
dockyard and office.

Industrial land erected with 
the office building.

Industrial land erected with 
the office building & factory, 
warehouse and container 
yards.

Residential Zoned land 
erected with the front office 
with open sided store.

Industrial land erected with 
2-storey office building & 
factory, warehouses and 
container yards.

Date of Expiry of
Lease / Tenure /
Approximate Age
of Building/ 
	
 

Parent lot title under 
perpetuity (1)  
/ Aged  13 years

Parent lot title under 
perpetuity (1) 
/ Aged 4- 13 years

Parent lot title under 
perpetuity (1)   
/ Aged 10-13 years

Leasehold of 60 
years expiring 
14.07.2055
/ Aged 7-20 years

Lot 208 - leasehold 
of 60 years expiring 
17.09.2055 
/ Aged  7-12 years

Lot 523 - leasehold 
of 60 years expiring 
07.01.2048
/ Aged 13-17 years

Parent lot title under 
leasehold for 99 
years expiring on 
20.02.2102 (1) 

/ Aged 7-13 years

Parent lot title under 
leasehold for 99 
years expiring on 
20.02.2102 (1) 
/ Aged 6-12 years

Leasehold of 99 
years expiring 
31.12.2098
/ Aged 4-7 years

Leasehold of 999 
years expiring on 
12.01.2901
/ Aged 7 years

Leasehold of 99 
years expiring on 
30.06.2105
/ Aged 1-4 year

Date of 
Valuation

 
 

5th October 2009

5th October 2009

16th November 
2009

2nd November 
2009

11th May 2019

21st August 2009

15th September 
2009

11th May 2019 
(Building only)

N/A

N/A

N/A

Approximate 
land area 

 
 

25.2542 Ha

61.9774 Ha

7.006 Ha

13.02 Ha

Lot 208
2.273 Ha

Lot 523
5.119 Ha

78.217 Ha

1.81 Ha

4.076 Ha

1.607 Ha

2.947 Ha

 Adjusted 
NBV

as at 30 
June 2020 

(RM’000)
 

	
7,396

28,156

11,131

9,926

7,743

44,127

14,897

8,841

2,164

22,315

A summary of the land and buildings owned by our Group is as follows:-
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Conference Room, Level 
5, Imperial Hotel, Jalan Pos, 98000 Miri, Sarawak, Malaysia on Tuesday, 8th December 2020 at 11:00 a.m. for the following 
purposes:-

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Please refer to 
Note A)

(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)
(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

(Resolution 5)

(Resolution 6)

(Resolution 7)

(Resolution 8)

(Resolution 9)

AGENDA

Ordinary Business:

1.	 To table the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 together 
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To approve the Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

3.	 To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with clause 90 of the Company’s 
Constitution, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election:-

	 i)	 Mr. Ling Chiong Pin
	 ii)	 Mdm. Ling Siu Chuo 
	 iii)	 Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son	

4.	 To re-appoint Mr. Hudson Chua Jain who is retiring in accordance with clause 97 of the Company’s 
Constitution, and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

5.	 To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors 
to fix their remuneration.

Special Business:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions with or without 
modifications:-	

As Ordinary Resolution

6.	 Proposed Retention of Independent Directors	
	

(i) “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son who has served as 
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than 
nine (9) years, to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company 
in accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017”

(ii) “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr. Koh Ek Chong who has served as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to 
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in accordance 
with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017”

7.	 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of 
a Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed RRPT Mandate”)

	 “THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”), the  Constitution of the Company, the 
Main Market Listing Requirements of  Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), 
other applicable laws, guidelines, rules and regulations, and the approval of the relevant 
governmental/regulator authorities (where applicable), approval be and is hereby given to 
the Company and/or its subsidiary companies (“Group”) to enter into recurrent related party 
transactions of a revenue or trading nature with those related parties as stated in Section 2.2 of 
the Circular to Shareholders dated 30th October 2020 (“Circular”), which are necessary for the 
day-to-day operations of the Group (“RRPT”) subject further to the following:

a.	 That the RRPT are in the ordinary course of business and are made on an arm’s length basis 
and on normal commercial terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than 
those available to the public and not to the detriment of the minority shareholders; 
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(Resolution 10)

b.	 That disclosure will be made in the annual report of the Company of the breakdown of the 
aggregate value of transactions conducted pursuant to the Proposed RRPT Mandate during 
the financial year based on information such as the types of the RRPT made and names of 
the related parties involved in each type of the RRPT made and their relationship with the 
Company; and 

	 c.	 That such approval shall continue to be in force until: -
●	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, at which 

time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed; 
●	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company after the date 

it is required to be held pursuant to Section 340 (2) of the Act but shall not extend to 
such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 340 (4) of the Act; or

●	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting,
whichever is the earlier;

	 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts 
and things as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the Proposed RRPT 
Mandate.

	 AND THAT the estimated value given on the RRPT as outlined in Section 2.2 of the Circular 
being provisional in nature, the Directors of the Company be hereby authorised to agree to the 
actual amount or amounts thereof provided always that such amount or amounts comply with 
the review methods or procedures outlined in Section 2.5 of the Circular.”

8.	 Proposed Renewal of Authority On Shares Buy Back.  

	 “THAT subject to the Company’s compliance with all the applicable rules, regulations, orders and 
guidelines made pursuant to the Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act’), the Company’s Constitution 
and Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements 
(“Listing Requirements”), the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized 
to purchase shares at any time such amount of ordinary shares in the Company as may be 
determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon 
such terms and conditions as the Directors in their absolute discretion deem and expedient in 
the interest of the Company provided that:

a.	 the aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and retained by the 
Company at any point of time pursuant to this resolution shall not exceed 4.58% of the total 
issued and paid up share capital of the Company;

b.	 the amount of funds to be allocated by the Company pursuant to this resolution not exceed 
the retained earnings and/or share premium of the Company as at 30 June 2020; and

c.	 the shares so purchased by the Company pursuant to this resolution may at the discretion 
of the Directors be: -
●	 retained as treasury shares; and/or cancelled; and/or
●	 resold on the market of Bursa Securities in accordance to the Listing Requirements; 

and/or
●	 distributed as dividends to the shareholders; and/or
●	 dealt in any other manners prescribed by the applicable rules, regulations and orders 

made pursuant to the Act, the Listing Requirements and any other relevant authority 
for the time being in force;

		
	 AND THAT such authority conferred by the shareholders of the Company upon passing of the 

resolution will continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, unless by a resolution passed at that meeting, the authority is renewed; or the 
expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting is required to be held 
pursuant to Section 340(2) of the Act but must not extended to such extensions as may be 
allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act; or until the authority is revoked or varied by a 
resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting, whichever occurs first.
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	 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts 
and things as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the resolution.”

	
9.	 To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the 

Company’s Constitution and the Companies Act 2016. 

By Order of the Board of Directors

RICHARD LING PENG LIING (MIA 9688)
SSM Practising Certificate No. 201908000676
Company Secretary
Miri, Sarawak

30th October 2020

Explanatory Notes on Ordinary Business

(A)	 This Agenda is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2016 does not 
require a formal approval of Shareholders of the Company and hence, is not put forward for voting.

Explanatory Notes on Special Business

(1)	 Resolutions 7 and 8 – The Board, through the Joint Remuneration and Nomination Committee, has assessed the 
independence of Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son and Mr. Koh Ek Chong who have served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years. The Board recommends that 
Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son and Mr. Koh Ek Chong continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company for the following reasons:

(a)	 They fulfill the criteria as Independent Director as defined in the Listing Requirements, and therefore are able to 
bring independent and objective judgment to the Board;

(b)	 Their immense experience in their respective fields/background enable them to provide the Board with a diverse 
set of experience, expertise, skills and competence;

(c)	 They understand the Company’s business operations, which allow them to participate actively and contribute 
during deliberations or discussions at the Committee and Board meetings;

(d)	 They devote sufficient time and effort and attends all the Board and Committee meetings, for informed and 
balanced decision making; and

(e)	 They exercise due care as Independent Director of the Company and carry out their professional and fiduciary 
duties in the interest of the Company and shareholders.

(2) 	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will authorize the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent 
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at 
the general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. 

	 Please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated 30 October 2020 for further information.

(3) 	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 10, if passed, will empower the Company to purchase the Company’s shares up 
to 4.58% of the issued and paid up share capital of the Company.

	 Please refer to the Statement on Shares Buy-Back dated 30 October 2020 for further information.
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Notes:-

(1)	 Pursuant to Section 334 of the Companies Act 2016, a member shall be entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise 
all or any of his rights to attend, participate, speak and vote in his stead.

(2)	 A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. A proxy 
appointed to attend and vote at a General Meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the General 
Meeting.

(3)	 Where a Member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Central Depositories Act, 1991, it may appoint at 
least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the 
said securities account.

(4)	 Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his 
holdings to be represented by each proxy.

(5)	 If the appointor is a corporation, this form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly 
authorised.

(6)	 To be valid, this form, duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours 
before the time for holding the meeting.      

	 The Registered office of the Company is at Sublot 153 (Parent Lot 70), Jalan Kuala Baram, Kuala Baram, 98100 Miri, Sarawak, 
Malaysia.

(7) 	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 30 November 2020, shall be 
eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

SAFETY MEASURES IN LIGHT OF CONONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19) OUTBREAK

1.	 As a precautionary measure, Attendees are NOT ALLOWED to attend the meeting if:-

	 a)	 They are unwell with sore throat, flu, cough, fever, diarrhea and/or shortness of breath; or
	 b)	 They have travel history to high-risk countries affected by Covid-19 in the past 14 days; or
	 c)	 They have been in contact with a person who is confirmed with Covid-19 infection in the past 14 days.

	 The Company may at its discretion deny entry to any abovementioned persons. It seeks the understanding and 
cooperation of the Attendees with the Precautionary measures put in place.

	 As the Covid-19 situation continues to evolve, the Company will closely monitor the situation and reserve the right 
to take any precautionary measures as may be required or recommended by relevant authorities from time to time. 
The Company may be required to change its Annual General Meeting arrangements at a short notice. Members are 
advised to regularly check the Company’s Website for any updates.
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SHIN YANG SHIPPING CORPORATION BERHAD
Registration No: 200401027554 (666062-A)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

I/We _____________________________________________________, _________________________________________

of _________________________________________________________________________________________________

being a member/members of Shin Yang Shipping Corporation Berhad, hereby appoint:

NRIC NO/ PASSPORT NO/ COMPANY NOFULL NAME

FULL ADDRESS

NO. RESOLUTIONS
Ordinary Business

SPECIAL BUSINESS

FOR AGAINST

1

A

2

Dated this ________________ day of ___________________ 2020

____________________________________________
  Signature and/or Common Seal of Shareholders



CDS Account No

No. of ordinary shares held

or **Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy to vote for* me/us and on* my/our behalf at the Fifteenth (15th) 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Conference Room, Level 5, Imperial Hotel, Jalan Pos, 
98000 Miri, Sarawak, Malaysia on Tuesday, 8th December 2020 at 11.00 am and, at any adjournment thereof. 

(Please indicate with an "X' in the space provided above on how you wish your proxy to vote.  If no instruction is 
given this form will be taken to authorise the proxy to vote at his/her discretion)

To approve the Directors’ fees for the �nancial year ended 30 June 2020.

To table the Audited Financial Statements for the �nancial year ended 30 June 2020 together with the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

To re-election of retiring director: Mr. Ling Chiong Pin pursuant to Clause 90 
of the Company’s Constitution.

3 To re-election of retiring director: Mdm. Ling Siu Chuo pursuant to Clause 90 
of the Company’s Constitution.

To re-election of retiring director: Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son pursuant to 
Clause 90 of the Company’s Constitution.

4

To re-election of retiring director: Mr. Hudson Chua Jain pursuant to Clause 
97 of the Company’s Constitution.

5

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to 
authorise the Directors to �x their remuneration.

6

7 Continuation of Datuk Lawrence Lai Yew Son as an Independent Non-Exec-
utive Director of the Company

8 Continuation of Mr. Koh Ek Chong as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company

9 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature 

10 Proposed Renewal of Authority on Shares Buy-Back

Name of Proxy                NRIC / Passport No.    Proportion of Shareholdings (%)

and/or failing him/her

* Strike out whichever inapplicable.
** If you do not wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy/one (1) of your proxies, please strike 
out the words “the Chairman of the Meeting” and insert the name(s) of the proxy/proxies you wish to appoint in 
the blank space(s) provided.

Notes:
((1) Pursuant to Section 334 of the Companies Act 2016, a member shall be entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of 

his rights to attend, participate, speak and vote in his stead.
(2) A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. A proxy appointed to 

attend and vote at a General Meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the General Meeting.
(3) Where a Member of the Company is an Exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry [Central Depositories] Act, 1991, 

which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account [“omnibus account”], there shall be no limit 
to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

(4) Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be 
represented by each proxy.

(5) If the appointor is a corporation, this form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
(6)  To be valid, this form, duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the 

time for holding the meeting.      
 The Registered office of the Company at Sublot 153 (Parent Lot 70), Jalan Kuala Baram, Kuala Baram, 98100 Miri, Sarawak, Malaysia.
(7) Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29(a)(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the resolutions set out in this 

Notice shall be put to by poll.
(8) In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 30 November 2020, shall be eligible to 

attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.
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